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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% AR

TO THE MEMBERS OF
GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries set out on pages 119 to 267, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended and notes, comprising material accounting
policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the CO.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with HKSAs issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA Code and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the HKICPA Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

BEREREBRERERLAF
2ERR
(RBEEMARIZNBRLDF)

=z
=

ZMEETINHNREI1198 EFHE267HH
ERARKRENBRARNGAEMIEHRE
4R A B 75 3R 2R B 15 7 2028F 12 831 H
MG BRAER REBEaREEE
ZALFENGABRZE M2 WS
xR BAEREHRIGAREREE
AEME(HEARGTBRER REA
A& R4ERK) °

BPRE ZERAVBRERECBESR
BEETE A S BN E SRS ER
BEEMPEHRET &5&BR2023F
12A31EMEAMBRAREEZA IE
FENGEEUBRARGARERE
I B B R AHEBI) Z B -

RRNER

BZHEREBEBEGAHASRMNER
B EAETEG RMAEZXFENT
AENRECEARRSE [ BEN B4R
EUBHRERAENEEIBOPIEE—F
M- REFESFM2ETA > KM
BYR BB YERETEEGFE
RETARNEMEXBEEE - KM
BiE RAMESHEFRIEETRER
BEEWREMNBTERIRHER -
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Key audit matters
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FRARETEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, B ET S E R E B A = 3 4
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial REH KGRV EREANBTIRAE
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the EHMEFH SLEHEAYUES TR
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, RERETETITERERNE S TR
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate BE BT ELEBIEHEBZBN =

opinion on these matters.

ﬁo

BMTEFNERRBRNELRE AR XFTME

Expected credit loss assessment for loans and advances to customers

BRI R EREN 16 R FE137E171 B S IKE ©

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 137 to 171.

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

REEEEMNEFSF PR ONMAESE N

Loans and advances to customers constitute a
significant portion of the total assets of the Group. As
at 31 December 2023, the gross carrying amount of
loans and advances to customers and its related ECL
allowance amounted to HK$7,866 million (2022: HK$8,589
million) and HK$2,105 million (2022: HK$2,197 million)
respectively. The net carrying amount of HK$5,761 million
(2022: HK$6,391 million) represented 5% (2022: 7%) of
the Group’s total assets.

BTEPHNERERBRE BEEEEELENRIK—H5 -
2023F12A31H G T EFHNERRBRNRELER
Hi@BEERBEREE S R R7,8668 & T (20224 -
8,580E & B T) &2,1058 & T (20224 : 2,197 A B
7T) ° BREFES,7618 &8 7T (20224 : 6,3918 & & 7T)
i BEEBEES (2022F 1 7%) °

Qur audit procedures to assess ECL for loans and
advances to customers included the following:
BMEL TEFPHNERRBRNTELRE BB R AT
EBFHEF B T3 JIE -

° understanding and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness
of key internal controls over the credit risk
management of loans and advances to
customers and the ECL assessment. For the key
systems used for the processing of transactions
in relation to loans and advances to customers,
we involved our information technology
specialists to assess the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of a selection of key
internal controls over access to these systems
and controls over data and change management;

e TEHRERIGGETEFPHNERRBINEERRE
BH AR AR ES RERERBRTENRS
HITREER - HRAREEETEFHNER
RBREENRZHEE RS BHMARREMD
BABMRERT AT HZE RS AR REBE
ZHIR FHEENCKERBAISIERES
AT RBITRORR
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Key audit matters (continued) BRETTSE®

Expected credit loss assessment for loans and advances to customers

MTEFNERRBRNWEALRGERBATMG

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 137 to 171.
FRHGEEBRAN T 16 R E137E17T1EA BT HE °

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BREEE REEER MW E R AR

Management assesses whether the credit risk of loans | ® understanding and assessing the appropriateness of
and advances to customers has increased significantly the established policies and procedures for the ECL
since their initial recognition and applies a three-stage assessment including the staging criteria, application
impairment model to calculate their ECL. A financial of assumptions and inputs into the ECL model;
asset is classified as stage 1 when its credit risk has | ® T8 R&F{EF7HIE 6958 B35 AR KA (A BOR 42
not increased significantly since its initial recognition; FHAEE BREREREE RREMNLREBHE
otherwise, it is classified as stage 2 or stage 3. Stage 3 PR IR B oy A BUR

applies when a financial asset is credit-impaired. The loss
allowance for stage 1 financial assets is measured at an
amount equal to a 12-month ECL. The loss allowance for
stage 2 and stage 3 financial assets is measured at an
amount equal to a lifetime ECL.
EREgNMATERPNERRBRNEERR B VBT
RARREEBEEZEN RA=ZBRRBAEREAEHLER
EABRX BEERRBVHBERARIL EAEZIEMN - A
TREEFAF BR BABAF_HE=ER -F=
BERERNEERENSREE - FRREREENE
BREDEASN2EABHEREANSHTE - =
RE-RRBEEBEEEDZASN2HBEHERE
KH SRS ©
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Key audit matters (continued)
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BRETEE )

Expected credit loss assessment for loans and advances to customers

MTEFNERRBRNWEALRGERBATMG

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 137 to 171.

BRI R EREN 16 R FEI137E171 B A S IKE ©

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

REHEEREMNFSF PR ONMAESE N

For loans and advances to customers that are categorised
as stage 3, management performs individual assessment
for each borrower by considering credit enhancements
provided to the Group.

HRBEAZRRNAETEFNERRBER ERELKE
BRET EXENEERAHSRERAETERTME -

As at 31 December 2023, the gross carrying amount
of stage 3 loans and advances to customers and its
related ECL allowance amounted to HK$2,104 million and
HK$2,103 million respectively. Decrease of net carrying
amount of stage 3 loans and advances to customers from
HK$186 million in 2022 to HK$1 million in 2023 mainly due
to reclassification of a term loan to financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss as a result of restructuring of
terms.
M2023F12A31H KT EFNE=ERERLBRNE
HAEBKHEEBREHREREREGD I R210488E T
K2 103EEBT - F=ZRRETEFPNERLBRNER
[H ¥ 1B H2022F #1868 & /8 7T il 2 £2023F M1 8 & 4
T EEHAR—ETHEREHNSEETRATEFAERR
NeMEENEGREEMEERES -

evaluating the reasonableness and
appropriateness of the ECL model by assessing
the critical assumptions, inputs and parameters
used in the model that has been reviewed by our
internal risk modelling specialists. This included
the classification of loss stages, probability of
default, loss given default, exposure at default,
discount rate, adjustments for forward-looking
information and other management adjustments.
As part of these procedures, we challenged
management’s revision to estimate and input
parameters by comparing with prior period and
considered the consistency of judgement;
RPN ERER ZERKE B TR ETERER
BRABRANESEUEREGEEARERRB R
BE WABRBR2E OREEEBRER &
WB=E BHBREX EQRR  BRIRE - 5A
ELEERAERBRRAMERAE - (ERZFRE
FE —&2 > ZFBBEF —PRENEREER
BHME RBAAZHENETIREER - EEH
B e — Bt

assessing the value of collateral held for a
sample of loans and advances to customers with
reference to publicly available market prices;
MEFERA TEPHNER R BRI EF @
BE 2P2EZLRAGBMSESR:
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Key audit matters (continued) BRETTSE®

Expected credit loss assessment for loans and advances to customers

MTEFNERRBRNWEALRGERBATMG

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 137 to 171.
FRHGEEBRAN T 16 R E137E17T1EA BT HE °

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BREEE REEER MW E R AR

The determination of the loss allowance is subject to | assessing the existence of collateral by obtaining
several key parameters and assumptions, including independent confirmations or statements from
estimates of probability of default, loss given default, brokers or clearing houses for a sample of
exposures at default and the discount rate, adjustments for securities held as collateral per the Group's
forward-looking information and other adjustment factors. records;

Management judgement is involved in the selection of | ¢  RiIE EBEXEERSMFHFEERFRNES  BEAEB
those parameters and the application of the assumptions. KR ANKEENS R R ER - T E
ETEEREFEAZSEZH2HLRH  BEMAFEDTR BEFRmNEBFEMY

o ROBEE RORBRRERE RAREEN R
fAEREMERE - NRTRS SRR EREBERS
R TR I -

In particular, the determination of the loss allowance is
heavily dependent on the macro-economic environment
and the Group’s internal credit risk management strategy.
The loss allowance for loans and advances to customers
is determined based on estimates whereby management
takes into consideration market data, historical overdue
data, historical loss experience and other adjustment
factors.

LHE BrTFERERELBLERELR E5ERAH
EERRERRR GTEFPHNERRBRNEBREED
REEEEZRITSHE BERREE BEEFEK
R HAMFAERARGTEGAERE -
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BRETEE )

Expected credit loss assessment for loans and advances to customers

MTEFNERRBRNWEALRGERBATMG

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 137 to 171.

BRI R EREN 16 R FEI137E171 B A S IKE ©

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

REHEEREMNFSF PR ONMAESE N

Management also exercises judgement in determining
the quantum of loss given default based on a range of
factors. These include available remedies for recovery, the
financial situation of the borrower, the recoverable amount
of collateral, the seniority of the claim and existence and
cooperativeness of other creditors. When listed stocks are
pledged as collateral, the loan balances to collateral ratio,
and the stock holding concentration of the borrower, the
industry sector and the operation of the issuer, the liquidity
restriction on sales of the stock are taken into account in
the assessment.
ERETTERAGARBSERNZETRENBEEEREE -
ZERZBER AR K E AR EE - ERAT BRI -
KR KOEeHE REBEAFREMEEAREREE
REGEEZER - BELTREERERGTUER ERE
MHREFmEERERAFTRERE  BITARETERE
AR - SHEZRE R EN MEIR HIl 5 H =g A AT -

The amount of impairment of the loans and advances
to customers is significant, and the measurement has
a high degree of estimation uncertainty. For measuring
ECL, management adopted complex models, employed
numerous parameters and data inputs, and applied
significant management judgments and assumptions, and
involved significant inherent risk. In view of these reasons,
we identified this as a key audit matter.
RTEPHNERRBEZINRESEEAN  BstEAEERE
T THEEN -t BERBERELRNS EBERA
TEHOER  BERTASNZ2EREE  UKATEKX
WEREHE MERR PREANEFER - EXZER
CHPIEEREERBERESEE -

assessing the existence and quality of collateral,
guarantees or other forms of credit support
such as remedies for recovery in evaluating the
adequacy of ECL allowance made by the Group
for material loans and advances to customers
classified as Stage 3; and

Ritfih EXEHBAZSEERNGTERPNE
RERKBHAERRERBELARER 2 LK -
AEEAD  BRIEMEAEEFHF (kKO
WREBNEEFEEREE R

evaluating whether the disclosures on ECLs
for loans and advances to customers meet the
disclosure requirements of prevailing accounting
standards.
TEETEFHNERRBANERERERKE
REAMARITEAERIRERE -
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Key audit matters (continued) BRETTSE®

Valuation of Level 3 financial instruments

EZREMITAMKE

Refer to note 39 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 137 to 171.
FRRG S BIRAN TR E137E17T1EA BT HE °

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

BREETER ZERERMNESHROMTEHH

As at 31 December 2023, the fair value of the Group’s | Our audit procedures to the fair value of level 3
financial assets and financial liabilities at level 3 amounted | financial instruments included the following:

to HK$10,398 million and HK$7,511 million, presenting | RfIFE =AM T AR FEMNETEFEE TIIFE
15% and 17% of the Group’s financial assets and financial

liabilities measured at fair value. * assessing the design, implementation and

MN2o023%E12A318 ) EEBEE =L REERSHERE operating effectiveness of key internal controls

MAFES R AE10,308BEBTRISITEEST H & over the valuation of level 3 financial instruments;

EERATES BNAREERSRABHNISWR17% - | * Ars—ReRTARBENRRANBZHOR
AT BT

The valuation of the Group’s level 3 financial instruments
is based on a combination of market data and valuation
models which often require judgement.
EEEE=ReRmITAMEDENREMZEERMEEER
iR ZRME LB EHEEELHE -

o reading investment agreements for level 3
financial instruments to understand the relevant
investments terms and identify any conditions
that were relevant to the valuation of these
financial instruments;

_ _ , e MEF=-ReMIAEREWRZNATREBIRE K

Some of the inputs used in the valuation models are % R B S 4 B T A (A A8 B B 4E ] 161

obtained from readily available data in liquid markets.

Where such observable data is not readily available, as in
the case of level 3 financial instruments, estimates need to
be developed which can involve significant management
judgement.

HERAUMBE TEABE DB RS MISREAISRIESD
BE-MEBABERBBLREASE MBEE=AcH
TEZER  BIZEELMGE  ETF@SREREREHE -
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Key audit matters (continued)
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BRETEE )

Valuation of Level 3 financial instruments

EZREMITAMKE

Refer to note 39 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 137 to 171.

BRI A R AN GE3IR FE137E171 B NS K °

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

REHEEREMNFSF PR ONMAESE N

We identified assessing the fair value of level 3 financial
instruments as a key audit matter because of the degree of
complexity involved in valuing these financial instruments
and the significant degree of judgement exercised by
management in determining the inputs used in the
valuation models.
BMETHRE=ZRemITAEATFTEIN A —HHAREASF
B HRZEeRmIAGAERAEMEEFTHEREMA
BABBAERREEHERHE -

engaging our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in performing independent valuation
of certain level 3 financial instruments where
appropriate and compare their valuation with
the Group’s valuation. This included comparing
the valuation derived from the Group’s valuation
models with our knowledge of current market
practice, testing inputs to the fair value
calculations and establishing our own valuation
models to perform revaluations. If the valuation
is determined based on recent transaction
price, we evaluated the appropriateness of
management assessment and verified the
transaction price with supporting documents. For
unlisted fixed income securities and unlisted fund
investments, we also assessed the quality and
sufficiency of the collaterals where appropriate;
and
ZREMABEEZRBIEMEETE=ZR
TRIAETEYGE (WER) YKZFHE
B EXEEMAEETLER HWEeREt 5E5E
EE R A P15 % (8 82 3 P39 2 A T 5 18 1 &) &0
FBoARARTFEAERABBRRIHME F
EEEETER - MEENERITIHRRSGERE
EBMAFAGEREBETHNGEE RBEBEIFX
HzBm R ERE o HNIE EE T W E 5 R IE
FHEERE  ZMTTEERARzmE RIS
Fr(EA) s &
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Key audit matters (continued)

BRETEE )

Valuation of Level 3 financial instruments

EZREMITAMKE

Refer to note 39 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 137 to 171.

BRI A R AN GBI FE137E 1718 A S 5B &

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

REHEEREMNFSF PR ONMAESE N

assessing the appropriateness of the use of
the net asset value provided by external fund
administrators as the fair value of the level 3
financial instruments at reporting date. For the
valuation of fund interests we compared the fair
value adopted by the Group to the latest reported
net asset values from the fund managers, and
obtained the audited financial statements of the
funds where applicable to check the historical
accuracy of the reported net asset values; and
AHERRE B REININSESEREMREEES
EREFEF=FcsMIAATENGHEE - HNE
THERMAE BHMAE EEERANQATFESRE
TERERENGHEREEFEETHL &
RISESORERMBHRE (WER) B2
BEFERBEEREME &

assessing the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.
TEFEEMBRRARE  ETF2ERHTEFE
AR E °
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Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the CO and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% AR

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 405 of the CO, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% AR

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continueq)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% AR

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continueq)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ko Sze Man.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEEaREMEERE R

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12831HIEFE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FBET T
Revenue PN 5 3,217,372 2,314,917
Other income H fth Yo 2 12,722 12,686
Revenue and other income WA R Bt i 2= 3,230,094 2,327,603
Staff costs 8 TR 6 (781,340) (721,499)
Commission to account executives EEFEHEE (122,538) (134,120)
Depreciation e (85,352) (78,077)
Net impairment charge FORE R (59,490) (153,972)
Other operating expenses H A& & (494,952) (536,614)
Operating profit £ 5 ) 1,686,422 708,321
Finance costs A& A AR (1,495,006) (676,664)
Profit before tax B 356 B g A1 8 191,416 26,657
Income tax credit FTiEmiE % 9 14,689 56,385
Profit for the year F R F 206,105 83,042
Other comprehensive income for the year, FRE 2 HKH -
net of tax HIBRBE
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently H&ZRAIgEEF DB =B M
to profit and loss: HH :
— Investments at fair value through other —EBAVEFGFAHEMEE
comprehensive income W as R & 4,741 (1,053)
— Exchange difference on translation of — I FE W, ZE HE
foreign exchange 5,750 (43,144)
10,491 (44,197)
ltem that will not be reclassified to profit and A& EFHHIEEERY
loss: ==
— Investments at fair value through other —BAFEFAEMEER
comprehensive income W R & 9,284 (4,998)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAZHEWFZEEE 225,880 33,847
Profit for the year attributable to: EEFERER :
Owners of the Company KRARIHER A 201,261 80,381
Non-controlling interests FE 2 B A 2 4,844 2,661
206,105 83,042
Total comprehensive income for the EBhAERAEZERZEE:
year attributable to:
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIE =N 223,852 33,928
Non-controlling interests 1 IR 2,028 (81)
225,880 33,847
Earnings per Share attributable to ordinary B AT EERBRRELEER
equity holders of the parent b
— Basic (in HK cents) —E AR (ABIED) 11(a) 2.1 0.8
— Diluted (in HK cents) — 58 (UBILED) 11(b) 2.1 0.8
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B AR &R

As at 31 December 2023
H2023%12831H

2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI BB R 12 433,910 478,689
Goodwill and other intangible assets EENEMEREE 13 22,886 22,886
Other assets Hh&E 14 18,961 13,680
Deferred tax assets RIETIE & & 15 277,892 244,068
Derivative financial instruments TESmIA 21 323,154 577,055
Financial assets at fair value through EAFEFAERHN
profit or loss TREE 20 16,645,948 15,445,877
— Financial assets held for trading and —RBEEBREKED
investments TREE 1,825,052 1,769,013
— Financial products — S BE®R 14,820,896 13,676,864
Total non-current assets FREBEEHLE 17,722,751 16,782,255
Current assets RENEE
Loans and advances to customers BTFTREFPHER IR 16 5,761,594 6,391,369
Accounts receivable J& W K IE 18 8,391,475 5,641,386
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FEfTFIE « £ & &
E h fE W k1B 19 219,685 212,984
Financial assets at fair value through EAFEFAERZH
profit or loss TRLEE 20 51,413,001 41,928,120
- Financial assets held for trading and —RBEEBRKED
investments TREE 17,698,760 9,666,306
— Financial products — & BE®m 33,714,241 32,261,814
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFEFAEMEE
other comprehensive income WHHEREE 20 446,604 82,304
Derivative financial instruments TEEmT A 21 1,612,106 1,527,458
Receivable from reverse repurchase [ 1) 1B B 175 2k B W SR OB
agreements 22 739,579 586,845
Tax recoverable AJ U Bl B 18 70,525 198,764
Client trust bank balances B ERITAR 23 13,750,018 13,347,021
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEEY 23 7,407,815 7,756,580
Total current assets MEEERRE 89,812,402 77,672,831
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B AR &R

As at 31 December 2023
H2023%12831H

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B oE FE T THBT
Current liabilities REAaE
Accounts payable JE < 7R 3B 24 (18,048,359)  (16,726,328)
Other payables and accrued liabilities HhENRERETAE 25 (654,141) (602,958)
Derivative financial instruments PTETRTE 21 (1,396,383) (1,297,531)
Interest bearing borrowings TR B 26 (9,935,696) (9,333,620)
Debt securities in issue EETEBRES 27 (81,427,498)  (28,719,537)
— At amortised cost — FR 8 SR AR (2,808,810) (3,784,775)
— Designated at fair value through —ETEERAFEFABR
profit or loss (28,618,688) (24,934,762)
Financial liabilities at fair value through EAFEFAEBEHN
profit or loss TRAE 28 (2,432,272) (2,108,386)
Obligations under repurchase agreements [B] 85 = (R 1R 29 (14,027,595) (7,695,073)
Tax payable FET A IR (4,574) (8,917)
_Total current liabilities nBaEe®E (77,926,518) _ (66,492,350)
_Netcurrentassets nBKEFE 11885884 11,180,481
_Total assets less current liabilites RERERRBRAM 29608635 27,962,736
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIE B E 15 (9,506) (10,736)
Interest bearing borrowings B ER 26 (8,725) (15,387)
Derivative financial instruments PTESRMTE 21 (297,192) (231,686)
Debt securities in issue BEETEBES 27 (14,336,214)  (12,768,731)
— At amortised cost — FREE SH X AR (3,144,937) (3,138,860)
— Designated at fair value through —BEZAFEFAER
profit or loss (11,191,277) (9,629,871)
_Total non-current liabilites *rpameE 0 (14,646,637) _ (13,026,540)
Net assets EEFE 14,961,998 14,936,196
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B AR &R

As at 31 December 2023
H2023%12831H

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET TR
Equity Rz
Share capital [N 30 10,911,163 10,911,163
Other reserve H b s 32 (1,236,460) (1,236,460)
Currency translation reserve BN R 5,242 (3,324)
Share option reserve B 31 19,432 26,132
Investment revaluation reserve "B S hHREE 32 4,893 (4,998)
Retained profits IR B8 4 F 5,135,203 5,114,186
Equity attributable to holders of the Shares A% ER JE {5 # 25 14,839,473 14,806,699
Non-controlling interests JEIE S i = 122,525 129,497
Total equity ERAE 14,961,998 14,936,196

Dr. YIM Fung

Ms. QI Haiying

BigE L PBELZ L
Director Director

EF EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREEH X
Year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

Investment
Investment revaluation

Currency Share revaluation reserve Non-
Share Other translation option  Retained reserve (non- controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve profits  (recycling)  recycling) Total interests equity
REER REEfM
KRR e "
RA  HtRE E BRERE /REEY (78®) (FUa®E) ar FEREE B4R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TER TER TER FER TER TER FER TER TER
Balance at 31 December 2021 R2021412A318 &k
and 1 January 2022 202261 A1BMES 10,911,163  (1,236,460) 37,078 27,429 5,567,098 1,058 - 15,307,361 129,578 15,436,939
Total comprehensive income for ~ F R 2 W& 458
the year - - (40,402) - 80,381 (1,053) (4,998 33,928 81 33,847
Recognition of equity settled R MBS A E AR
share-based payments BERHNT
(notes 31) (FizE31) - = = 417 = = = 417 = M7
Transfer of share option BREXRMER
reserve upon the forfeiture BREREE
of share options - - - (1,714) 1,714 - - - - -
Share repurchase RpEE - - - - (56,969) - - (56,969) - (56,969)
Final dividend for 2021 2021 ERER B
(note 10) (FizE10) = - - - (95,878) = = (95,878) = (95,878)
Interim dividend for 2022 2022F F ER 8
(note 10) (F&E10) = - - - (382,160 - - (382,160) - (382,160)
Balance at 31 December 2022 7820224612431 H &)
&8 10,911,163 (1,236,460 (3,324) 26,132 5,114,186 - (4,998) 14,806,699 129,497 14,936,196
Balance at 31 December 2022 720224128310 &
and 1 January 2023 20231 A1BMEH 10,911,163  (1,236,460) (3,324) 26,132 5,114,186 - (4,998) 14,806,699 129,497 14,936,196
Total comprehensive income FREERELEE
for the year - - 8,566 - 201,261 4,741 9,284 223,852 2,028 225,880
Disposal of equity investments REERBRE - - - - 4,134 - (4,134) - - -
Transfer of share option G TG
reserve upon the forfeiture B ARIE G
of share options - - - (6,700) 6,700 - - - - -
Share repurchase e - - - - - - - - - -
Final special dividend for 2022 2022 R BB E
(note 10) (Ki510) - - - - (95,539 - - (95539 - (95,539)
Interim dividend for 2023 2023F R ER 8
(note 10) (Ki3t10) - - - - (95,539 - - (95539 - (95,539)
Dividend paid to non-controllng  EIFEERREZIR S H)
interest 1) - - - - - - - - (9,000 (9,000
Balance at 31 December 2023 142023%F12A31H &)
g 10,911,163  (1,236,460) 5,242 19,432 5,135,203 4,741 152 14,839,473 122,525 14,961,998
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REEHERER

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12831HIEFE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FBET T
Net cash flows from operating activities KEFZHFAEReREFE 35 (4,906,371) 1,663,221
Cash flows from investing activities RETBHEERE
Purchases of intangible assets BEELEE - -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment B EYH¥ - KE K& E 12 (32,670) (39,296)
_Net cash flows used in investing activities ~ REEBBARemEFE (32,670) | (39,296)
Cash flows from financing activities MEITBRERE
Net proceed of bank borrowings SRITIE R ATIS I F 58 612,324 3,998,436
Proceeds from issuance of debt securities BITEE B SIS RIE 84,715,981 81,830,235
Repayment of debt securities EREKRS (80,508,594) (84,463,134)
Dividend paid to shareholders and ) A% B8 K2 JE4% A 8 25 R 5 Y
non-controlling interest % 2 10 (200,078) (478,038)
Principal portion of lease payments HE H XA € 7B (34,155) (27,303)
Interest portion of lease payments HENZHOFEZH (1,168) (1,359)
Repurchase of Shares o] B8 f% 15 30 - (56,969)
_Net cash flows from financing activities REEDMEREREFE 4584310 801,868
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and iﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%@%
cash equivalents W) R (354,731) 2,425,793
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of E%ﬂﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%
year 7,537,316 5,154,748
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [ERZ&hH) & 2358 5,781 (43,090)
Effect of impairment provision on cash and  JREBEHIR S KR & (B
cash equivalents, net VIR R &5 58 (37) (135)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FREERBEESZEY 7,188,329 7,537,316




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12831HIEFE
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2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FBET T
Analysis of balances of cash and REeRESZEYN
cash equivalents EER DT
Cash and bank balances & RIRITAEER 23 6,474,841 7,478,709
Non-pledged time deposits with original GFREREHETE=MA
maturity of less than three months /2R 45 38 TF BB 17 3K
when acquired 23 713,488 58,607
Cash and cash equivalents as stated inthe #ZAEERERIZ
consolidated statement of cash flows HeRRESEEY 7,188,329 7,537,316
Non-pledged time deposits with original FHEEREE B BB
maturity more than three months but less =@A - BETR—FH
than one year when acquired REFRE TR 23 219,486 219,264
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the %A B EARRA KA Z
consolidated statement of financial position  R& &KIBELEEY 7,407,815 7,756,580
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 5 ¥R 3R B &

31 December 2023
2023%F12A31H

Corporate and group information

The Company was incorporated on 8 March 2010 in Hong Kong
with limited liability under the CO and its Shares were listed on the
Stock Exchange on 8 July 2010. The registered office address of
the Company is 27th Floor, Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza,
181 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company is an
investment holding company and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in brokerage, corporate finance, asset management, loans
and financing, financial products, market making and investments.

The Company’s immediate holding company and ultimate holding
company are GTJA Financial incorporated in Hong Kong and GTJA
incorporated in the PRC, respectively.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2023 are
as follows:

RAREEEHR

KR A AR2010F3A8H R IEL(A
REINEEBFMALZBERA
A AR A 8D R201067 A8H
FEBRFT ET o KRR M EE
Wit A EBEF KNEF1815
LIRS R E27IE - KRR ARE
ZERAR - HNBAREZEREL
Lo ERE - BEEEE BEXRK
BE - SRER - MmRIEEER -

AREHEZEER AR RELER
DA D Bl A 8 R AR S B B 3R
=gt YN QIS E I R Y AVAS TR
B

A2023FE12A31H T EZME R A
MFFBEOT

Percentage of equity

Place of attributable to the Company
incorporation ARAEEREE A
Company name and business Share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
AEER AMAIRBE LT KA B BE FEEE
Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Samoa/Hong Kong  US$816,300,000 100% - Provision of general administration
Limited and support services to its fellow
subsidiaries
BRER (BA)ERAH BEG/ER 816,300,0005 7 100% - HARZNBARRE-REER
< ER%
Guotai Junan International Singapore $G$9,300,000 100% - Provision of general administration and
(Singapore) Pte. Limited support services to its subsidiaries
AR 9,300,000%7 M3 7T 100% - MEMBRAARE-KREER
< ER%
Guotai Junan International Singapore SG$21,703,325 100% - Asset management
Asset Management (Singapore)
Pte. Limited
FimIbs 21,703,3253 IN3K T 100% - EEEE
Guotai Junan International Singapore SG$34,130,819 100% - Securities brokerage and other financial
Securities (Singapore) services
Pte. Limited
% 34,130,8195T M 1T 100% - BFREREMSRRE
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31 December 2023
2023%F12A31H

1. Corporate and group information (continued) 1.

Percentage of equity
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AAIREBEER »

Place of attributable to the Company
incorporation AAREGERERD L
Company name and business Share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
AABR SRR EERE RA Ei M TEER
Guotai Junan Securities Hong Kong HK$7,500,000,000 100% - Securities dealing and broking and
(Hong Kong) Limited provision of wealth management
services
AREREH (BB ERAT BB 7,500,000,000 70 100% - BARHREBIRREHEEERY
Guotai Junan Futures Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 100% - Futures dealing and broking
(Hong Kong) Limited
AREZHE (BB ERAA BB 50,000,000/ ¢ 100% - BREERAR
Guotai Junan Finance Hong Kong HK$300,000,000 100% - Trading in securities
(Hong Kong) Limited
ARELRHE (BE)BRAA BE 300,000,000/ 7T 100% - BZHEE
Guotai Junan Capital Limited Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 100% - Provision of consultancy and financial
services
BREZHEBRDA BE 50,000,000 7 100% - REFARMBRE
Guotai Junan Assets (Asia) Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 100% - Asset management
Limited
BREREEERE(TH) D 50,000,000 7T 100% - AEER
BRAR
Guotai Junan Fund Management ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 50% - Asset management and trading in
Limited® securities
BFERACERERLA Bt 10,000,000 7% 50% - BEEBRABSEE
Guotai Junan Financial Products ~ Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% - Trading in securities
Limited
BREZeRERERAF BB 1,000,000 7T 100% - BHEE
Guotai Junan FX Limited Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 100% - Leveraged foreign exchange dealing
and broking
BRERHNEBRAT 0 30,000,000% 7T 100% - BERANERZRER
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 5 ¥R 3R B &

31 December 2023
2023%F12A31H

1. Corporate and group information (continued) 1. REAIREEER @®
Percentage of equity
Place of attributable to the Company
incorporation AAREGERERD L
Company name and business Share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
ARER AMEIREERT RE B BiE TEEER
Guotai Junan Securities Vietnam VND693,500 million - 50.97%  Securities dealing and broking and
(Vietnam) Corporation margin financing
BREZRTH (B RHAA  BE 693,500,000,000 % /& - 5097% RHERH BERARRE
Guotai Junan Securities (Macau) ~ Macao MOP100,000,000 100% - Securities dealing and broking and
Company Limited provision of wealth management
services
AREZES RF) —AGRAR &P 100,000,0002 ¢ 100% - BERHREBIRREHEERRE
Guotai Junan Asia Dynamic Fund ~ Cayman Islands Note 1 = 100%  Investment holding
REHS izt - 100% REAR
Guotai Junan Asia Investment Cayman Islands Note 1 - 66%  Investment holding
Grade Bond Fund SP
HEHE izt - 66% RARK
Guotai Junan Value Vintage Equity Cayman Islands Note 1 - 100%  Investment holding
Feeder Fund
REis Mzt - 100% REHER
Guotai Junan International Private  Cayman Islands Note 1 = 100%  Investment holding
Equity Fund SPC
RE®S FisE - 100% REZK
Guotai Junan Greater China Hong Kong Note 1 - 55%  Investment holding
Growth Fund
ARERAFELRES EE Mt - 56% B

Note 1:  These consolidated investment funds are subsidiaries for the purpose of MizEl : B EMBRADKEE TS @ %F
Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules. These consolidated investment funds are FARBESENB AR « 2EF4R
not body corporates and therefore do not have any share capital. EREESWIEAREEE Bt

TEBEABRAE -

Note 2:  The Group considers that it has the ability to govern the financial and fizx2: HRAEBEENZFIE
operating policies of the entity as the Group has the power to appoint or BEEeAZHKE E&$
remove the majority of the members of board of directors of the entity. AREABRNEEZEEN EM‘“&“

EHUR ©

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the EREINAEERRYANFEEAE

opinion of the Group, principally affected the results for the year EETE ?é% HEXAEEEETF

or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To BEXELOZZARAMBAR - &K

give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Group, £ E wu75'.'r FIHEAMME AR 2 &

result in particulars of excessive length. HeEB R EANITE -
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2.1

Corporate and group information (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has fully
redeemed the participating shares in Guotai Junan Asia High
Income Bond Fund SP and Guotai Junan Thematic Fund SPC —
GTJA China Dynamic Bond Fund and therefore lost control over
these structured entities.

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board on 26 March 2024.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs (which include all applicable HKFRSs, HKASs and
Interpretations) issued by the HKICPA and the CO. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Listing Rules. Material accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed below. The consolidated financial statement
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, debt securities in issue designated at fair value through
profit or loss and derivative financial instruments which have been
measured at fair value.

These financial statements are presented in HK$ and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise stated.

1.

2.1
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21 REEE )

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 20283. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary (without a loss of control) is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to
current year’s presentation.
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and

disclosures
() New and amended HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA to these financial statements for the

current accounting period:

o HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts

o Amendments to HKAS 8, Accounting policies, changes
in accounting estimates and errors: Definition of

accounting estimates

o Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Making
materiality judgements: Disclosure of accounting policies

° Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: Deferred tax
related to assets and liabilities arising from a single

transaction

o Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: International

tax reform — Pillar Two model rules

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.
Impacts of the adoption of the amended HKFRSs are

discussed below:
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

(i)

New and amended HKFRSs (continued)
HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts

HKFRS 17, which replaces HKFRS 4, sets out the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure requirements
applicable to issuers of insurance contracts. The standard
does not have a material impact on these financial statements
as the Group does not have contracts within the scope of
HKFRS 17.

Amendments to HKAS 8, Accounting policies, changes
in accounting estimates and errors: Definition of
accounting estimates

The amendments provide further guidance on the distinction
between changes in accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates. The amendments do not have a
material impact on these financial statements as the Group’s
approach in distinguishing changes in accounting policies
and changes in accounting estimates is consistent with the
amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Making
materiality judgements: Disclosure of accounting
policies

The amendments require entities to disclose material
accounting policy information and provide guidance on
applying the concept of materiality to accounting policy
disclosure. The Group has revisited the accounting policy
information it has been disclosing and considered it is
consistent with the amendments.
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

(i)

New and amended HKFRSs (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: Deferred tax
related to assets and liabilities arising from a single
transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exemption such that it does not apply to transactions that
give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences on
initial recognition such as leases and decommissioning
liabilities. For leases and decommissioning liabilities, the
associated deferred tax assets and liabilities are required to
be recognised from the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented, with any cumulative effect recognised as an
adjustment to retained earnings or other components of equity
at that date. For all other transactions, the amendments are
applied to those transactions that occur after the beginning of
the earliest period presented.

The amendments do not have a material impact on these
financial statements as the Group claims tax deduction for
the purpose of Hong Kong Profits Tax on the basis of lease
expenses recognised in profit or loss in accordance with
HKFRS 16 and therefore there is no temporary differences
associated with its right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

(i)

New and amended HKFRSs (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: International
tax reform — Pillar Two model rules

The amendments introduce a temporary mandatory exception
from deferred tax accounting for the income tax arising from
Pillar Two Income Taxes, including tax laws that implement
qualified domestic minimum top-up taxes described in those
rules. The amendments also introduce disclosure requirements
about such tax including the estimated tax exposure to Pillar
Two Income Taxes.

The Group has not yet applied the temporary exception during
the current year because the entities comprising the Group are
operating in jurisdictions in which the Pillar Two tax law has
not yet been enacted or substantively enacted. The Group will
disclose known or reasonably estimable information related to
its exposure to Pillar Two Income Taxes in the consolidated
financial statements by the time when the Pillar Two tax law
has been enacted or substantively enacted and will disclose
separately the current tax expense or income related to Pillar
Two Income Taxes when it is in effect.
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and

disclosures (continued)

(i) New HKICPA guidance on the accounting

implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism

In June 2022, the Hong Kong SAR Government gazetted
the Amendment Ordinance, which will come into effect from
1 May 2025. Once the Amendment Ordinance takes effect,
an employer can no longer use any of the accrued benefits
derived from its mandatory contributions to MPF Scheme
to reduce the LSP in respect of an employee’s service. In
addition, the LSP in respect of the service before 1 May 2025
will be calculated based on the employee’s monthly salary
immediately before 1 May 2025 and the years of service up to
that date.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting implications
of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in
Hong Kong” that provides accounting guidance relating to the
abolition of the offsetting mechanism in accordance with the
Amendment Ordinance. In particular, the guidance indicates
that entities may account for the accrued benefits derived
from mandatory MPF contributions that are expected to be
used to reduce the LSP payable to an employee as deemed
contributions by that employee towards the LSP.

However, applying this approach, upon the enactment of
the Amendment Ordinance in June 2022, it is no longer
permissible to apply the practical expedient in paragraph
93(b) of HKAS 19 that previously allowed such deemed
contributions to be recognised as reduction of service
cost (negative service cost) in the period the contributions
were made; instead these deemed contributions should be
attributed to periods of service in the same manner as the
gross LSP benefit.
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and

disclosures (continued)

(i) New HKICPA guidance on the accounting

implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism (continued)

To better reflect the impact of the Amendment Ordinance, the
Group has changed its accounting policy in connection with
its LSP liability and has applied the above HKICPA guidance
retrospectively. The cessation of applying the practical
expedient in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 in conjunction with
the enactment of the Amendment Ordinance resulted in a
catch-up profit or loss adjustment in June 2022 for the service
cost up to that date and consequential impacts on current
service cost, interest expense and remeasurement effects
from changes in actuarial assumptions for the rest of 2022,
with the corresponding adjustment to the comparative carrying
amount of the LSP liability. This change in accounting policy
did not have any material impact on the opening balance of
equity at 1 January 2022, and the cash flows and earnings
per share amounts for the year ended 31 December 2022.
It also did not have a material impact on the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022 and
31 December 2023.
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23 EREFHE

2.3 Material accounting policies

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, debt securities in issue designated at
fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments,
fund investments, debt investments and equity investments at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, (or in the
absence of a principal market) in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 1 -

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable (either
directly or indirectly)

Level 3 — pased on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than financial
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
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2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 25-40 years
Leasehold improvements 3 years
Office equipment 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 3 years
Motor vehicles 3 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and
the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land
Building

25 to 40 years
1 to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

The Group’s right-of-use assets are included in property, plant
and equipment.
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2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

()

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease (if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising the option to terminate). The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

The Group’s lease liabilities are included in interest bearing
borrowings.
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2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

23 EREFTHE

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)
(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of property and office equipment (that
is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the recognition exemption for leases
of low-value assets to leases of office equipment and laptop
computers that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and
non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent
rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks and
rewards incidental to of ownership of an underlying assets to the
lessee Group (other than legal title, are accounted for as finance
leases.
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2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups
of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of
units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost. The
useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed
at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets, representing eligibility rights to trade on or
through the Stock Exchange and The Hong Kong Futures Exchange
Limited, with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level.
These intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an
intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Financial assets and liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset.
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2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset or
financial liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a
financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are incremental and directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability,
such as fees and commissions. Transaction costs of financial assets
and financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss
are expensed in profit or loss. Immediately after initial recognition,
an ECL allowance is recognised for financial assets measured at
amortised cost and investments in debt instruments measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income, which results in an
accounting loss being recognised in profit or loss when an asset is
newly originated.

When the fair value of financial assets and liabilities differs from the
transaction price on initial recognition, the entity recognises the
difference as follows:

(i) When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an
active market for an identical asset or liability (i.e. a Level 1
input) or based on a valuation technique that uses only data
from observable markets, the difference is recognised as a
gain or loss.

(i) In all other cases, the difference is deferred and the
timing of recognition of deferred day one profit or loss is
determined individually. It is either amortised over the life of
the instrument, deferred until the instrument’s fair value can
be determined using market observable inputs, or realised
through settlement.
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2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a) Financial assets

(1)

Classification and subsequent measurement

The Group’s financial assets include accounts receivable,
deposits and other receivables, loans and advances to
customers, client trust bank balances, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income, receivable
from reverse repurchase agreements, derivative financial
instruments, other assets and cash and cash equivalent.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 and classifies its
financial assets in the following measurement categories:

(i) fair value through profit or loss;

(i)  fair value through other comprehensive income; or

(i) Amortised cost.

The classification requirements for debt and equity
instruments are described below:

Debt instruments
Classification and subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depend on:

()  the Group’s business model for managing the
asset; and;

(i)  the cash flows characteristics of the asset.
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2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(a) Financial assets (continued)

()  Classification and subsequent measurement

(continued)
Debt instruments (continued)
Business model assessment:

The business model reflects how the Group manages
the assets in order to generate cash flows. That is,
whether the Group’s objective is solely to collect the
contractual cash flows from the assets or is to collect
both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising
from the sale of assets. If neither of these is applicable
(e.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes),
then the financial assets are classified as part of ‘other’
business model and measured at fair value through profit
or loss. Factors considered by the Group in determining
the business model for a group of assets include past
experience on how the cash flows for these assets were
collected, how the asset’s performance is evaluated
and reported to key management personnel, how risks
are assessed and managed and how managers are

compensated.
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2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a) Financial assets (continued)

(i)

Classification and subsequent measurement
(continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

SPPI test:

The Group assesses the contractual terms of instruments
to identify whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI.
Financial assets that are consistent with a basic lending
arrangement are considered to meet the SPPI criterion.
In a ‘basic lending arrangement’, consideration for
the time value of money and credit risk are typically
the most significant elements of interest. It may also
include consideration for other basic lending risks such
as liquidity risks, costs associated with holding the
financial assets for a period of time (e.g., servicing or
administrative costs) and a profit margin.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest.
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2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(a) Financial assets (continued)

()  Classification and subsequent measurement

(continued)
Debt instruments (continued)
SPPI test: (continued)

Based on these factors, the Group classifies its debt
instruments into one of the following three measurement

categories:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
SPPI, and that are not designated at fair value through
profit or loss, are measured at amortised cost. The
carrying amount of these assets is adjusted by any ECL
allowance recognised and measured as described in
note 2.3(a)(ii). Interest income from these financial assets
is included in ‘Interest income from customers and
counterparty financing’ and ‘Interest income from banks
and others’ using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income:
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Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent SPPI, and that are not designated
at fair value through profit or loss, are measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income.
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2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(a) Financial assets (continued)

()  Classification and subsequent measurement

(continued)
Debt instruments (continued)
SPPI test: (continued)

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not
meet the criteria for amortised cost or fair value
through other comprehensive income are measured
at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on
a debt investment that is subsequently measured at
fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a
hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss and
presented in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income within ‘Net trading gain/loss from
debt securities market making’ in the period in which
it arises. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in “Interest income from market making
debt securities’ and ‘Interest income from fixed income
securities” using the effective interest rate method.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes. The reclassification takes place from the start
of the first reporting period following the change. Such
changes are expected to be very infrequent and none

occurred during the period.
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2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(a) Financial assets (continued)

()  Classification and subsequent measurement

(continued)
Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the
definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective; that is,
instruments that do not contain a contractual obligation
to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the
issuer’s net assets. Examples of equity instruments

include basic ordinary shares.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss, except where the
Group’s management has elected, at initial recognition,
to irrevocably designate an equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income. The Group’s
policy is to designate equity investments as fair value
through other comprehensive income when those
investments are held for purposes other than to generate
investment returns. When this election is used, fair value
gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income and are not subsequently reclassified to profit
or loss, including on disposal. Impairment losses
(and reversal of impairment losses) are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value. Dividends,
when represent a return on such investments, continue
to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Gains and losses on equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss are included in the ‘Investments
— fixed income securities, funds, derivatives and equity
investments’ line in the statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income.
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2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(a) Financial assets (continued)
(i) ECL allowance

The Group applies a simplified approach to measure ECL
on trade receivable and a general approach to measure
ECL on loans and advances to customers, time deposits
and other financial assets accounted for at amortised

cost as well as loan commitment.

Under the simplified approach, the Group measures the
loss based on lifetime ECL. Under the general approach,
financial assets migrate through the following three
stages based on the change in credit risk since initial

recognition:

Stage 1: 12-month ECL

For exposures where there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that
are not credit-impaired upon origination, the portion
of the lifetime ECL associated with the probability of
default events occurring within the next 12 months is

recognised.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired

For exposures where there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are
not credit-impaired, a lifetime ECL (i.e. reflecting the
remaining lifetime of the financial asset) is recognised.
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2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a) Financial assets (continued)

(i)

ECL allowance (continued)
Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired

Exposures are assessed as credit-impaired when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred.
For exposures that have become credit-impaired,
a lifetime ECL is recognised and interest revenue is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost (net of provision) rather than the gross
carrying amount.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk for
exposures since initial recognition by comparing the
risk of default occurring over the expected life between
the reporting date and the date of initial recognition.
The Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort for this purpose. This includes quantitative
and qualitative information and also, forward-looking
analysis. For certain portfolio of margin loans, the Group
rebuts the presumption that there have been significant
increases in credit risk since initial recognition when
financial assets are more than 30 DPD as management
considers the probability of default is highly correlated
with the collateral value rather than the past due days.
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2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a) Financial assets (continued)

(i)

ECL allowance (continued)
Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired (continued)

The Group assesses whether the credit risk on an
exposure has increased significantly on an individual
or collective basis. For the purposes of a collective
evaluation of impairment, financial instruments
are grouped on the basis of shared credit risk
characteristics, taking into account instrument type,
remaining term to maturity and other relevant factors.

The amount of ECL is measured as the probability-weighted
present value of all cash shortfalls over the expected life
of the financial asset discounted at its original effective
interest rate. The cash shortfall is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Company and
all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive.
The amount of the loss is recognised using a provision for
doubtful debts account.

If, in a subsequent period, credit quality improves and
reverses any previously assessed significant increase
in credit risk since origination, then the provision for
doubtful debts reverts from lifetime ECL to 12-month
ECL.
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2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a) Financial assets (continued)
(i)  Modification of loans

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies
the contractual cash flows of loans to customers. When
this happens, the Group assesses whether or not the
new terms are substantially different to the original
terms. The Group does this by considering, among
others, the following factors:

° If the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the
modification merely reduces the contractual cash
flows to amounts the borrower is expected to be
able to pay.

° Whether any substantial new terms are introduced,
such as a profit share/equity-based return that
substantially affects the risk profile of the loan.

° Significant extension of the loan term when the
borrower is not in financial difficulty.

° Significant change in the interest rate.

° Change in the currency the loan is denominated in.

° Insertion of collateral, other security or credit

enhancements that significantly affect the credit
risk associated with the loan.
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2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a) Financial assets (continued)

(i)

Modification of loans (continued)

If the terms are substantially different, the Group
derecognises the original financial asset and recognises
a ‘new’ asset at fair value and recalculates a new
effective interest rate for the asset. The date of
renegotiation is consequently considered to be the date
of initial recognition for impairment calculation purposes,
including for the purpose of determining whether a
significant increase in credit risk has occurred. However,
the Group also assesses whether the new financial
asset recognised is deemed to be credit-impaired at
initial recognition, especially in circumstances where the
renegotiation was driven by the debtor being unable to
make the originally agreed payments. Differences in the
carrying amount are also recognised in profit or loss as
a gain or loss on derecognition.

If the terms are not substantially different, the
renegotiation or modification does not result in
derecognition, and the Group recalculates the gross
carrying amount based on the revised cash flows of
the financial asset and recognises a modification gain
or loss in profit or loss. The new gross carrying amount
is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows
at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted
effective interest rate for purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets).
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2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a) Financial assets (continued)

(iv)

Derecognition other than on a modification

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognised
when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows
from the assets have expired, or when they have been
transferred and either (i) the Group transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership, or (ii) the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and the Group has not retained
control.

The Group enters into transactions where it retains the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from assets but
assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows
to other entities and transfers substantially all of the risks
and rewards. These transactions are accounted for as
‘pass through’ transfers that result in derecognition if the
Group:

(i) has no obligation to make payments unless it
collects equivalent amounts from the assets;

(i) is prohibited from selling or pledging the assets;
and

(i) has an obligation to remit any cash it collects from
the assets without material delay.
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2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(@)

(b)

Financial assets (continued)

(iv) Derecognition other than on a modification
(continued)
Collateral (shares and bonds) furnished by the Group
under standard repurchase agreements and securities
lending and borrowing transactions is not derecognised
because the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards on the basis of the predetermined repurchase
price, and the criteria for derecognition are therefore
not met. This also applies to certain securitisation
transactions in which the Group retains a subordinated
residual interest.

Financial liabilities

Classification and subsequent measurement

In both the current and prior period, financial liabilities are
classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost,
except for:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: this
classification is applied to derivatives and financial liabilities
held for trading. Gains or losses on financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss are presented
partially in other comprehensive income (the amount of change
in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability, which is determined
as the amount that is not attributable to changes in market
conditions that give rise to market risk) and partially profit or
loss (the remaining amount of change in the fair value of the
liability). This is unless such a presentation would create, or
enlarge, an accounting mismatch, in which case the gains and
losses attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability
are also presented in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled, or
expires.
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23 EREFTHE»)

2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

Derivative financial instruments

The Group’s derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at their fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value.

Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and
as liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are taken directly to
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Whilst the Group enters into a derivative contract for trading
purposes or to provide economic hedges under the Group’s risk
management framework, it does not apply hedge accounting.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Client trust bank balances

The Group maintains trust and segregated accounts with authorised
financial institutions to hold clients’ deposits arising from normal
business transactions. The Group has classified the clients’ monies
as client trust bank balances under the current assets in the
consolidated statement of financial position as the Group is allowed
to retain some or all of the interest income on the clients’ monies
and recognised corresponding accounts payable to the respective
customers in the current liabilities clients on grounds that it is liable
for any loss or misappropriation of clients’ monies. Under the SFO
and the Hong Kong Insurance Ordinance (Cap. 41), the Group is
not allowed to use the clients’” monies to settle its own obligation.
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23 EREFTHE»)

2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

Fiduciary activities

Apart from the client trust bank balances as mentioned above, the
Group provides brokerage and asset management services and the
Group acts in a fiduciary capacity which results in the holding or
placing of assets on behalf of its customers. These assets and any
gains or losses arising thereon are not included in these financial
statements as the Group has no contractual rights to these assets
and its gains or losses under fiduciary activities.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.

Other assets

Other assets represent the deposits and admission fee paid to the
Stock Exchange, Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited, HKSCC
and other regulators. They are intended to be held on a long-term
basis and are stated at the nominal amount.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
profit or loss.
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2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

23 EREFTHE»)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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23 EREFTHE»)

2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

Provision of securities and futures brokerage services

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when the
customer has obtained control of the service, generally when the
trades are executed.

Provision of investment banking services

The performance obligation for sponsoring and certain consultancy
and financial advisory services are fulfiled when all the relevant
duties of a sponsor or a financial advisor as stated in the contract
are completed.

Depending on the nature of the services and the contract terms,
sponsor fee is recognised in profit and loss over time using a
method that depicts the Group’s performance, or at point in time
when the service is completed. Certain consultancy and financial
advisory services’ performance obligations are satisfied over time
as services are rendered if the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group.
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23 EREFTHE»)

2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Provision of asset management services

Revenue from asset management services is recognised over time
as the services are provided. Fees for asset management services
are calculated based on a fixed percentage of the value of assets
managed.

Performance fees are recognised on the performance fee valuation
day of the investment funds and managed accounts when there
is a positive performance for the relevant performance period and
it is determined that it will not result in significant reversal in a
subsequent period, taking into consideration the relevant basis of
calculation for the investment funds and managed accounts.

Fund distribution activities are separate performance obligations
from the asset management and the obligation being satisfied at
a point in time upon the investors’ subscription. Subscription and
handling fees relating to the distribution services are recognised at
a point in time when the services are performed and the amount is
known.

Provision of wealth management service

The performance obligation relating to the insurance brokerage
service is satisfied at the point when the terms of the insurance
policy have been agreed contractually by the insurer and
policyholder, and the insurer has a present right to payment from
the policyholder (the ‘transaction date’).

Revenue from other sources and other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument, to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset.
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2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

Employee benefits

(@)

(b)

(c)

Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a MPF Scheme under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Bonuses

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses,
based on an approved formula that takes into consideration
the profit attributable to the Group after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

Share-based payments

The Group operates an equity-settled share-based
compensation scheme namely Share Option Scheme for the
purpose of assisting in recruiting, retaining and motivating key
staff members. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments.

BEREZEK | 2023F3% 167

23 EREFTHE
EERF

@

(b)

()

BRI EFaT &

AEERECEHEREE
BRB) - RFABRERIR
RaFtE - RIEBESFEA
BA HERZES ENFH M
M—EBRLFE  IREE
REBDKERP IR - RESE
EMEEDUBYERES
AAEARKENEED R
B o AEEFRTE S BN
BEMHKR  ZFHFN 2R

BREEME -

TEAT
RNEEZRBRBAFE A AR
EAEREERAT &t E
FEE ERBANEEE (LR A
WEHETAE - REBRED
EEBEEENSIREEE
B NEBBREREME -

KRG 3 E 5

REERA—IRBAREE
BI—EARGERE BB K
HENRSE TBAIERT S -
AEENES (BHRES)E
FARB D A E A R A B
- &t - BB ARERS
ERERTARNRE -



168 Guotai Junan International | Annual Report 2023

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 5 ¥R 3R B &

31 December 2023
2023%F12A31H

2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(c) Share-based payments (continued)
The cost of equity-settled share-based compensation to
employees is measured by reference to the fair value at the
date at which they are granted. The cost of equity-settled
share-based compensation is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in the “share option reserve”
under equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled in share-based
compensation expense. The cumulative expense recognised
for equity-settled share-based compensation at the end of
each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a
period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

The dilutive effect (if any) of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s articles of association grant the directors
the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.
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2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

Securities borrowing and lending agreements
The Group has engaged in the securities borrowing and lending
business with financial institutions and the Group’s customers,
under which all transactions are secured in the form of cash. The
Group maintains no net position in such securities borrowing and
lending transactions and is not subject to significant price risk.
However, under the securities borrowing and lending arrangements,
the cash collateral received and cash collateral placed is included
in the accounts payable and accounts receivable from brokers
and dealers respectively. Fees received or paid in connection with
securities borrowing and lending is recorded as interest income or
interest expense, respectively.

Assets sold under repurchase agreements
(repos)

The Group may enter into repurchase agreements whereby
securities are sold to third parties with a concurrent agreement to
repurchase the securities at a specified date. The Group may be
required to provide additional collateral based on the fair value of
the underlying assets if necessary.

Assets purchased under agreements to resell
(reverse repos)

The Group may enter into purchases of assets under agreements
to resell. Reverse repos are initially recorded at the cost of the loan
or collateral advanced in the consolidated statement of financial
position. These securities are not recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position as the counterparty
retains substantially all risks and returns of the securities. In the
event of failure by the counterparty to repay the loan, the Group
has the right to the underlying assets.
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2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency rates of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the HKS$. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into HK$ at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are translated into HK$ at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the currency translation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the

Group or of a parent of the Group;
or
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2.3 Material accounting policies (continued)

()

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)

(if)

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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3.

Significant accounting judgements and
estimates

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 2, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.

Measurement of ECL
A number of significant judgements are required in applying the
accounting requirements for measuring ECL, such as:

= Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

- Selecting appropriate models and assumptions for the
measurement of ECL;

= Establishing the relative probability weightings of
forward-looking scenarios.
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3.

Significant accounting judgements and
estimates (continued)

Measurement of ECL (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

ECL of different financial assets is measured by the Group on
either a 12-month or lifetime basis depending on whether they are
in Stage 1, 2 or 3 as defined in note 2. A financial asset moves to
Stage 2 when its credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, and it comes to Stage 3 when it is credit-impaired (but
it is not purchased original credit impaired). In assessing whether
the credit risk of a financial asset has significantly increased, the
Group takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable
and supportable forward looking information with significant
judgements involved.

Models and assumptions used

The Group uses various models and assumptions in estimating
ECL. Judgement is applied in identifying the appropriate model for
each type of financial assets, as well as the assumptions used in
these models. Please refer to note 2 for more details on ECL.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial period.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
Certain financial assets are measured at fair values with fair values
being determined based on significant unobservable inputs using
valuation techniques. Judgement and estimation are required in
establishing the relevant valuation techniques and the relevant
inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors
could affect the reported fair values of these instruments. See note
39 for further disclosures.
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3.

Significant accounting judgements and
estimates (continued)

Measurement of ECL

Impairment assessment under ECL for accounts receivable
(except for secured margin loans)

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECL for the
accounts receivable (except for secured margin loans) that result
from transactions within the scope of HKFRS 15. The provision
rates are based on debtor’s aging as groupings of various debtors
that have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is based
on the Group’s historical default rates taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonable and supportable and
available without undue costs and effort. At every reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are reassessed and changes
in the forward-looking information is considered. In addition,
accounts receivable with significant balances and credit impaired
are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL is disclosed in note 2.

Impairment assessment under ECL for financial assets at amortised
cost other than accounts receivable (including debt investments
at amortised cost, secured margin loans, reverse repurchase
agreements, deposits, other receivables and bank balances) and
debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income

The impairment assessment under ECL for financial assets at
amortised cost (including debt investments at amortised cost,
secured margin loans, reverse repurchase agreements, deposits,
other receivables and bank balances) and debt investments at
fair value through other comprehensive income is an area that
requires the use of models and assumptions about future economic
conditions and the credit risk of the respective financial instruments.
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3.

Significant accounting judgements and
estimates (continued)

Measurement of ECL (continued)

Impairment assessment under ECL for financial assets at
amortised cost other than accounts receivable (including
debt investments at amortised cost, secured margin loans,
reverse repurchase agreements, deposits, other receivables
and bank balances) and debt investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income (continued)

(i)  Inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques

ECL is the discounted product of expected future cash flows
by using the Probability of Default, Loss Given Default and
Exposure at Default, of which Probability of Default and Loss
Given Default are estimates based on significant management
judgement

(i)  Forward-looking information

In measuring ECL in accordance with HKFRS 9, it should
consider forward-looking information. The calculation of ECL
incorporates forward-looking information through the use
of publicly available economic data and forecasts based
on assumptions and management judgement to reflect the
qualitative factors and through the use of multiple probability
weighted scenario. Details of the impairment assessment of
financial assets at amortised cost and debt investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income are disclosed in
note 2.

Income taxes

Deferred tax asset has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position in relation to the estimated tax losses
as at year end for subsidiaries that are expected to have taxable
profits in the future. No deferred tax asset was recognised for the
unused tax losses in respect of subsidiaries where it is not probable
that sufficient profits will be generated. Details of the tax losses and
the deferred tax are disclosed in note 15.
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4.

Operating segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the Group’s senior executive
management and in accordance with HKFRSs. The Group’s
operating businesses are structured and managed separately
according to the nature of their operations and the services they
provide. Each of the Group’s operating segments represents a
strategic business unit that offers services which are subject to
risks and returns that are different from those of the other operating
segments.

In preparing the segment information for the year ended 31
December 2023, the executive directors considered that the
business relating to wealth management, institutional investor
services, corporate finance services, investment management are
separate reportable segments.

Details of each of the operating segments are as follows:

(@)  wealth management provides comprehensive financial services
and solutions to individual investors, small to medium-sized
businesses and family office including: brokerage, loans
(mainly margin financing) and financing and other wealth
management services;

(b) institutional investor services provide market making,
investments, structured product solutions and other services
to corporations, governments and financial institutions,
and also includes Group investments to support the above
services;

(c) corporate finance services provide advisory services, placing
and underwriting services of debts and equity securities;

(d) investment management provides asset management and
fund management services to institutions and individuals, and
also includes investment in funds, debts and equity securities;
and

(e) the “others” mainly represents rental income and the provision
of information channel services.

Inter-segment transactions, if any, are conducted with reference to
the prices charged to third parties.
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4. Operating segment information (continued)

The segment results of the Group for the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2023

4, BRESHER 2
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A F20234F N2022F12A31H 1t
FE AEEHNDIBEEOT :

B £2023F12A31H L F

E
Institutional Corporate
Wealth Investor Finance Investment
Management Services Services Management Others Total
BEREE tERE
HEERE PR PR REEE Hity @t
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER
Segment revenue and other income: 2 P R E fb Ui -
Commission and fee income RekFEENS 387,449 93,916 197,690 10,519 - 689,574
Interest income M2 M E 1,434,570 370,943 - 4,641 - 1,810,154
Net trading and investment income X 5 R &F U= 33,891 545,552 - 138,201 - 717,644
Other income Hit iz - - - - 12,722 12,722
Total Bt 1,855,910 1,010,411 197,690 153,361 12,722 3,230,094
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRELATER] (B18) 398,480 251,590 (237,193) (221,461) - 191,416
Income tax credit FEHEL 14,689
Profit for the year FREM 206,105
Other segment information: Hitp#HEH
Net impairment charge on loans and 4 FRFER k2K
advances to customers FRERERE 23,984 - - - - 23,984
Net impairment charge on accounts  FEARFUE TR E &
receivable 561 460 35,212 797 - 37,030
Net impairment charge/(reversal) on  Eft 4 a4 E F R E
other financial assets B/ (BE) (1,800) (387) - 152 - (2,035)
Net impairment charge on financial ~ ZAFEFAEMEE
assets at fair value through other hEmemEET
comprehensive income VRER:L - - - 511 - 511
Depreciation ne 64,223 5,759 6,649 8,721 - 85,352
Finance costs BERA 899,752 420,133 - 175,121 - 1,495,006
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4. Operating segment information (continued) 4. BRESTHER @)
Year ended 31 December 2022 B £2022F12HA318 It F
E
Institutional Corporate
Wealth Investor Finance  Investment
Management Services Services Management Others Total
BEREE XA
HEEE k% k% BREEE Hfty @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRT FRT FTRT FRT FAT FAT
Segment revenue and other income: 2 ERULA R H k35
Commission and fee income AekFEERE 455,408 98,151 287,016 25,572 - 866,142
Interest income M B Mz 753,891 721,924 - 10,446 - 1,486,261
Net trading and investment income/ X 5 R EF W5,/

(loss) (B8) 61,972 509,434 - (608,892) - (37,486)
Other income Hiphsx - - - - 12,686 12,686
Total Feh 1,271,266 1,329,509 287,016 (672,874) 12,686 2,327,603
Profit/(loss) before taxation BB AR (B8) 519,656 415,718 (76,809) (831,908) - 26,657
Income tax credit iR iEr ) 56,385
Profit for the year FREF 83,042
Other segment information: Etrn &R -

Net impairment charge on loans and %4 FREFER KA

advances to customers FRERE 46,766 115,926 - - - 162,692
Net impairment charge/(reversal) on  FEMFEZRI(E

accounts receivable BE/ (BE) (795) (679) 4,341 5,265 - 8,132
Net impairment charge/(reversal) on  Ef & a4 EF R E

other financial assets BiE/ (BE) (4,800) (118) - 41 - (4,877)
Net impairment reversal on financial A FEFFAZMEE

assets at fair value through other WaReREEF

comprehensive income AERE - (11,975) - - - (11,975)
Depreciation & 59,055 2,936 7,435 8,651 - 78,077
Finance costs RMEKA 384,601 154,109 - 137,954 - 676,664
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4. Operating segment information (continued)

Geographical information
(a) Revenue and other income from external customers

4.
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ReEFHER 2

i i & R

(@) SMEFEPIRA KAz

2023 2022

20234 20224

HK$’000 HK$'000

FE T FHETT

Hong Kong &5 2,887,306 2,131,280
Other countries H B 342,788 196,323
3,230,094 2,327,603

The information of revenue and other income above is based
on the locations of the markets.

(b) Non-current assets
Majority of the non-current assets (excluding deferred tax
assets) of the Group are located in Hong Kong.

EXRMA R By 5 B R T iR

G E R B o

(b) FrRBEE

AEEABLERBEE (T
BREERBEEE) GURE

7 o
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5. Revenue 5. IRA
The Group’s revenue is disaggregated as follows: REEHBRADFAT
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Commission and fee income (Note (1)) e Rk EH K (1))
Brokerage (Note (3)) w40 275 (M1E(3)) 436,777 481,265
Corporate finance TERE
Placing, underwriting and A& -~ AEH R o9 A EH EY
sub-underwriting commission B< (MEEE))
(Note (3)) 141,754 233,437
Consultancy and financial advisory fee FEM KA E AR E WS
income (Note (4)) (M E(4)) 45,213 46,476
Asset management fee and performance BEEHEBRRBE NS
fee income (Note (4)) (P 3E(4)) 10,606 25,572
Handling income on financial products SRMERFEE NG
(Note (3)) (Pt 5E(3)) 55,224 79,392
689,574 866,142
Interest income (Note (2)) FIL.E Wz (B7aE2)
Interest income from customers and EPREFIRENNE
counterparty financing (Note (5)) Wz (BT =E(5)) 452,244 524,366
Interest income from banks and others $R1T M H A B 5
(Note (5)) (P =E(5)) 1,166,075 391,854
Interest income from market making debt M EIEEHF B e
securities 76,733 179,125
Interest income from fixed income & 7E Y 2 75 2 7 B W e
securities 115,102 390,916
1,810,154 1,486,261
Net trading and investment income/(loss) XEGRICEFilz~ (f1E)
(Note (2)) (Fiz(2)
Net trading income/(loss) from debt REBEBEFMTHRS
securities market making Wz (E518) F58 33,094 (189,034)
Net trading loss from fixed income KREBEK=EES - IEEH
securities, unconsolidated investment KEES TEIAER
funds, derivative and equity investments AT E KR Z 1855 (75,595) (258,873)
Net income from financial products % R E f o W E (BT REee))
(Note (6)) 760,145 410,421
717,644 (37,486)
3,217,372 2,314,917
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5.

Revenue (continued)

Note (1)

Note (2)

Note (3)

Note (4)

Note (5)

Note (6)

Revenue arising from customer contracts under HKFRS 15

Revenue arising from other sources

Commission and fee income arising from 1) brokerage, 2) placing,
underwriting and sub-underwriting commission, 3) handling income on
financial products are recognized at a point in time

Commission and fee income arising from 1) consultancy and financial
advisory fee income, 2) asset management fee and performance fee income
are recognized over time

Interest income from customers and counterparty financing and interest
income from banks and others are calculated using effective interest method

During the year ended 31 December 2023, interest income from financial
products (under “Interest income”) has been reclassified to “net income from
financial products” (under “Net trading and investment income/(loss)”).

With the diversified development of the Group’s financial products
business, the Group considers that such a classification is a better
reflection of the nature of income from financial products.

Comparative figure has been reclassified to conform to current
year’s presentation.
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6. Staff costs B I KA
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Staff costs (including directors’ BIRA(RIEEEMHS) :
remuneration):
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e - B4 MOERL 768,002 707,115
Share-based compensation expense VAR 0 & EL 1 10 5 B A 2
(note 31) (Ft5E31) - 417
Pension scheme contributions BRIRESEFEIH R 13,338 13,967
781,340 721,499
7. Finance costs ml & B Zx
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBET T
Bank borrowings and overdrafts RITEREES 572,163 136,626
Debt securities in issue BEITERES 356,775 212,954
Securities borrowing and lending BHEE 2,511 2,121
Repurchase agreements 5] HE 165 % 404,175 147,993
Lease liabilities HEBE 1,167 1,359
Accounts payable to clients BT EPRERNIE 58,466 9,235
Others H 1t 13,876 2,794
Sub-total (calculated using effective interest /Nt (R BB A =K1 5)
method) 1,409,133 513,082
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit 12 A F{Ezt A2 &l
or loss =R 85,873 163,582
1,495,006 676,664
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8. Profit before tax 8. PBRBiAIEF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): 7R &= B B BR B BT s A Th & HRL S (Bt
AN UTEERED :
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Auditor’s remuneration 1Z BT B
() audit services (i) Z=ERB 3,788 4,417
(i) interim review (iy " EAZEB 1,000 1,015
(i) Compliance and other consultancy (i) &R REMZARS
services 1,747 1,320
Other commission expenses HEAeMx 29,551 42,708
Information service expenses B AR S 48,398 49,716
Marketing, advertising and promotion MZHE BEREERE
expenses 4,361 5,913
Professional and consultancy fee BEERABE 90,309 112,502
Repair and maintenance (including system HiehtZ(BERGERE)
maintenance) 84,365 91,792
Net impairment charge on loans and advances # T & F & 3k & 8 ZUH i &
to customers B A 23,984 162,692
Net impairment charge on accounts receivable J& U4 7 T8 % 8 8 #5 1 37,030 8,132
Net impairment reversal on other financial Hh & B & BEF R ERE
assets (2,035) (4,877)
Net impairment charge/(reversal) on BAFEF A M2 S

financial assets at fair value through other " & B & BEERE
comprehensive income Bl () 511 (11,975)




184 Guotai Junan International | Annual Report 2023

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 5 ¥R 3R B &

31 December 2023
2023%F12A31H

9. Income tax credit

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2022: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong

Kong during the year.

FieHiE %

ERBFNEH IR FEANEEBELEDN
(AT BRI R AR % 16.5% (2022
F :16.5%) sHie i -

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET T
Current — Hong Kong BNE — &%

— Charge for the year —FRHAZ 27,520 60,762

— (Over)/under provision —BAFE (BRERE)
in prior years BETE (7,124) 4,397
Deferred (note 15) BT (HF7E15) (85,085) (121,544)
Total tax credit TRIBHE R B R (14,689) (56,385)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
using the statutory rate to the tax expense at the effective tax rate

HERIRER R Z R B A S F &
ZHMBERBZERRERGFE 2N

is as follows: HEBEB RN

2023 2022

20234 20224

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

Profit before tax B %4 B8 7 191,416 26,657
Tax at the statutory tax rate at 16.5% BE T E16.5%T 8 2 1B

(2022: 16.5%) (20224 : 16.5%) 31,584 4,399

(Over)/under provision in prior years BAFE (BREBE)

BiET R (7,124) 4,397

Income not subject to tax B AFHRUA (189,636) (82,595)

Expenses not deductible for tax R R 118,390 15,286

Tax losses utilised EBAHIEEE - -

Temporary difference not recognised RIERL R E5E 32,097 2,128

Tax credit for the year FRHIBIKE (14,689) (56,385)

The amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2023 was
approximately HK$182,284,000 (2022: HK$174,460).

R2023F12H31H » KERHH
TEHE B4 584 5182,284,00078 7T
(20224 : 174,460/ 7T) °
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10. Dividends 10. B &
2023
20234
HK$’000
FH& T
2023 interim dividend, paid — HK$0.01 per 2023F HHHARR B - E XN BB G
Share 0.01%& 7T 95,539
2023 final dividend, proposed — HK$0.01 per 2023F RHARR B - #REE — TG
Share 0.017%& 7T 95,539
191,078
2022
20224
HK$’000
T&T
2022 interim dividend, paid — HK$0.01 per 2022F AR HARR B B X — TR
Share 0.0178 7T 95,608
2022 interim special dividend, paid - HK$0.03 per 2022F HFHARRIAR B - B X — B
Share 150.035% 7T 286,552
2022 final special dividend, paid — HK$0.01 per 2022F REHFRIAL B - B XN — ALK
Share 150.017% 7T 95,539
477,699
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval REEFERIEARBAKREBEFAD T K

of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming AGM.

RREERRBFAG L AR
FEHEE -
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11. Earnings per share attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per Share are
based on:

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per Share

The calculation of basic earnings per Share for the year ended
31 December 2023 is based on the profit attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the Company of HK$201,261,000
(2022: HK$80,381,000) and the weighted average number
of Shares in issue of 9,553,994,707 (2022: 9,553,994,707)
during the year.

Diluted earnings per Share

The calculation of diluted earnings per Share is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent. The weighted average number of Shares used in the
calculation is the number of Shares in issue during the year,
as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive Shares.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per
Share amounts presented for the year ended 31 December
2023 and 31 December 2022 in respect of dilution as the
impact of the share option outstanding had an anti-dilutive
effect on the basic earnings per Share amount presented.
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R
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(b)

#H E2023F12831H It F
E - BREARRFTIREFA
PNl W R e
201,261,000/ JT (20224 :
80,381,000/8 7t) & B 1T i
5 hn#E F 15 #9,553,994,707
f% (20224 : 9,553,994,707

)t -
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12. Property, plant and equipment 12. 9% - RERRE
Right of use assets
kREEE
Office  Furniture Leasehold Motor Leasehold
equipment and fixtures  Buildings improvements  vehicles  Sub-total land  Buildings  Sub-total Total
BENE

BAZRE GARKE BT %f RE Mt BEL# &3 Uty &3t
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TR TR TR TET TET

31 December 2023 20235128318

As at 1 January 2023 #202351A1A
Cost KA 241,487 7,138 81,999 57,184 3,069 390,877 481,832 91,921 573,753 964,630
Accumulated depreciation 2iE (185,270) (6,768) (28,134) (50,006) (3,069)  (273,247)  (163,633) (49,061)  (212,694)  (485,941)
Net carrying amount REHE 56,217 370 53,865 7,178 - 117,630 318,199 42,860 361,059 478,689
Opening net carrying amount ENEEEE 56,217 370 53,865 7,178 - 117,630 318,199 42,860 361,059 478,689
Additions RE 27,055 182 - 5,433 - 32,670 - 12,226 12,226 44,896
Exchange realignment MEHE (61) - - 2% - 87) - 25 2 (12)
Depreciation charged during the year £ R & (34,040) 177) (2,200) (4,620) - (41,087) (12,988) (31,327) (44,315) (85,352)
Disposal HE (1,000) - - - - (1,000) - (3,311) (3,311) (4,311)
Closing net carrying amount FREEFE 48,171 375 51,665 8,015 - 108,226 305,211 20,473 325,684 433,910

As at 31 December 2023 120235128318
Cost KA 265,154 7,089 81,999 61,423 3,069 418,734 481,832 92,062 573,894 992,628
Accumulated depreciation 2iHE (216,983) (6,714) (30,334) (53,408) (3,069)  (310,508)  (176,621) (71,589)  (248,210)  (558,718)
Net carrying amount FEE 48,171 375 51,665 8,015 - 108,226 305,211 20,473 325,684 433,910
Right of use assets
RAELE
Office Furniture Leasehold Motor Leasehold
equipment  and fixtures Buildings - improvements vehicles  Sub-total land Buldings ~ Sub-total Total
HENFE

BRZHRE HKARRE g7 % Bt Nt BELH gF Uiy &t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000 - HK$'000
FHAL THL TEL TEL FHL ThL FhL THL TAL TAL

31 December 2022 2022%12/318

As at 1 January 2022 20251 81A
Cost KA 208,507 6918 81,999 52,090 3,069 352,583 481,832 91,834 573,666 926,249
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (154,542) (6,735) (25,935) (46,808) (3,069 (237,089  (150,646) (23,661)  (174,307)  (411,396)
Net carrying amount REFE 53,965 183 56,064 5,082 - 115,494 331,186 68,173 399,359 514,853
Opening net carrying amount FNREFE 53,965 183 56,064 5,282 - 115,494 331,186 68,173 399,359 514,853
Additions "E 33,920 296 - 5,083 - 39,299 - 2,699 2,699 41,998
Exchange realignment SEHE (145) - - 6) - (151) - 69 69 (82)
Depreciation charged during the year £ R & (31,520) (109) (2,199) (3,181) - (37,0000  (12,987)  (28081) (41,088  (78,077)
Disposal HeE 9 - - - - 9 - - - &)
Closing net carrying amount EREEFE 56,217 370 53,865 7,178 - 117,630 318,199 42,860 361,059 478,689

As at 31 December 2022 #2022612A31H

Cost KA 241,487 7,138 81,999 57,184 3,069 390,877 481,832 91,921 573,753 964,630
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (185,270) (6,768) (28,134) (50,006) (3,069  (278,247)  (163,633) (49,061) (212,694  (485,941)

Net carrying amount REFE 56,217 370 53,865 7178 = 117,630 318,199 42,860 361,069 478,689
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13. Goodwill and other intangible assets

1B.BHEREMWEFLEE

Trading rights Goodwill Total
R G EES et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T8I 87T T8I
Net carrying amounts BREF(E
As at 1 January and 7R2022%1 A1H &
31 December 2022 12H31H 2,413 20,473 22,886
Trading rights Goodwill Total
RERE (5 #BEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FHET FHExT
Net carrying amounts BREFE
As at 1 January and 7K2023F1 H1H &
31 December 2023 12H31H 20,473 22,886

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had three trading
rights in the Stock Exchange and two trading rights in The Hong
Kong Futures Exchange Limited. The intangible assets are not
amortised as they have no expiry date.

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to
the GTJA Vietnam cash-generating unit for impairment testing.
The recoverable amount (lower of fair value less cost of disposal
and value-in-use) of GTJA Vietnam has been determined based on
the value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections covering
a five-year period approved by the management. The discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections is 8% (2022: 7%) which
is determined based on the past business performance, the
management’s expectation of the market development and future
business plan. The discount rate used reflects specific risks
relating to GTJA Vietnam and have taken into account of the risk of
business uncertainties in the foreseeable future. As at 31 December
2023 and 31 December 2022, the estimated recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit exceeded its carrying amount. Therefore,
no impairment loss was recognized.

MR20234F K2022F12A31H » K&
EREAERBIAN =B ELE
BHERZHMAER AN -ERS
M AR IEDE A - R
W EE -

[EE- RN
BREBSHESHEESREE
RELYEBESELEEVMANBE
B - BB LA R E SR (A
N ER SRR REREEER
WEREEAE) HERFEAEEBS
EET BRTERATEERZTE
ZRERFHRSREN - HER
T8 8 BT A B 3R X 58% (20224
%)  HDDERBEEBERR B
BEH MG EZEBRARKEE
FEIEE  cFTAMBERBRERE
ZHEABEERR  EREFTR
AR RRAEBLTEEMERR - B
2023912 A31H &20224 12 B 31
H ReELEBMAOMGTATKE S
HEBHEREE - Bt WERER
REEBE -
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14. Other assets 14, Hitt EE
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET & T
Basic contribution of the guarantee fund paid w1 FHBEENREES
to HKSCC HEAREK 630 742
Deposits with Stock Exchange NEEZ TR IE S
— Compensation fund —EES 150 150
— Fidelity fund —HERES 150 150
— Stamp duty deposit —ENfER IR 500 500
Admission fee paid to HKSCC YTNFEALEENEAE 150 150
Reserve fund with the SEHK Options REBBERZHPTHEEERN
Clearing House Limited BRAFAINFES 7,577 4,580
Settlement Risk Fund paid to the Shanghai Xt F EEBEAZ ZFAH
Stock Exchange FEHERES 219 224
Deposit with Hong Kong Future Exchange REBPREEEBRAAR
Clearing Corporation Limited b4 4,769 3,000
License deposit with the Monetary RFT N & B E 12 B A ke IR
Authority of Singapore b 592 580
Statutory deposit with Hanoi Stock Exchange FAH A& AT 5 FTHIEE
2e 4,224 3,604
18,961 13,680
The carrying amounts of the Group’s other assets approximate to AREBEMEENE@DERE AT

their fair values. BREE -
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15. Deferred tax 15. IEERLIE

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year FNELERBAELREESEHEOT :

are as follows:

Losses available

for offsetting
Accelerated tax against future Fair value
depreciation taxable profits gain/loss ECL allowance Total
AR
RRBERR AYE REER
MEHBHE HER W/ EE BABE @it
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TART TET TR TR
At 31 December 2021 and W2021E 128318 &
1 January 2022 2022%1R1A (8,612) 188,091 (73,893) 6,202 111,788
Deferred tax credited/(charged) RESEFA/ (M) EEHE
to profit or loss (1,037) 48,820 73,893 (132) 121,544
At 31 December 2022 and 12022124318 &
1 January 2023 2023%1R10 (9,649) 236,911 - 6,070 233,332
Deferred tax charged to other AR ERENETHE
comprehensive income - - (31) - (31)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) REREFA/ (M) EEHE
to profit or loss 1,771 36,020 - (2,706) 35,085
As at 31 December 2023 72023%12A31A (7,878) 272,931 (31) 3,364 268,386

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same
taxation authority. The deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are to be utilised and settled after one year and the following
amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

ERATEENAAGABHRIAEEE
AR A B E 3 R PR ST
R R — WIS R R - B R RE A
PISHEERABEREE - REIT
IEHEERBERR —FETN
BRALERE M FIEFAEER
HEREBENSBUNESSPHNAR
RAFIFR °

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FE T

Deferred tax assets FRIETIEE E 277,892 244,068
Deferred tax liabilities FIEFRIBEE (9,5086) (10,736)
268,386 233,332

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2.3, the
Group has recognised deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative
tax losses of HK$1,654 million (2022: HK$1,436 million) as it is
probable that future taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be available in the relevant jurisdiction and entity. The
tax losses do not expire under the current tax legislation.

BENF23MEASHE A%
B ot 25T B IEEE1,6548 &5 T
(20224 : 1,436B 88 T) HERIE
ERIBEE ZERBABEEER R
B B8 ] RE G oK oK B AR B 0w A K 8 A%
EEB -BEZHHE HEBRE
AR BNHR o
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16. Loans and advances to customers
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METEFNERRBR

2023 2022

20234 20224

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET TABTT

Margin loans FRE® 7,631,029 8,120,943
Term loans to customers HTYTREFPFHTHER 235,365 467,662
Less: Impairment provision W ORE R (2,104,800) (2,197,236)
5,761,594 6,391,369

Loans and advances are categorised into “excellent”, “fair” and
“individually impaired”. Excellent refers to exposures which margin
obligation are consistently met and the payment of principal and
interest is not in doubt, collaterals provided are highly liquid and of
good quality. Fair refers to exposures which principal and interest
are fully secured but the quality of the collateral is deteriorating,
shortfall would be expected when the collateral value continues to
deteriorate. Individually impaired refers to exposures which loss,
partial or full, has incurred and with insufficient collateral.

ERXRBRIBRIES] [E&E]
RIERIRE] - BFEERETT
FREE R A S M SR RIALER
R ARUWERRAEAERRAK
ERREFMENRER - EBEASM
MEE2HMEEAREERREELR®
gz AEAREEFETKRER
xS RErER - @RIRERD
ELXF B HERALERMWER
an Y LR
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16. Loans and advances to customers (continved) 16. 8 FEEWEBH R & =%

(%)
Analysis of the gross carrying amount as at 31 December by the BEAREBRNPEEIRNLNERSLE
Group’s internal credit rating and year end classification: HWM12 A1 B ERE B E T -
2023 20234
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-month not-credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total

REERE BfRERE
12f8 A & NEHED NEHES

FREX EEE=PS EREX st
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(B—F&RR) (B=RR) (B=RR)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Internal rating grade B AR THERT FTHET THERT THERT
Performing EE
Excellent 8% 5,434,461 - - 5,434,461
Fair Lim 302,448 25,783 - 328,231
Non-performing TR
Individually impaired {E BB - - 2,103,702 2,103,702
5,736,909 25,783 2,103,702 7,866,394
2022 20224
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-month not-credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
AEERE EEERE
1218 A 78 5 i) 2 HiTE A ()& H 7 2
ERBX FREBX EREBX @t
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(F—RER) (FZREER) (B=FEE)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Internal rating grade AP AR FAT FAT FAT THT
Performing E%
Excellent B% 5,859,098 - - 5,859,098
Fair Tim 349,653 - - 349,653
Non-performing R
Individually impaired (EVNEATEY - - 2,379,854 2,379,854

6,208,751

2,379,854 8,588,605
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16. Loans and advances to customers (continved) 16. 8 FEEWEBH R & =%

(4)
The movements of the gross carrying amount of loans and BF RPN ER LA RERAEEE
advances to customers are as follows: E N
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-month not-credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total

RMEERE EREERE
12f8 A & NE2HEY NEHES

EREX EREX EREX @t
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(E—RKR) (B=BR) (B=BR)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET T THET THERT
Gross carrying amount as at #2022F1 1B/
1 January 2022 REAE 15,727,974 - 2,161,214 17,889,188
New assets originated, purchased 2E4 - EEENHEE
or assets transferred RO EENEE 1,868,039 = 1,774 1,869,813
Assets derecognised or repaid ~ BRIEFERK D EELN
BE (11,134,517) - (35,879)  (11,170,396)
Transfer from stage 1 to stage 3 MHE—EEEAE =Z[FE (252,745) - 252,745 -
Gross carrying amount as at R2022F12A31H &
31 December 2022 and as at 202351 A1H &)
1 January 2023 REAE 6,208,751 - 2,379,854 8,588,605
New assets originated, purchased EE4L - BB ERMHEE
or assets transferred FEEZNEE 1,903,502 1,956 4,068 1,909,526
Assets derecognised or repaid B RIFHERSKEEEN
BE (2,307,664) (14,148) (309,925) (2,631,737)
Transfer from stage 1 to stage 2 HH —BEREA S —RBE (37,975) 37,975 - -
Transfer from stage 1 to stage 3 MHE—EEE AL Z KK (29,705) - 29,705 -

Gross carrying amount as at #R2023F12 A31HE
31 December 2023 REAE 5,736,909 25,783 2,103,702 7,866,394
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16. Loans and advances to customers (continued)

16. 8 FTEFNERRER

(%)
The movements of the ECL allowance on loans and advances to BTITEFPHERNBRFEREZRHE
customers are as follows: SHBEEENT
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-month not-credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
KEERE EEERE
1218 A H2HE M2
EREX EHEX EHREX @t
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(B—PBER) (B=FEER) (B=FEE)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET FHET THET
ECL allowance as at 1 January 7202241 A1 8 &) F& 5
2022 fERBEREE (1,995) - (2,032,506) (2,034,501)
New assets originated or PEARERENNEE
purchased = = = =
Assets derecognised or repaid ~ BRIEFEARKDEELN
BE 388 - 799 1,187
Changes to risk parameters B2 82 (1,814) - (44,800) (46,614)
Transfer from stage 1 to stage 3 HHFE—EEEALZ =& 125 - (125) =
Changes arising from transfer of JRRE R/ E
stage - - (117,308) (117,308)
ECL allowance as at MR2022F12A31H &
31 December 2022 and 2023F1 A1H A
1 January 2023 BHERBRER (3,296) - (2,193,940) (2,197,236)
New assets originated or BELSEEENTEE
purchased - (75) (1,195) (1,270)
Assets derecognised or repaid 2R IFHERSKDEEN
BE - - 117,433 117,433
Changes to risk parameters R g E 2,149 - (24,661) (22,512)
Changes arising from transfer of  JRR &7 b B #) £
stage - (915) (300) (1,215)
ECL allowance as at #2023%F12A31B /)
31 December 2023 RHEREXES (1,147) (990) (2,102,663) (2,104,800

There was no loans and advances to customers which have been
written off but were still subject to enforcement activity at 31

December 2023 and 2022.

MR2023% K20225F12A31H - #i &
BB AETARHEEITEN

RTEPHERREK -
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16.

17.

Loans and advances to customers (continued)

Margin financing operations

The Group provides customers with margin financing for securities
transactions, which are secured by customers’ securities held as
collateral. The maximum credit limit granted for each customer is
based on the customer’s financial background and the quality of
related collateral. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables and has a risk management department to
monitor credit risks.

Margin loans to the customers are secured by the underlying
pledged securities, bear interest at a rate with reference to the
Hong Kong dollar prime rate and are repayable on demand. The
carrying value of margin loans approximates to their fair value. No
ageing analysis is disclosed as the Group considers an ageing
analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature of the
margin loans business. The amount of credit facilities granted to
margin clients is determined by the discounted market value of the
collateral securities accepted by the Group. As at 31 December
2028, the total value of securities pledged as collateral in respect
of the margin loans was approximately HK$30,655 million (2022:
HK$30,561 million) based on the market value of the securities as
at the end of the reporting period.

Term loans to customers

The Group also provides term loans to customers. In determining
the interest rates, reference is made to the credit standing of
the relevant customers and the quality and value of the collateral
pledged.

As at 31 December 2023, all term loans were categorised as Stage
3 and were fully impaired. As at 31 December 2022, the term loans
granted to customers amounted to HK$434,122,000, and the
accrued interest amounted to HK$33,540,000.

Loans to directors

For the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there were no
loans to directors pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the CO and Part
3 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation.

16.

17.
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18. Accounts receivable 18. FE W K18
The carrying values of accounts receivable arising from the course REBEBBEDRELNEIR
of business of the Group are as follows: EREMBENAT :
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Accounts receivable arising from brokerage #4027 IiE WRIR
— cash and custodian clients B RAERP 15,378 9,911
- the Stock Exchange and other clearing — B A T K HL A4S B R
houses 1,135,430 1,200,995
- brokers and dealers —RERZ 5 6,660,076 3,630,107
Accounts receivable arising from insurance 1R B 45 42 AR 75 1 W 3R IE
brokerage services
— cash and custodian clients —HEakEEERP - -
Accounts receivable arising from securities BHEEEHERFIE
borrowing and lending
— brokers and dealers —BERR 5 149,641 725,668
Accounts receivable arising from corporate TrEHRE BEETE 28
finance, asset management, financial Em  MmEkEEEBKE
products, market making and investments W kIR
— corporate clients, investment funds and —EEF KREESRK
others Hth 500,826 107,461
8,461,351 5,674,142
Less: impairment provision R B (69,876) (32,756)
8,391,475 5,641,386
The movements in the impairment allowance on accounts receivable FEW R IERERIEES T

are as follows:

2023 2022

20234 20224

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

At 1 January W1A1H 32,756 24,514
Impairment provision charged to profit or loss & A &H A B 25 B RE B

during the year 37,426 9,932

Impairment provision reversed during the year 4 P % [0 # )6 (5 B 15 (396) (1,800)

Exchange difference e N Z=5 90 110

At 31 December M12H31RH 69,876 32,756
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18. Accounts receivable (continued)

There was no accounts receivable which have been written off but
were still subject to enforcement activity at 31 December 2023 and

2022.

The carrying values of accounts receivable arising from the course

of business of the Group are as follows:

31 December 2023
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18. EUWFKIE (&)

PR20234F K2022%12A31H » &
BB EEITR I FEITEN

FEWFRIA -

AEBEBBIRPMELNHEKR

BREENAT

2023%F12A31H

Accounts
receivable
Accounts Accounts from Accounts
receivable receivable corporate receivable
from cash  from the Stock Accounts clients, from
and  Exchange and receivable investment insurance
custodian  other clearing  from brokers funds and brokerage
clients houses and dealers others services Total
BeR B R BER TEEF RBEL
TERF Hfb i E R5H REEER (i EDS
WA EhFHE EhzE HEtEWRE el A a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THET TR TET TR
Gross carrying amount REEE 15,378 1,135,430 6,809,717 500,826 - 8,461,351
Less: impairment B ORE
- Stage 1 - £-KR& N/A
(1) (651) (4,981) TEA - (5,633)
- Stage 2 - KR N/A
(127) - - TEA - (127)
- Stage 3 - F-KEER N/A
(1,006) - - TEA - (1,006)
- Simplified approach - H 2% N/A N/A N/A N/A
TEA TEA TEA (63,110) TE A (63,110)
14,244 1,134,779 6,804,736 437,716 - 8,391,475
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18. Accounts receivable (continued)
31 December 2022

18.

PE WL FRIE ()
2022%12A31H

Accounts
receivable
Accounts Accounts from Accounts
receivable receivable corporate receivable
from cash  from the Stock Accounts clients, from
and  Exchange and receivable investment insurance
custodian  other clearing from brokers funds and brokerage
clients houses and dealers others services Total
BeR BRMR &ak REEF RBEL
TEER Efas RHHE REEER TR %7
68 FIE M IR FEUHE  HEtERRE YR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAT T TBT TR TEL
Gross carrying amount FEEE 9,911 1,200,995 4,385,775 107,461 - 5,674,142
Less: impairment o RE
- Stage 1 - E-KE N/A
6) (650) (4,476) TR = (5,132
- Stage 2 - B N/A
) - - TER - 1)
- Stage 3 - BB N/A
(568) = = TR = (568)
- Simplified approach - B5% N/A N/A N/A N/A
TER TER TER (27,049) TER (27,049)
9,330 1,200,345 4,351,299 80,412 = 5,641,386

Accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients represent
unsettled client trades on various securities exchanges transacted
on the last two to three business days prior to the end of the
reporting year. When the cash and custodian clients fail to settle
on the settlement date, the Group has the rights to force-sell the
collateral underlying the securities transactions. The collateral
held against these receivables is publicly traded securities. The
impairment provision is made after taking into consideration the
recoverability from the collateral. No ageing analysis is disclosed
as the Group considers an ageing analysis does not give additional
value in view of the nature of these accounts receivable.

ReMAETFPNRUREEERE
BEFERZANKEME =ET
FERETREZFXZAETH
AEEEPR S - —BRERFEE
EPARERGEHEBEMNTE A%
EEEARFHLEREFXZHHBNE
oo St ZFERUGRIER A MK
HRRARARHES - REBREBE
ZEER MO ATREEREL - K
SERS  ARZFRUWFANMKE
BRI emREINEE
BARBBEEAIRE D -
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18. B FRIE ()

ReHheMEEEPWERKREAD
REAREZESHIINT

18. Accounts receivable (continued)

The movement of the gross carrying amount of accounts receivable
arising from brokerage of cash and custodian clients are as follows:

Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-months not credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
AEERE BEERE
128 A MEEES i ihER
EREX ERBEX EREX @t
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(E—PE8) (BfEER) (E=E&)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TER TET TET
Gross carrying amount as at R2022F1 1B KR E
1 January 2022 faE 64,348 13 453 64,814
New assets originated, purchased EEXL  EBENHEE
or assets transferred NEEENEE 7,892 14 72 7,978
Assets derecognised or repaid ERERRAEEEN
BE (62,827) - (54) (62,881)
Transfer of stages BHREE (104) 6 98 =
Gross carrying amount as at 2022124318 &
31 December 2022 and as at R2023%1 A1H K
1 January 2023 REa&E 9,309 33 569 9,911
New assets originated, purchased EE4L  EBENHEE
or assets transferred JEEENEE 4,871 2,321 4,734 11,926
Assets derecognised or repaid BERIEBRAHEEEN
BE (6,492) (1) 34 (6,459)
Transfer of stages BH R (1,119) 943 176 -
Gross carrying amount as at 12023612 A31 A )
31 December 2023 REZE 6,569 3,296 5,513 15,378
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18. Accounts receivable (continued) 18. EUWFKIE (&)
The movements in the ECL allowance of accounts receivable arising KA S NI ERE PR EWRIER
from brokerage of cash and custodian clients are as follows: TEBHERERBEEESHHIMT
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-months not credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total

AMEERE EEERE
128 A B e bt e bt

EREX ERBEX EREX @i
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(F-KR) (€ P19 (E=E&)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TERT THET
ECL allowance as at 1 January 2022 1202241 A1 H #)78 £
EREXERE (32) @) (453) (488)
New assets originated or purchased EE£HEBENFMEE @) - ) (13)
Assets derecognised or repaid BERIERANBER
BE 30 - 4 34
Changes 1o risk parameters E-E S ¢ = (4) (110) (114)
ECL allowance as at 20226124318 K
31 December 2022 and 20231 A1 A A T8 H
1 January 2023 ERBARE (6) 7 (568) (581)
New assets originated or purchased EEAHEEENHEE 4 - 8 12
Assets derecognised or repaid BRIEBRKEEEN
BE 2 (120) (273) (391)
Changes to risk parameters Rk 8% 1) - (173) (174)
ECL allowance as at 12023F12A31H A

31 December 2023 BHERBLEE 1) (127) (1,006) (1,134)
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18. Accounts receivable (continued)

For accounts receivable from the Stock Exchange and other
clearing houses, brokers and dealers, and insurance brokerage
services, no ageing analysis is disclosed as the Group considers
an ageing analysis does not give additional value in view of the
nature of these accounts receivable. There was no transfer of ECL
allowance to different stages during the year ended 31 December
20283 and 2022.

Accounts receivable from corporate clients and investment funds
arising from asset management, corporate finance, investment
holding and market making which have not yet been settled by
clients after the Group’s normal credit period. The credit rating and
reputation of the trade counterparties were considered as sound
for the past due accounts receivable from corporate clients and
investment funds.

Ageing analysis of the relevant trade receivables at the date of
consolidated statement of financial position based on past due date
is as follows:
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18. EWWRIE ()

%”JW% RETREMEER L2 &

R 578 DA K AR B £ 42 AR 75 Y JE LR
H - SERE ARZIERFKIE
MEE  REDIT TR REINE
B - MR T AR DT o RER
20234 N2022F12A31H Ik F
B HESEREARAREER
ETREMEE -

EPRAKE-—REEHER KRB
ENEEXEFRREESHRENR
H(ELXBEEEE OGE®RE -
REEBREMT) HREEREP
MEEES N B HE KGR

SHFHONEEFREBERER

RiFaHBMRREX B BRESER
HEARKE S RIENRER D TH
™

2023 2022

20234 20224

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET TABIT

Not yet past due i 7 460 Hf 433,356 44,232
Past due less than 1 month #HI— & A AR 83 187
Past due between 1 to 3 months BH—=={EA 1,687 56
Past due over 3 months BEI=EA MU E 65,700 62,986
Total BET 500,826 107,461

Accounts receivable from corporate clients and investment funds
arising from asset management, corporate finance, investment
holding and market making using a provision matrix under simplified
approach. The provision rates are based on DPD for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geographical region, product type, customer type and rating, and
coverage by letters of credit or other forms of credit insurance).
The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable information that is
available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally, trade
receivables are written off if past due for more than one year and
are not subject to enforcement activity.

AP EERARBREFENTE
EPRREESWENRFE(EL
BEEEE bXERE REER
KAg) o B R THEN G A AL
BEEA (AR - EmEL -
BEPEMEFIH UEREREERE
HESIHBEANEERR) 2&
1I§)5"*BL'TT o B R
AHE LA ERRB R NESR
EECERBEAMREBBEES
- BRI R RREEMRRTA
AMHE BRI ESNAE R
HER - —RME - WEKE SR
HEM—FA L AIMEERES
BIE - WA REIRITIEE AR
PR °
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18. Accounts receivable (continued) 18. EUWFKIE (&)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on AT EFEREEEETENEGBAR
the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix: EFHEWREZESFTBEZ ZERRER :
2023 20234
Gross carrying

amount ECL Total

REAE FEHEHEBEX #et

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FHET FHET

Not yet past due i A 80 HA 433,356 (203) 433,153

Past due less than 1 month E B — i A A A 83 - 83

Past due between 1 to 3 months #EH— = =& A 1,687 (163) 1,524

Past due over 3 months wHEI =1 A A £ 65,700 (62,740) 2,960

Total R 500,826 (63,106) 437,720

2022 20224
Gross carrying

amount ECL Total

RERE TEHERABX Bt

HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000

TAT AT AT

Not yet past due fei 7 80 HA 44,232 (14) 44,218

Past due less than 1 month 0 B — & A LA A 187 (1) 186

Past due between 1 to 3 months #El—Z= =1 A 56 (11) 45

Past due over 3 months B HEI =& A LA & 62,986 (27,023) 35,963

Total 45 107,461 (27,049) 80,412

19. Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 19. A& E - ZE& K H b

=+
FE WL 7R 18

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

HK$’000 HK$'000

TET FAT

Prepayments, deposits and T FRIE - ke REME

other receivables Wk IE 117,790 127,684

Interest receivables FE W 7 B 101,895 85,300

219,685 212,984
None of the above assets is either past due or credit-impaired. The bt & EE L 4 e BR T 3 4 (S EOR
financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables Beoxt A Lt S & EH:m

for which there was no recent history of default. HiEZ AL 8E I FEUN R IE B G -
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20. Financial assets at fair value
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20.ZAFEHIENEME

=3
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Non-current FEED
Financial assets held for trading and BIEEERKRENTREE
investments
— Unlisted equity securities —FEETRAES 1,825,052 1,769,013
Financial products (note (b)) & E m (K (D)) 14,820,896 13,676,864
16,645,948 15,445,877
Current mE
Financial assets held for trading and BIEEERKRENSREE
investments
— Unlisted fixed income securities — I E T EE KR &5 3,402 4,037,833
- Unlisted convertible securities —3E E AR AREE 55 205,920 196,640
— Listed equity securities —EFRAES 1,325,364 649,885
- Listed debt securities — FHEBES 4,276,860 1,938,626
— Unlisted debt securities —JELMERES 5,088,358 1,907,928
— Listed fund investments —FmEESKE 5,912,798 =
— Unlisted fund investments (note (a)) —JELEMESKRE (izE@) 726,619 935,394
— Other financial instruments —Hihem T A 159,439 =
Financial products (note (b)) S EEm (MEEb)) 33,714,241 32,261,814
51,413,001 41,928,120
Total financial assets at fair value through BATEGFABRRED
profit or loss TREERTE 68,058,949 57,373,997
Financial assets at fair value through other TR EFTAEAM
comprehensive income 2HKRENESHEE
Current mE
Financial assets held for investments BIERENTREE
— Listed equity securities — FTRAE S 76,481 82,304
— Listed debt securities — FEFES 370,123 =
446,604 82,304
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20. Financial assets at fair value (continued)

Notes:

The Group invested in unconsolidated investment funds for capital appreciation
and investment income. The interests held by the Group are in the form of
participating shares which provide the Group with the share of returns from
the investment funds, but not any decision making power nor any voting right.
Given that the Group only held the beneficial interests without holding any voting
right or substantial decision making power as principal, these investments are
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The financial products invested by the Group included listed equity investments,
listed debt investments, unlisted fund investments, unlisted equity investments
and derivatives. As at 31 December 2023, securities collateral of HK$185 million
(2022: HK$226.5 million) were placed to the counterparties.

Financial assets are categorised as “financial products” when it is acquired by
the Group for the primary purpose of meeting customers’ investment needs
and used as hedging instruments for structured notes issued under the MTN
Programme (note 27), financial liabilities (note 28) or derivative instruments
acquired by customers (note 21). As a result, the variable return of these
financial products and the financial liabilities in relation to these financial
products is not significant.

20 BAFEHIFENEHME
=)

GEE

(a)

AEBERERARAHREES AR
BEXRZERRERA - AEE I
2RV AFERER REAKET
DEREESHMEEE  EXEME
MRRBAEMNERRE - ERAE
EEFAERERNTEEAKRE
BHXMEZABERNRERE %%
RESBEREBEATFTEAARENS
BEE °

AEERENSREREE LETWR
AEE  EHEKERE FLTHE
SRE FETRARERTET
A - ®R2023F12A318 * TR R
SHFHNELHEKA R AB18EEH
7T (20224F : 226.5A BB IT) ©

EREERNHASEIERRER
FRERBKMPER BRI R
Eml - YIERRETHREEE
THAEBERE (HZ27)  8E
& (ffae8) R E P UKEBMITAET A
(ME&E21) MR T A - MUt ZEF S
MEMIREEABcMARZTZO
AKX e

Assets pledged BEAEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FHT

Trading assets, financial investments and cash pledged XZMHEE  €RMBRER

BEARS 1,136,193 164,541
Amount of liabilities secured FrEREELE (928,035) (215,980)

The table above shows assets where a charge has been granted to secure
liabilities on a legal and contractual basis.

These transactions are conducted under terms that are usual and customary
to collateralised transactions including derivative margining, and include assets
pledged to cover short positions and to facilitate settlement processes with
clearing houses.

ERITABERBEMRERZRS
WEEERNEE -

ZEXHGNEEERRH (BT
ETARER) R REFRGK
EIT ABRESERARR/ELE
HAETEEREMERNEE -
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21. Derivative financial instruments M. TE€mI A

The table below shows the fair values of derivative financial
instruments recorded as assets or liabilities together with their
notional amounts. The notional amount, recorded gross, is the
amount of a derivative’s underlying asset, reference rate or index
and is the basis upon which changes in the value of the derivative
are measured. The notional amounts indicate the volume of
transactions outstanding at the year end and are indicative of
neither the market risk nor the credit risk.

TREJLHKASEERRENITTE
TRITANAFEEREEZES
BB EaxsBEER/TE
TEAMBEE 2EZEXRIIEHN
SE VYARITETIABENEE
MEE - ZRSBERANFRRE
KR ZE - BET =2 % AR IRk
EERRNER -

Fair value
ATE
Notional
amount Assets Liabilities
ZEeH BE =K+
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET THET
As at 31 December 2023 M2023F12/831H
Non-current FETRED
Currency derivatives EMTET A
Foreign exchange forward i BRSNGE 12,404,918 13,645 (159,641)
Interest rate derivatives MEFTET A
Interest rate swap 1) & 4 B 9,663,688 303,260 (125,124)
Equity derivatives BEEETETR
Stock options fix 5= HA#E 96,054 3,603 (36)
Warrants Hig 114,974 - (2,795)
Swaps 2 2 547,904 2,096 (9,336)
Other derivatives B pTA T H 347,899 550 (260)
23,175,437 323,154 (297,192)
Current Vi
Commodity derivatives EmiTAE TR
Metal futures swap T EHEEH 10,932,437 87,919 (85,097)
Currency derivatives EETETR
Foreign exchange forward = BN 29,418,555 89,815 (157,862)
Cross currency swap R X E¥i8 5 390,590 3,230 -
Interest rate derivatives FMEHFTETE
Interest rate swap 7] 2 $e3 A 7,882,832 33,618 (39,407)
Equity derivatives ANTETER
Stock options iz 2= HA 9,980,193 262,217 (214,086)
Warrants &= b 2,813,254 - (43,290)
Futures BT 1,939,342 8,130 (20,476)
Swaps = 5 25,273,092 1,127,032 (831,022)
Other derivatives HMPTET AR 622,978 145 (5,143)
89,253,273 1,612,106 (1,396,383)
112,428,710 1,935,260 (1,693,575)




206 Guotai Junan International | Annual Report 2023

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 5 ¥R 3R B &

31 December 2023
2023%F12A31H

21. Derivative financial instruments (continued) 21. T4 €mI B
Fair value
NEE
Notional
amount Assets Liabilities
HESHE EE afE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T TT T T
As at 31 December 2022 K2022%12 A31H
Non-current JE B
Currency derivatives EETET A
Foreign exchange forward = BRSNGE 6,207,427 86,653 (2,999)
Foreign exchange options SNFE B #E 389,850 7,765 =
Interest rate derivatives MEFTET A
Interest rate swap I & 4= HA 12,842,667 471,367 (212,001)
Equity derivatives EmBITETER
Stock options fi% 5= A #E 1,093,984 11,270 (14,812)
Warrants L 24,043 = (1,874)
20,557,971 577,055 (231,686)
Current mE
Commodity derivatives EmiTE TR
Metal futures swap BT 1,997,847 22,100 (21,599)
Currency derivatives BEBSTAET R
Foreign exchange forward iR BRSNE 16,813,690 105,436 (93,845)
Interest rate derivatives MEFTET A
Interest rate swap 7] 2 $e3 B 4,961,579 30,356 (3,321)
Equity derivatives BASTETE
Stock options fix 2 HA 10,567,762 370,498 (229,231)
Warrants =iy 2,032,594 = (77,104)
Futures e 438,468 4,844 (310)
Swaps 7 5 18,883,423 994,224 (872,121)
55,695,363 1,527,458 (1,297,531)
76,253,334 2,104,513 (1,529,217)

The Group entered into ISDA master netting agreements or similar
agreements with substantially all of its derivative counterparties.
Where legally enforceable, these master netting agreements give
the Group the right to offset cash collateral paid or received with
the same counterparty. As at 31 December 2023, amounts of cash
collateral of HK$3,904 million and HK$3,083 million were paid
to and received from respective counterparties (2022: HK$1,611
million and HK$1,274 million), which are included in “accounts
receivable and accounts payable arising from brokerage — brokers
and dealers” in notes 18 and 24 to the financial statements
respectively.

AEFERBRIOTETIAERSH
RN BB IR B R OTE R g R R
SH AR R SR R - TEMRA A] 58
FIITHERT  ZEFHEEELT
T AN 52 [ A ) DA 8 R AR [R) 32
SHANEMNKBERESIEAER - 1
2023%F12A31H  HEL ERZ L
¥3,9048 88 T &3,0838 &8 T
(20224 : 1,611E & 7T &1,274
BEBIT) 2R T RIKEHER
57 DR BREEMEHRERME8
K24l [ 48 40 5 75 FE W 5178 K JE
RIE-RERRFPE] -
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22.

23.

Receivable from reverse repurchase
agreements

The receivable from reverse repurchase agreements arises
when the securities are bought by the Group with a concurrent
agreement to resell at a specified later date and price. These
securities are not recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement
of financial position as the counterparty retains substantially
all risks and returns of the securities. The amount paid by the
Group is recognised as receivable. In the event of default by
the counterparty, the Group has the right to sell the underlying
securities for settling the outstanding receivable.

As at 31 December 2023, the outstanding amount paid for the
reverse repurchase agreements was HK$739,579,000 (2022:
HK$586,845,000) and was recognised as receivable from reverse
repurchase agreements.

The fair value of securities received as collateral for the outstanding
receivable at the year-end was HK$858,909,000 (2022:
HK$654,083,000).

Cash and cash equivalents and client trust
bank balances

22.

23.

BEHREREKR | 20233k 207

f= 12 (2] 55 165 3% M W 5K IR

F= 17) [B] B 199 % 2 I W sk IR X 7 5
BEEFHEL EFRAKIL—
A A IREERRAHRER
BE ZEEFLERAEBES
MHERRARTHER  RARR ST
REZEESFWBAT D Al & [E
o NEE TR FIAER SR
KRB WMXBTEN AEEBERE
HERBEFABEEREBH R

BRIA e

M2023F12 8318 » 5t &= [\ B 8 17
BRI R AE K IE A739,579,000
77T (20224F : 586,845,000/ 7T) -
I W 7R 5 I 1A) (2] BE 17 =2 FE U 308 o

RERDWEIE B KRGS E K
REEBEMNEHFNAFTES
858,909,000/ jt (20224 :
654,083,000/ 7T ) ©

BeRkRATSEURE
FiErERT4EER

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FE T
Cash and bank balances & RIRITAEER 6,474,841 7,478,709
Time deposits TE HifF K 932,974 277,871
— with original maturity of less than three —REEBA LR =1 H
months 713,488 58,607
— with original maturity of more than three —REHBEBE=/A
months 219,486 219,264
Total cash and cash equivalents RekReEEMER 7,407,815 7,756,580
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23. Cash and cash equivalents and client trust 23. B¢ RESEEBYRE

bank balances (continued) FEEAE1TESR =
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T
Cash and cash equivalents BUATEEASENSER S X

denominated in: HEFEEY
HK$ BT 1,954,761 5,161,215
Us$ eV 2,470,664 2,272,854
RMB AR 2,371,407 56,359
VND W E 128,906 126,335
Others E i 482,077 139,817
7,407,815 7,756,580

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one month and 6 months depending on the cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective time
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no history of default.

As at 31 December 2023, the ECL allowance of bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, and client trust bank balances
amounted to HK$3,503,000 (2022: HK$5,773,000) aggregately. All
of them are classified as Stage 1 under the ECL model and there
was no transfer to/from the other stages.

The Company maintains segregated accounts with authorized
institutions to hold client money in the normal course of business.

RITBEERFARTHERN KR
FBR R E - EHERNFERHA
BAEENREFRME N F—
BAZENMEA - LiREEEHFR
MEFB - RITERETHFEAGER
b BB R ESE EVERTTH ©

R2023%F 128318 » SRITFE & -
RekReEEYAREFPER
THHENTBHEREREBREE LR
3,503,000 7t (20224 : 5,773,000
BIL) IR TBEERBAERERE
PEF—RE BXAREBA EH
H A PEER -

ARARERBEBREBELIRS -
REEXBBRTRATFPER
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24. Accounts payable

24. FEFRIE

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Accounts payable arising from brokerage K40 25 75 E N IR
- clients —-®F 11,987,595 13,136,472
- brokers and dealers —RERR 5 4,524,821 1,675,062
- the Stock Exchange and other clearing — B¢ A2 P % EL At 45 P
houses 318,581 1,288,615
Accounts payable arising from securities BHEEEBEMNE
borrowing and lending 6,025 42,254
Accounts payable arising from corporate TXpE BEERE &/
finance, asset management, financial Em - W 1B REAM
products, market making, investments ES Y AN e
and others 1,211,337 583,839
Accounts payable arising from insurance R Box 45 40 AR 75 FE 5P R IE
brokerage services - 86
18,048,359 16,726,328

The majority of the accounts payable are repayable on demand
except for certain accounts payable to clients which represent
margin deposits received from clients for their trading activities in
the normal course of business. Only the excess amounts over the
required margin deposits stipulated are repayable on demand.

The Group has a practice to satisfy all the requests for payment
within one business day. No ageing analysis is disclosed as the
Group considers the ageing analysis does not give additional value
in view of the nature of these businesses.

Accounts payable to clients also include those payables in trust
accounts with authorised institutions of HK$13,753 million (2022:
HK$13,352 million), Hong Kong Futures Exchange Clearing
Corporation Limited and other futures dealers of HK$131 million
(2022: HK$206 million).

Accounts payable arising from insurance brokerage services
include those payables in trust accounts with authorised
institutions of HKS$nil (2022: HK$86,000). Accounts payable are
non-interest-bearing, except for the accounts payable to clients.

REBOENRBAEREREEE
EETRENTEFPHNRBARREP
REFXEBBEFETEEITPK
MEFPHRBEZBI - AABHR
EREENEEARERKHREER

ﬁo

AEEBERE—BALXARNBEMR
BNRER - NEE I E R FEREK
o RESKEEZRBIZEFEY
MIEE  BREROT TS RHEE
SMEME °

BN TEERFIEIREED BT
RRAIEEETRFMW13,7538 8
78 7T (20224F : 13,352E &8 L)
EAPEREAER AR REMBEE
RPERI131EH & Bt (20224 :
2068 &8 70) M EMFIA °

1R B8 45 40 BR 75 FE 1~ 50 TE B 15 7R 1) 4
BEAEFMNENREAS BT
(20224 : 86,0008 7T) ° B EM &
FRIEIN - BAREHTEE -
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25. Other payables and accrued liabilities

25.

HWENREARET&

&

2023 2022

20234 20224

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET TABIT

Other payables H fth JE S 3R I8 24,810 138,563
Accrued liabilities EstaE 629,331 464,395
654,141 602,958

Other payables and accrued liabilities are non-interest-bearing and

have an average term of three months.

HMEMNREBEREFEES DA
B FOHRA=M@EA -

26. Interest bearing borrowings 26. 5T EER
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TABIT
Non-current: IERD :
Lease liabilities HEBE 3,725 15,387
Current: mE
Lease liabilities HEAE 17,597 27,845
Unsecured bank borrowings IR IR 1T (B X 9,918,099 9,305,775
o 9,985,696 9,333,620
Total interest bearing borrowings TR E R 9,939,421 9,349,007
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TABIT
Denominated in: B TEERE :
HK$ BT 15,070 3,494,029
Uss$ X7 8,436,744 5,262,975
Other currencies Hih g 1,487,607 592,003
9,939,421 9,349,007

The Group’s bank borrowings bear interest at the Interbank Offered

Rate plus an interest spread.

The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate to their
fair values as the impact on discounting is not significant.

The Group’s lease liabilities bear weighted average interest rate at

3.60% per annum (2022: 3.26% per annum).

AEBERITERGRRTRAERB
MEEFE -

HRENTZEL TBEK  8Z
FRTBFOEEEREEL QX FER

o+
o

of

AEENHEAGHNMETHF
F & £53.60% (20224 : F F &
3.26%) °
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27.ERTEBES

27. Debt securities in issue

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TABTT
Non-current JER B
At amortised cost (note afi)): R AR (B REa) -
Listed unsecured medium-term notes EiERRF IR 3,144,937 3,138,860
Designated at fair value through profit or EERA T ET AE=
loss (note (b)): GEIOE
Structured notes issued in relation to financial = 21T % Bl E G 1H 73
products ZEBERE 11,191,277 9,629,871
14,336,214 12,768,731
Current V)
At amortised cost (note a (ii)): R SR A (B sEali)
Unlisted unsecured medium-term notes JE LA HEER 2,808,810 3,784,775
Designated at fair value through profit or loss ¥ FE R A FEF ABZR
(note (p)): GEAE
Structured notes issued in relation to financial = 2/THI4 Bl E AHE 2
products EEMERE 28,618,688 24,934,762
... 81,427,498 28,719,537
45,763,712 41,488,268
Unsecured medium-term notes BT 5B 85 (E & &5 1
donominated in: RHIZE A
us$ ETT 5,923,027 5,536,342
HK$ T 7,196 1,322,698
RMB AR 23,524 64,595
Other currencies Hfh & - _
. 5953747 6,923,635
Structured notes issued in relation BT 5 EEIER
to financial products BEITH S RE MIE
denominated in: ZEBERE
Us$ xJT 36,739,674 32,009,325
HK$ BT 471,689 613,341
RMB AR #E 2,229,133 1,446,865
Other currencies BB 369,469 495,102
o .....89809965 34,564,633
45,763,712 41,488,268
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27. Debt securities in issue (continued)

Notes:

(@)

The outstanding balance of HK$5,954 million (2022: HK$6,924 million) stated
at amortised cost represents the amount of unsecured notes issued by the
Company under the Company’s MTN Programme and GSN Programme
maintained by its subsidiary. As at 31 December 2023, the debt securities in
issue bore fixed interest rates ranging from 0.5% to 6.14% (2022: 1.4% to
4.9%). The carrying amounts of the debt securities in issue approximate to their
fair values.

The outstanding balance of HK$39,810 million (2022: HK$34,565 million)
represented the amount of unlisted structured notes which arose from selling
structured products under the MTN Programme with underlying investments
related to listed equity investments, listed debt investments, unlisted debt
investments, unlisted fund investments and derivatives.

The Group has not had any defaults of principal, interest or other
breaches with respect to their liabilities during the year (2022: nil).

Part of debt securities in issue are repayable on demand and the
Group has a practice to satisfy the request for redemption on the
settlement date.

27. ERITEKRF )

GES

(a)  IREESHRKANDIBR MY K (8 32 2 585,054
A& % T (202212 A31H : 6,924
BEABL)EARRREFHER
AT BT Ay I IR R AR BB R HL BT
BARKFNEREEBZEEH
THEEBEES T - R2023F12
A31B  BER1TEKEFZETEF
K0.5%%E6.14% (2022%F : 1.4%%E
49%) TR - BEETEBIEHFNE
AESEEAFERS -

(b) A{EEF%39,8108 &5 7T (2022
% : 34,5650 & B 0) FEIRE P =
BrrdlifE AR ERMELEMNIELT
HEEERIERE BB EEET
BAKE  EHEKRE FLW
BHEE FLTESRERTE
TAFR-

AEERFRALBEHEREIMAE -

FEREMABITESEINBR
(20224 : #) o

B E E K o
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28. Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

25y
MY b
i -
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EI‘I_'
>
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Bk

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FRET
Financial liabilities held for trading: HIEEENESRAE
— Listed equity securities — ETRAES 148,747 359,900
— Listed debt securities — T EBES 506,494 367,634
— Unlisted debt securities —ELETEBES 1,600 12
Financial liabilities designated at fair value EERAFEFARRN
through profit or loss SRIBE
~ Financial products (note (a)) — e /Em(ME@) 1,593,032 1,205,621
— Other financial instruments —Hihe@mT A - 1,423
— Third-party interests in consolidated —MAEHBREESHD
investment funds (note (b)) F=rExE (b)) 182,399 173,796
2,432,272 2,108,386

Notes:

As at 31 December 2023, cash collateral of HK$nil million (31 December 2022:
HK$20 million) included in the fair value in financial products is received from
counterparty.

The amount of change in fair value of financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, during the year and cumulatively, attributable to changes in own
credit risk was insignificant.

Third-party interests in consolidated investment funds consist of third-party
unitholders’ interests in consolidated investment funds which are reflected as
liabilities since they can be put back to the Group for cash. The realisation of
third-party interests in investment funds cannot be predicted with accuracy
since these represent the interests of third-party unitholders in consolidated
investment funds that are subject to market risk and the actions of third-party
investors.

202312 A318 ' st A& BE @
ATEHNBREFRATESS T
(2022512 A31H : 206 &B7T) I
W8 F 5 R -

RERN BAXAFEERRESHRE
MEBRAFEFABRENEHA
BERAFELRNSELHIL TEK -

MAGHBREESHNE=ZTHEEE
RMAGHREESNE=TTEM
FAAED ARZSESEARE
AEBUKDMES  BIRBEE-
REESHE=anE R EX
EHRA - DRBEEERKRAA
EHBREESNE=JTEMNFEA
Mt W HIRHERER &S =
HEREENTR -
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29. Obligations under repurchase agreements

The obligations under repurchase agreements arise when the
securities are sold by the Group with a concurrent agreement to
repurchase at a specified later date and price. The amount received

20. OB R E1E
AEBERBEOER:ELEES
R —ERaAIREEHZ
HEREREBEES AR AEE

i

by the Group is recognised as liabilities as the Group retains REBBHR BRI D E R &

substantially all risks and returns of the securities.

As at 31 December 2023, the outstanding amount received
from repurchase agreements was HK$14,027,595,000 (2022:
HK$7,695,073,000) which was recognised as obligations under

repurchase agreements.

Fair value of financial assets under the repurchase agreements:

BASEEBORIARRSEE -

R2023F12 A31H © & [0 B #3 7% W
HY ) ok 4578 7038 A14,027,595,000
7 7T (20224 : 7,695,073,000/8

T YRR RO EHHENEER -

COEHBEETTMEENLFE:

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Financial assets held for trading BIEEEMNSREE
— Listed debt securities — L TEBES 3,279,729 919,267
— Unlisted debt securities —FLEMEBHIESF 174,331 58,081
Financial products S RLEm 13,593,858 8,536,580
17,047,918 9,513,928
30. Share capital 30. IR 24
Number of
issued and fully
paid Shares Share capital
ERTRHR

BB EAR B% A<
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
At 1 January 2022 R2022%F1 818 9,619,994,707 10,911,163
Share repurchased i 8 B i% 17 (65,000,000) =

At 31 December 2022, 1 January 2023 and 1R2022%12A31H - 20234
31 December 2023 1818 &20234%12 8318 9,554,994,707 10,911,163

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company (a)
bought back and cancelled a total of 65,000,000 Shares at an
aggregate consideration (before expenses) of HK$56.7 million
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange at Share prices ranging

from HK$0.80 to HK$0.97.

H E2022F12A318 Ik F
E ARBIR BB RS
f%0.807% 7T £0.978 T K B 1%
B2 O] K 5E $8 & ££65,000,0000%

Bfn - BRERETEEET
(FNBRFASZAT) ©
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1. BRERE

31. Share option reserve

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 19 June 2010.
The Share Option Scheme was valid for a period of 10 years from
the date of adoption and has expired on 19 June 2020. No further
share options shall be granted after it expired, but all granted and
outstanding share options remain exercisable for a period of 10
years after the respective dates of grant, the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme thereof remain in full force and effect.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all share options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue at the
date of approval of the Share Option Scheme (i.e. 164,000,000
Shares). The maximum number of Shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the Shares in issue
at any time (i.e. 16,400,000 Shares). Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in
a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director or chief executive of the
Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the Shares in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the Shares
at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by the directors, and
ends on a date which is not later than ten years from the date of
offer of the share options.

KN B FR2010%6 A19H8 £ 44 B i%
RS - BREAE R EMA B R
FH10F B A 2 - Z HifR B 142020
F6RHA19RR B -REREBTEH
REERE  EABEED REK
TEBRERS BT B EE10F
BRI AT AT - B AR ME AT B A0 15 3
TEB+RBAORIER -

BB RERT 2178 T IR L WO P /5 B R
ETEMBEITOROREKTES
FrEEBEEREST S ERS %
17 B 15 #910% (B1164,000,0004% A%
%) o I+ =& B # A Al 1R
BERERNEREFS THNEEZS
BER2EERTHRESRGOEE T
PR M fr] B ] B B2 47 AR 19 891 % (B
16,400,0000% A% 13 ) ° {E {a] #8 i 11t
PREERE — PR HEREALCRKRRE
REERAG EHE -

BRYARREZHIRFBITHAR
SREFEMBHEANBRE 98
ERESBIUFNTESOE -
ESN - PMEAAT + — B A R AR T
ARBETERRABIIERNTE
BRREEMBEANTRAER
- LBERNEMERDETRN
M0 1% HBE (REARAINE
HAEBMZEREFE) BB5EEE
T HARERA® EEEIEK
RAVHLE -

REBRENENTHARABR
WAMES TN NHARINER
REAKIBTRFEM IR D
BRENTENHESEET &8
EEBREZEHARETHTFZ
BALE-
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31. Share option reserve (continued) . BRERE =

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors,
but may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange
closing price of the Shares on the date of offer of the share options;
and (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer.

The fair values of share options at the date of grant of the options
are calculated using a Binomial Option Pricing Model. The fair value
of the share option is based on the terms and conditions of the
share options upon which the options were granted, share price
at the date of the grant, the historical volatility of the Shares, the
historical dividend vyield and the risk-free interest rate is referenced
to the prevailing interest rate of the Hong Kong Government Bonds.

Upon completion of the bonus issue on 9 July 2015, the exercise
price and the number of Shares to be issued and allotted under the
outstanding share options had been adjusted pursuant to the terms
of the Share Option Scheme in the manner set out below:

Immediately before the completion of
the bonus issue

BRENTEERESFETE L
AERAT&ESE : ()BRHRER
REEH) B HAE R X Py T & ¢ R (i)
RPN ERZLHRHATAERS B
B PrEFHRmE

BRERLBEHMNAFEIR =R
AHREEERUFE -BRENRD
B R RIBR T RE IR B IR
F BETEHNKRE BROMNBE
BR3P B R R AR LR A
R (2EFERFEFNRTHE)

2| A E

A E—{?Hj °

201557 AOH SEAK AT IR B 1T 18 -
M AT B AR RE R 1T (B R4 b A%
TEOTREZERNDEE EREER
HERTEI MG AR AT ¢

Immediately after the completion of
the bonus issue

FEARBTRRA ERARBITRRE

Exercise price Number of Adjusted exercise  Adjusted number of

Date of share options granted per Share outstanding options price per Share  outstanding options

RRAERTHE

RiBRENA S BRAGEE ATRERENHE KREGRITEE RENEE

24/4/2012 HK$2.48 4,856,448 HK$0.827 14,569,344
20124 R24R 2.48% T 0.827/57T

10/1/2014 HK$3.79 36,959,910 HK$1.264 110,879,730
2014517108 3T9BTT 1.2647%7C

11/6/2015 HK$14.56 4,500,000 HK$4.854 13,500,000
201566A11H 14,567 7T 4,854 7T

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No share option was exercised during the year ended 31 December
2028 and 31 December 2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group did not
recognised an equity-settled share-based compensation expense
for the share options under the Share Option Scheme in profit or
loss (2022: HK$417,000).

PR B TR A ABIKAE 3K
RIERAE LREZER -

H £2023F12 A31H &20224F12
AB1BIEFE @ BEEITERERE -

B E2023F12A31B IEFE K&
B\ A ok B AR A AT 21 TE T MY BE AR A
REZERUESEEUARD AE
fit B9 3 BN B 2 (20224F : 417,000
JL) °
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31. Share option reserve (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023, nil and 12,147,493 share
options were lapsed and forfeited (2022: 316,668 and 3,249,164
share options were lapsed and forfeited, respectively) prior to the
vesting date as a result of staff resignation.
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1. ERERE

#H E2023F12A31H IEFE -
HREIFHE 2538ZMHK
12,147,493 R E N B B 5
AT 5 3 8 R (20224 - B Rl A
316,66817 13,249,164 B A% f& 5
K s2 U)o

2023 2022
2023 20224

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise price Number of  exercise price Number of
HKS$ per Share options  HK$ per Share options

MELHTE MEF97E
FRE T BREZE SRBT BREZE
At 1 January M1A1H 1.562 46,196,299 1.557 49,762,131
Forfeited during the year FRRU 1.540 (12,147,493) 1.492 (3,249,164)
Lapsed during the year CANE - - 1.450 (316,668)
Exercised during the year FAIHE - - = -
At 31 December ®12H318 1.570 34,048,806 1.562 46,196,299

At 31 December 2023, the Company had 34,048,806 (2022:
46,196,299) share options outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme, which represents approximately 0.36% (2022: 0.48%)
of the Shares in issue as at 31 December 2023. The exercise
in full of the remaining share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 34,048,806
additional Shares (2022: 49,196,299 Shares) and additional share
capital of HK$53,454,000 (before issuance expenses) (2022:
HK$72,157,000). The option periods of the share options are from
10 January 2014 to 9 January 2024, from 13 July 2017 to 12 July
2027, from 4 July 2018 to 3 July 2028 and from 11 September
2019 to 10 September 2029.

K2023F12H31H + A& 7
H34,048,8061 (20224 :
46,196,29910 ) FERR #E 5T 8118 T &
RATIE A BE IR - (574202312 A
318 B 217 i& 10 A 490.36% (2022
F:0.48%) - RIBEARF B BIH
BEARERE HHEHBBRESET
i + & & B %A H) 3% 1734,048,806 %
B 17 (20224F : 49,196,2994%) * KA
X 58 ) A% AN53,454,00058 7T (K 30
%217 FI 7 ) (20224 : 72,157,000
BIL) c BMREMNHAETHEEBEA
2014%1 H10H £202441 H9H8 -
201757 A13B £20274%7 128 -
201847 A48 £2028%7A3R &
201949 A11HE 20299 H10H o
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32.

33.

Reserve

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Other reserve of the Group as at 31 December 2023 and 2022
represents a merger reserve, being the difference between the
issued share capital of HK$31,980,000 of Guotai Junan (Hong
Kong) Limited and the amount of share capital and share premium
of HK$1,268,440,000 of the Company transferred and issued to
GJHL in exchange for the entire issued share capital of Guotai
Junan (Hong Kong) Limited on 14 June 2010.

Investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net
change in the fair value of investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income under HKFRS 9 that are held
at the end of the reporting period.

Capital commitments and other
commitments

Capital commitments

The Group had capital commitments for system upgrade and
renovation of premises of approximately HK$11,614,000 which
were contracted but not provided for as at 31 December 2023
(2022: HK$9,798,000).

Other commitments

The Group undertakes underwriting obligations on placing, IPO,
takeover and merger activities and financial obligations to loan
facilities granted to customers. As at 31 December 2023, there was
no underwriting obligation (2022: HK$1,755 million).

32.

33.

&t

AEENFHEEBEREZHNES
BEEHRANZR -

20234 K2022F12A31H » A"N&
BHEMEE RGOS - BIR2010
F6A14B BEHRELZ (FEB)BR
A A B %97 % 4831,980,0007% 7T
BN AW EEE TR EE N
TR A R B 15 0 (B A (AR B B F=
B (BB BRRANEIE BT
B 7)) 4 581,268,440,000/% 7T 2 [
By Z%E o

REEMHBERNREDRREE
REEEMBHHRELENFORET
REAFEFARMEERENER
BERFEMRTEIFE-

BEXRAEREMAR

BAREE
AREBRARRZGE R YEREEL
B R ANE #911,614,000/8 JC © 5% X
IH B 7] 4918 3 K 7220234 12 A 31
B T LA 5 (20224 : 9,798,000
TT) °

H b & e

AEEBARE BAAHAEE K
BREMEBREABERABR AR
FTEFMNE N ERBERE A -
MR2023F12A31H » A& B #f &%
$H ARG (20224F - 1,775A BB TT) °
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34. Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s
emoluments

(a) Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s

BHREZER | 20235k 219

UMEE -ETERITHEAR
[

(@ EX - EERTHRAR

current emoluments

The current emoluments of every director of the Company
paid/payable by the Group for the years ended 31 December

2023 and 2022 are set out below:

Year ended 31 December 2023

RS

N & B A £20234F [K20224F
12A31B L FEEN B
AARBSEZRENHEH
B0 :

B £2023F12B31HLFE

Employer’s
contribution
Salaries and Discretionary  to pension
Director fee  allowances bonuses* scheme Total
ExmEne
EEHE HFERER [Rp N sHEMR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of director EEng TET TET TET TET TERT
Executive directors: HITEE -
Yim Fung (note (i) & (it 35()) - 4,320 3,390 61 7,771
Qi Haiying (note (ii) A8 2 (it (i) - 4,108 3,360 93 7,561
Non-executive directors: FHTEE -
Yu Jian e - - - - -
Hu Xupeng HelE - - - - -
Yu Xuping EBF - - - - -
Independent non-executive BUHHTEE :
directors:
Fu Tingmei BiEx 550 - - - 550
Song Ming (note (iv)) 8 (B E(v)) - - - - -
Tsang Yiu Keung (note (vi) 125 (Pt E(vi) 548 - - - 548
Chan Ka Keung Ceajer Bx % 550 - - - 550
Liu Chung Mun (note (v)) B () 91 - - - 91
1,739 8,428 6,750 154 17,071
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34. Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s
emoluments (continued)

(a) Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s
current emoluments (continued)

UMEE -ETERITHEAR

Year ended 31 December 2022

< =)

() EE IERTHAR
REME w2
B ZE2022F12831A L FE

Employer’s
contribution
Salaries and  Discretionary to pension
Director fee allowances bonuses™ scheme Total
EFXmRAKe
EEME  HelEl B 5 A TR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of director g THT THT THET THL THT
Executive directors: HITEE
Yim Fung (note (i) A& (Fi3E() - 4,320 3,732 141 8,193
Qi Halying (note (ii) AR 2 (Bt 25 (i)) - 4,027 3,342 141 7,510
Non-executive directors: FHTEE :
Yu Jian ke - - - _ _
Hu Xupeng B = = = - -
Yu Xuping EY:RE - - - - -
Independent non-executive  BUHHTEE -
directors:
Fu Tingmei B 550 - - - 550
Song Ming (note (i) RE (M) 228 - - - 298
Tsang Yiu Keung (note (vi) 228 (k) 550 - - - 550
Chan Ka Keung Ceajer %3 550 - - - 550
1,878 8,347 7,074 282 17,581

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during

the year.

This amount is the discretionary bonus for immediate distribution of
directors’ service in the corresponding year, and the deferred bonus will

be disclosed in the annual report corresponding to the year in which the

payment is made (after the Company’s established conditions are met).

FATEESEHEZTHA
8 W E K R = 0ER T ) B
M2 B

& B R B B R B R
EERBOEEEL R
RABEER REARTH
TR HETR) M0 4 BE M0 4 2R
T -
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34. Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s
emoluments (continued)

(a) Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s
current emoluments (continued)
The remuneration of the Executive Directors and senior
management is determined by the Remuneration Committee
of the Company. The Remuneration Committee, authorized by
the Board, is responsible not only for setting the remuneration
of the executive directors and senior management but also for
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
Non-executive Directors, establishing formal and transparent
procedures for formulating remuneration policies, and
considering matters related to any share schemes.

In determining the remuneration of the Executive Directors and
senior management, the Remuneration Committee considers
factors such as the level of remuneration in comparable
companies, the Company’s development strategy, operational
conditions, and the results of the performance appraisal of
the Executive Directors and senior management, ensuring
that remuneration is maintained at a reasonable market level.
This also fully mobilizes the work enthusiasm of the Executive
Directors and senior management with the goal of attracting
and retaining high-quality talent to maintain the Company’s
competitiveness.

The Remuneration Committee currently consists of three
Directors, including two Independent Non-executive Directors
and one Non-executive Director, ensuring the independence
of the decision-making process for the remuneration of
Directors and senior management. Moreover, no director or
any of their associates may participate in the deliberation and
decision-making process of their own remuneration package.
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MEBEE FTFERTHEAR
[ EAC D)

() E5 EERITHAR

B E 2
HITEEREREEABN
EMEBRARAFTMES
eET -FHEEeTESe
B RETHITEERSRK
EEASWEHMI  HEEH
RTEE FMEELE
EeEHEBES  BHTH
BBk & 2~ F = R BRI
FUA K% = B A AR5
EESE

REARAEEHFHE - ©
BEATEERRREEAR
ZEBE - HE B e E EH
AEZBREREARHHKF
NAERBE  KEBEREFER
E O HERTEERSRER
ANEREXEERER  BF
EMHEEKYFE - RAEFEDHA
PHRTEERGRAEEAR
B IER®RIME - ERRS &R
BREAT  REQAHEFEND
B -
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HEZRAREBEABFHMH
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34. Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s
emoluments (continued)

(b) Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s
deferred emoluments
In prior years, certain directors were granted share options,
in respect of their services to the Group, under the Share
Option Scheme, further details of which are set out in note
31 to the financial statements. The fair value of such options,
which has been recognised in the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount included
in the financial statements for the current year is included in
the following directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration
disclosures.

The amount of share-based compensation expense illustrated
in the below table represents amortisation to profit or loss of
the fair value of these share options granted to the directors
measured at the respective grant dates.

CERERITHRAR

(&)

b) EF ETFERITHAR

RBEFE ETEERER
REEETHESAEER
W AR 75 1 R AR
—THBERMBRENE
31 - FRBRENRFE(E
REBHEANBEELEME
g R P RERR) IR R A
HIEETE - Mat ARFEM SR
KMEBEIATXESER
TETBRASFHMEES -

R P A B D R E R F
WRXEBARTEENE
BEZAERELBAHAEN
R ERBETHEESHE -
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34. Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s

emoluments (continued)

(b) Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s

deferred emoluments (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2023

Share-based compensation
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MEBEE FERTHEAR
M £ )

(b) EF - EERTHRAR

EIEEN € ()
HZE2023F12831HLELFE

reserve Cash-based compensation
DRGRER SN R DREREREMGEE
Share option scheme Deferred cash bonuses
BREE BEERETA
Deferred
Respective cash bonus
Share option year of Year of expense
Date of grant expense service  distribution (note (iii))
BERETA
REEH  BREEX RARBEH AREE B Rk (i)
HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of director ESnE Thn TER
Executive directors: HITEE:

Yim Fung (note (i) B (M) - 2021 2023 2,441
- 2020 2023 1,741
- 2019 2023 1,339
Qi Halying (note (ii)) AR 2 (= (i) - 2021 2023 1,985
- 2020 2023 1,209
- 2019 2023 1,008

Non-executive directors:
Yu Jian

Hu Xupeng

Yu Xuping

Independent non-executive
directors:

Fu Tingmei

Song Ming (note (iv))

Tsang Yiu Keung (note (vi))

Chan Ka Keung Ceajer

Liu Chung Mun (note (v))

HHTEE:
kg

e
RB¥

BUFHTEE

T
baliis

—

(Bt zE(vi)

mE >

ot 43

= N @ &
PU= =S

D

(H&EW)

2
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34. Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s 34. B - I ERTHAEAR

emoluments (continued) M€ )

(b) Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s b) EE5 - TERITHEAR
deferred emoluments (continued) EIEEN € (2)
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE2022F12H31H L FE

Share-based compensation

reserve Cash-based compensation
AR AR B R WA BAREHEE
Share option scheme Deferred cash bonuses
BRET 2 BER A
Deferred
Respective cash bonus
Share option year of Year of expense
Date of grant expense service distribution (note (iii)
BERSTA
RLEE  BRERx XERBER PREE R (B (i)
HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of director ESEE TR THL
Executive directors: HITEE -
Yim Fung (note (i) RO (F3E() 11/9/2019 40 2020 2022 1,741
2019 2022 1,339
Qi Halying (note (i) AR 2 (i & (i)) 11/9/2019 40 2020 2022 1,209
2019 2022 1,008
Non-executive directors: FHTEE:
Yu Jian tes - _
Hu Xupeng N - -
Yu Xuping ERY - -
Independent non-executive BUHHTEE -
directors:
Fu Tingmel fBEx - -
Song Ming (note (iv)) A (F3E () - -
Tsang Yiu Keung (note (vi) & 2o (FEvi) - -
Chan Ka Keung Ceajer REH - -

87,556 80 5,297
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34. Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s
emoluments (continued)

(b) Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s
deferred emoluments (continued)

Note (i): Dr Yim Fung is the executive director and Chairman of the
Company.

Note (ii): Ms QI Haiying is the executive director and CEO.

Note (ii):  The deferred cash bonus was paid after the completion of

evaluation of prior years performance of the executive directors.

Note (iv):  Dr. Song Ming retired as a director on 31 May 2022.

Note (v): Mr. Liu Chung Mun was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 10 October 2023.

Note (vi):  Mr. Tsang Yiu Keung resigned as an independent non-executive
director with effect from 31 December 2023.

The directors remunerations included share-based
compensation of approximately HK$nil (2022: HK$80,000)
attributable to share options granted by Company, part of
which was in respect of their services to the Company.
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UMEE -ETERITHEAR

< =)

b) EE - EFERTHAR
EIEEN € (2)

B EE () -

B = (ii) -

i = i) -

B 3£ (iv) ¢

B =E(v) -

B 3£ (vi)

BIEE L RARR BT
BERIRF

BERLLARGTES
FITRIER -

ERBEFERATES
REAMFHE TR
ERSTELL -

RS 1E T R2022%5 8
S1RRMEES -

B2 85 & 722023410
B10BEZ T A% 3
HITEE -

TR A BT B
HMITEE - B2023F12
A31B#AERK -

BEHMNEIEAR AR H B E
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D ThEh AR S | A A 7R 4 89 AR 75 i
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35. Notes to the consolidated statement of 3. LR ERERME
cash flows
(a) Cash flows from operating activities (a) ,%% EEBHELENEESR
2023 2022
202345 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FB T FE T
Cash flows from operating activities RETHEENEERE
Profit before tax B 75 Al g A 191,416 26,657
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation e 85,352 78,077
Share-based compensation expense LARR 15 7 Z 5 79 37 B 5 =2 - 417
Unrealised loss/(gain) on financial ERAFEFABRTEDN
instruments measured at fair value tMITAERERER
through profit of loss (Wzs) (71,113) 56,174
Unrealised (gain)/loss on debt securities B2 1TEEE S R EH
in issue (Mzs) /K548 68,057 (1,370,616)
Unrealised gain on derivative financial TESRE T BEREIE YR
instruments 126,207 411,121
Finance cost A& B 1,495,006 676,664
Interest income LB WA (1,763,134) (1,118,097)
Dividend income % B WA (21,323) (43,775)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and ~ HEWE¥ HE RXEZ
equipment &5 18 4,311 =
Effect of loss allowance on loans and HTEFES &:& K5 &
advances to customers, net TE%( TE 23,984 162,692
Effect of loss allowance on accounts BB F BEREET 2
receivable, net 37,030 8,132
Effect of loss allowance on client trust P ERITESRFEE
bank balance, net BiETE (2,289) (4,877)
Effect of loss allowance on other H b e WG IR B8
receivables, net ze 608 (18)
Effect of loss allowance on receivable = A [ 5% 173 & F’Z‘“Hﬂl KRIE F
from reverse repurchase agreements, EEBHETE
net (391) (120)
Effect of loss allowance on cash and FEEREEESR
cash equivalents, net ReEEBYNTE - -
Effect of loss allowance on bank RITFERFEERETE
deposits, net 37 186
Effect of loss allowance on financial assets ~ E5 18 & ¥ 1% A FET A
at fair value through other comprehensive  E & m Wz & @& &E
income of-2- 511 (11,975)
174,269 (1,129,409)
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35. Notes to the consolidated statement of

cash flows (continued)

(a) Cash flows from operating activities
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35. mEBEERERMT =

() REEFHELANREER

(continued) E#)
2023 2022
20234F 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Decrease/(increase) in other assets Hi&ERD (35Gn) (5,281) 14,279
Increase in financial assets at fair value  EAFEFABENERE
through profit or loss BN (10,401,590) (3,641,325)
Decrease/(increase) in derivative financial #7444 & T B4~ (4 hn)
instruments 207,404 (900,148)
Decrease in loans and advances to BWTEPHERRBFE D
customers 622,387 9,808,721
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable &Yz I8 (38 0) /8 (2,786,692) 910,163
(Increase)/decrease in receivable from f [0 (20 % 167 2 e SR TR (38 0n)
reverse repurchase agreements Ve (152,343) 3,857,004
Increase/(decrease) in obligations under B B& BV EIEIE N~ (Bl 4>)
repurchase agreements 6,332,522 (1,560,650)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and ~ FEfT 7 « 124 & H fh fE Uk
other receivables IR (6,380) (94,655)
Increase/(decrease) in financial liabilities at #Z A FEFABZN /B
fair value through profit or loss &30, Ol 4) 330,260 (6,103,295)
(Increase)/decrease in client trust bank B P{ZE8RIT4AE (38 n)
balances N a (400,708) 4,462,697
Increase in time deposits TE HA 15 R E N (222) (96,138)
Decrease in bank deposits RTT 17 OR A - =
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable & FRIEIE A0, GFi4>) 1,322,031 (3,860,838)
Decrease in other payables and accrued — H fth & 5 ZUE & fE 51 & &R
liabilities b (199,965) (118,162)
Increase in financial assets at fair value 2 2AFEH A H b2 @ Uz
through other comprehensive income H < Bh & EE L N (350,786) (64,851)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations #& & 27 (FTA) /FT3R & (5,315,094) 1,483,393
Hong Kong profits tax EREFEBHER
refund/(paid) (ENEENEHR) 103,531 (378,774)
Interest received 2 UA B 1,527,915 1,101,329
Interest paid EAIFE (1,242,690) (586,502)
Dividend received B W% 8 19,967 43,775
Net cash flows (used in)/from KRS (FTR) FTiSIRE
operating activities mEFEE (4,906,371) 1,663,221
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3. mEEEREXRMT 2

35. Notes to the consolidated statement of
cash flows (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) MEEBHEENEES
activities B
Debt
Bank Lease securities
borrowings liabilities in issue
RITER HEEE BSRTEERS
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET TERT
At 1 January 2022 R2022%1 818 5,307,339 67,864 45,491,783
Changes from financing cash B&ER & REE
flows 4,042,549 (28,662) (2,430,023)
Foreign exchange movement, 4 E & 8% 58
net (44,113) (153) (202,876)
Interest expense FEREZ 135,086 1,359 242,376
Additions NE - 2,823 -
Interest paid classified as NEAKERSREN
operating cash flows B F B (110,482) - (218,124)
Increase in interest payable  F& {7l 23 N (24,603) - (24,252)
Unrealised gain on debt BETEHREFRER
securities in issue g - - (1,370,616)
9,305,776 43,231 41,488,268
At 1 January 2023 7R2023%1 A1H 9,305,776 43,231 41,488,268
Changes from financing cash BEREREEH)
flows 513,679 (35,323) 4,155,408
Foreign exchange movement, 4 FE % 8 )% 58
net 98,645 3,383 51,979
Interest expense MEBRX 562,366 1,168 355,347
Additions NE - 13,833 -
Disposal == - (4,970) -
Interest paid classified as DERKEEEHSMEN
operating cash flows B E (511,616) - (355,347)
Increase in interest payable &1 FI 838 0 (50,751) - -
Unrealised loss on debt BETEBELFRER
securities in issue &5 18 - - 68,057
9,918,099 21,322 45,763,712
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35. Notes to the consolidated statement of
cash flows (continued)

(c) Major non-cash transactions
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right
of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$12,226,000 (2022:
HK$2,699,000) and HK$13,833,000 (2022: HK$2,823,000),
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for property,
plant and equipment.

36. Unconsolidated structured entity

A structured entity is an entity in which voting rights are not the
dominant factor in deciding control. Structured entity is generally
created to achieve a narrow and well defined objective with
restrictions around their ongoing activities.

Depending on the Group’s power over the activities of the entity
and its exposure to and the ability to influence its own returns, it
may consolidate the entity. In other cases, it may sponsor or have
an interest in such an entity but does not consolidate it. The Group
sponsors an entity when:

(i) It is the majority user of the entity;

(i) Its name appears in the name of the entity or on the products
issued by the entity;

(i) It provides implicit or explicit guarantees of the entity’s
performance; and

(iv) It led the formation of the entity.

The unconsolidated structured entities invest in a range of asset
classes. The Group receives income from these unconsolidated
structured entities through the receipt of arrangement fees and
interest income from interest bearing notes issued by these entities.
As of 31 December 2023, the Group held notes of HK$1,153 million
(2022: HK$2,359 million), under financial assets held for trading and
investments (note 20), issued by these entities.

35.

36.
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meBREeERERME®

c) EEFREXRS

#im AEBRYE BE
HEHE RS B AR

iwﬁﬁﬁgéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

£12,226,0007% JT (20224 :
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(iv) EEERIUZERE-

*@é%%ﬁ%mhém%ﬁﬁF
Rl - AEBBRBEEZEERET
B 5 2 —FWW&H%%&ﬂa%
AMBZERGEE ST B
A ° & £2023F12831H * &
BEERFEEEREESMEE (I
H20) ETHRAZEERBTNE
1,158 8 & % 7T (20224 : 2,359
BEBIT) °



230 Guotai Junan International | Annual Report 2023

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 5 ¥R 3R B &

31 December 2023
2023%F12A31H

36. Unconsolidated structured entity (continued)

Income from the sponsored structured entities and assets
transferred to the structured entities are as follow:

36. RrEEBUHEE »

KEXEPHEBUEEROBRAR
BETHEBUEEENEELT

2023 2022
20235 20226
Interest Commission Assets Interest  Commission Assets
income and fees  transferred income and fees  transferred

MERA AekER CEREE FSWA R2RER CBREE

HK$'000 HK$'000 H
TERT TERL

K$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TR AL

Assets securitisations BEEZEA 3,283 -

- 29,248 14,695 =

37. Five highest paid individuals

Excluding amounts paid or payable by way of commission of sales
generated by the individuals, the five highest paid employees
during the year included two (2022: two) directors, details of
whose remuneration are set out in note 34 above. Details of the
remuneration of the remaining three (2022: three) non-director and
highest paid employees for the year are as follows:

7. ENEEHFMA L

BRUERNALTEENHEESREHA
Ak R R IE SN FRANL
== HEES BIEMmE (20224F
MB)ES EHFMEFBEHN LX
5234  F N H &8 = & (20224 :
—R)FEERESHTMEENH

RIS LT -

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Salaries and allowances e MOER 9,310 9,960
Discretionary bonuses 15 TEAT 15,647 12,020
Employer’s contribution to pension scheme & = [E:R R & 5T 2] 4 2 54 54
Sub-total NEF 25,011 22,034

Share-based compensation reserve LA R 0 7 2 1t 5 B 8 4
— Share option expense — B AR R R S - 38
Total #Et 25,011 22,072
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7. A VB HFM A 2
EE MALEEESTHIES

37. Five highest paid individuals (continued)

The number of non-director and highest paid employees of the

Group whose emoluments fell within the following bands is as WA KEMSEELNT :
follows:
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Number of Number of
employees employees
BEAE EE AR
Emolument bands [
- HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 - 6,000,001 7T 26,500,000/ 7T - 1
- HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 - 6,500,001 7T 27,000,000/ 7T - 1
- HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 - 7,000,001 7T 27,500,000/ 7T 1 -
- HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 - 7,500,001 7T 28,000,000/ 7T -
- HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000 - 8,000,001 7T 28,500,000/ 7T 1 -
- HK$9,500,001 to HK$10,000,000 - 9,500,001 7T £10,000,0007% 7T 1 -
3 8

38. Related party transactions

B.EAHEAIRS

(@ In addition to the transactions and balances set out elsewhere (a BRFBHRRIITIHIBR
in the financial statements, the Group had the following SR EEBIN - NEBE N E N
material transactions with related parties during the year. BEt T EITIATEARAR S

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET T
Commission expenses to the ST BBZER AR
ultimate holding company ikl (i) (5,702) (844)
Professional and consultancy fees 15 F [F & i B A &1 #)
paid to fellow subsidiaries EXLBRE (ii) (36,750) (47,700)
Information technology logistic ST BREZER DR
consultancy fees paid to the EERMMRERE
ultimate holding company (iif) (9,825) (1,100)
Consultancy services income B AR IR A Bl SR Y
received from the ultimate 7 o AR 7% W e
holding company (iv) 5,247 389
Consultancy services fee paid to &L A 7L A
the ultimate holding company BRI E (v) (8,682) =
Commission and handling income B B & 2% A 2] WEH)
from an immediate holding Mok FEE K
company (vi) 10 10
Commission and handling income B & & #5i% A 7 U B A
from the ultimate holding HekFEE K
company (vii) 4,703 67
Underwriting fee and sponsor fee B & & #5i% A 7 U EL A
income from the ultimate BB REHE R
holding company (viii) 410 =
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38. Related party transactions (continued)

(@  (continued)

38.BEBMAIRZE @)
(@) (&)

Notes

B

2023
20234
HK$’000
FBT

2022
20224
HK$’ 000
T

Commission and handling income
from fellow subsidiaries

Commission income and handling
income from another fellow
subsidiary

Consultancy service fee and
corporate finance service fee
paid to the ultimate holding
company and fellow subsidiary

Commission income of private
funds managed by a fellow
subsidiary

Financial services income from a
fellow subsidiary

BREMEARKENAEE
kFEBK=E

85— R B F KRERHE
BekFEE WS

XN FRAER AR RE
MEB QR ARSEE R
TCERERSGE

RRMBAREELEES
B A

B —EEZRM B QK E
& B AR TS A

(ix)

(xil)

(ili)

10,714 4,435

82 66

(14,019) (18,708)

1,031 707

- 2,185

Notes:

(i)

(i

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

The commission expenses to the ultimate holding company were
calculated based on the percentage of the transaction value stated in the
Cooperation Agreement signed with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

The professional and consultancy fees paid to the fellow subsidiaries
for the provision of capital market information were charged at
HK$36,750,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022:
HK$47,700,000).

The Information technology logistic consultancy fees paid to the
ultimate holding company for the provision of information technology
logistic services were charged at HK$9,825,000 for the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: HK$1,100,000).

The consultancy services income received from the ultimate holding
company for the provision of consultancy services was received
at HK$5,247,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022:
HK$389,000).

The consultancy services fee paid to the ultimate holding company for
the provision of consultancy services was charged at HK$8,682,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: HKS$nil).

The commission and handling income received from the immediate
holding company was based on the pricing stated in the signed
brokerage agreement with wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

(i

(ii)

(vi)

XN FREZEBRDANMEATD
BERDNBAN-—R2EME R AR
YHEERHRIIANKZEA DL

s
=
TE

H £2023F12A31H I FZ » it
HEARATHER M AR R B R GE
X B ¥ K % 78 £36,750,0007% 7T
(20224 : 47,700,000/ 7T) °

H E2023F 128318 IEEE - &
RS BRI Y7 R 75 A B AR 45 IR
AR EERETYMRERAE R
9,825,0007% 7T (20224 : 1,100,000
HBIT) o

H E2023F12A31B IEEE &
R AR 7S A AR AR R AR A &) YR ER
7 7 38 AR 75 UL A B5,247,0007 7T
(20224 : 389,000/ 7T) °

H E2023F12A31H L FZ - fhie
BRI R ZELIER DB AT H
4 5 R % & 58,682,000 7T (2022
FTHET) o

BEZRERARDKRNMBS RFE
BREHRERRAZEMNE QA
BUNBLE BRI ANEBRE



BEHERER | 2023FHK 233

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% ¥R MY aE

31 December 2023
2023%F12A31H

B.BEHAIRZ &)

38. Related party transactions (continued)

(@) (continued) (a (&

Notes: (continued) MisE : (48)

(vi)  The commission and handling income received from the ultimate holding (vii BxKRERARKESEE
company was based on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage RFEBEBWZETHIRERR 7]
agreement with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. —RE2EMBAFE T HK

iR IIANEBKE -

(viij)  The underwriting and sponsor fee income received from the ultimate (vii) B &R ER R T UEE B
holding company was based on the underwriting and sponsor agreement REB) B IR EFKRIER AT
with the ultimate holding company. BIUNBHEENHRKE -

(ix) The commission and handling income received from fellow subsidiaries (ix) BRZEKNBATWENFEES
were based on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement RFEBEWZETIIRE RN 7]
with wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. 2EMBRB RN ELH

HYIPNEBWE -

(%) The commission income and handling income received from another (x) BE—RZEHWERKEK
fellow subsidiary were based on the pricing stated in the signed AekasRkRFEBRS IR
brokerage agreement with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. EHARA—RE2EHBRQ G

FEUNK L MR AR EE
&%

(xij  The consultancy service fee and corporate finance service fee paid x) ZRFHREBERIROES
to the ultimate holding company were based on the pricing stated in BREERLPERMEREEIR
consultancy services and corporate finance services agreements with EBAQAREENB AT K HE
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. =0 AR 75 K 1 3 Bl B AR 7S 19 =%

FFT # 7E {B AR ©

(xii)  The commission income received from private funds was based on the xi) BALEESWEANFES KA
pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement with wholly-owned DBDERERXQABEENEB R
subsidiaries of the Company. AR &L mEEEE

W ER o

(xii) ~ The financial services income received from a fellow subsidiary were (xii) R XK B A R WEA & &l
based on the pricing stated in the signed financial service agreement REWATIRIBEERNADFZD
with wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. BB AREZETH S R RGE

165 2 FT 8 7Y € (B AR ©
(xiv) Included in the Group’s accounts receivable was a broker receivable (xiv) 785 B8 KR IE B ER

due from the ultimate holding company of HK$81,226,000 (2022:
HK$88,297,000) arising from dealing in securities as at 31 December
20283. The credit terms provided to the ultimate holding company were
consistent with the practice of the securities dealing industry. The
balance was unsecured, interest-free and receivable on the settlement
day under the relevant market practices.

2023F12ABIB EE B A E
EHEIRREIER A REL
2% 1881,226,0005% 7T (2022
£ 188,297,000/ 7T) ° [Al &
BRI ARRENEERR
HELSBEETENEL B -
RIBHEBETSED  Z&%
AEER RSB RARGEHE
B Y ER »
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38. Related party transactions (continued)
(@  (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(xv) Included in the Group’s accounts payable was a broker payable due
to the ultimate holding company of HK$8,506,000 (2022: HK$924,000)
arising from dealing in securities as at 31 December 2023. The balance
was unsecured, interest-free and payable on the settlement day under

the relevant market practices.

(xvi)  Included in the Group’s prepayments, deposits and other receivables of
HK$58,793,000 (31 December 2022: HK$59,012,000) was an advance
prepayment to the fellow subsidiary for the professional and consultancy
fee as at 31 December 2023 mentioned in note (ii) above.

(xvii)  Included in the Group’s accounts payable was an accrual payable due
to the ultimate holding company of HK$5,943,000 (31 December 2022:
HK$1,125,000) arising from information technology logistic consultancy
service received as at 31 December 2023 mentioned in note (iii) above

(xviii) Included in the Group’s accounts receivables were amounts due from
the ultimate holding company of HK$5,830,000 (2022: HK$397,000) for
consultancy services income provided mentioned in the note (iv) above.

(xix)  Included in the Group’s accounts payables were amounts due to
the ultimate holding company of HK$8,718,000 (2022: HK$nil) for
consultancy services fee paid mentioned in the note (v) above.

(xx)  Included in the Group’s payables were the accounts payables to
clients in note (vi) above arising from dealing in securities of HK$4,000
(31 December 2022: HK$11,000). The balances were unsecured,

interest-bearing and payable on demand.

B.BEHAIRZ &)

(@)

(&
Y3E -

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(Xix)

(xx)

(%)

RNEEZEMEREER
2023F12ABIB EE B A E
EZEMNRKRERARZE
40 FE < 5% 788,506,000 T
(20224 : 924,000 70) ° 1R
BHRBEMIBED Z&EHE
EEE 2B RAREEH
XAt e

AEEMBEMNRE B2
Ko H 4 & Y7 3 1B58,793,000
B (20221283108
59,012,000/ 7t) B#E 5 £ X
B 5 (ii) By 2t 742023412 A 31
BEXRFEAERR RN B
ARIFB ZFKIE -

M2023%F12HA31H * XK E
9 FE 1 BR 3B $E Tt STt R
(i) Fr it B Wiz B & 15 9
5 5 AR 75 E AR B FE N B AR 9
f& A &) FE 5F 3L IE 5,943,000
B (202291283108
1,125,000 7C) °

7N £ B /Y FE W R IE B EE FE IR
B 484 I& A 7] FUIE5,830,000
7 7t (20224 : 397,000/8
JC) AR E XXM EE(v)FT it e
55 3 AR 75 UL FE IR AR AR 4
IR A BB ER K ©

AEEMENEREER L
KT EE(v)AT A B A5 RE 3 AR 7S
i REERA A K
78,718,000/ T (20224 :
THEIT) °

REB 2 ENERBERSH
B EEE 2B £ ST V)
%= 5 BR 3%4,0007% 7T (20224
128318 : 11,000/ 7T) ° &
HBRAERR FERARE
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38. Related party transactions (continued)
(@  (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(xxi)  Included in the Group’s accounts payables were amounts due to the
ultimate holding company of HK$182,000 (2022: HK$96,000) mentioned
in note (vii) and the fellow subsidiaries of HK$444,328,000 (2022:
HK$152,414,000) mentioned in note (ix) and another fellow subsidiary
of HK$55,000 (2022: HK$1,806,000) mentioned in note (x) arising from
dealing in securities, futures and foreign exchange as at 31 December
2023. The balances were unsecured, interest-bearing and payable on
demand.

(xxii) Included in the Group’s accounts payables were the accounts payable
to the ultimate holding company mentioned in note (xi) for the consulting
service fee and corporate finance service fee of HK$5,423,000 (2022:
HK$7,750,000) as at 31 December 2023.

(xxiii) Included in the Group’s accounts payable were accounts payables to
private funds of HK$31,000 (2022: HK$10,025,000) arising from dealing
in securities mentioned in note (xii) as at 31 December 2023. The
balance was unsecured, interest-bearing and payable on the settlement
day under the relevant market practices.

(xxiv) Included in the Group’s accounts receivable were accounts receivables
from fellow subsidiary of HKS$nil (2022: HK$2,319,000) arising from the
financial services provided mentioned in the note (xiii) above.

The Company’s ultimate holding company, GTJA, is a
state-owned enterprise controlled by the PRC government.
Therefore, other PRC state-owned enterprises are related
parties of the Company and its subsidiaries and any
transaction entered into between the Group and other
PRC state-owned enterprises are regarded as related party
transactions of the Group.
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B.BEHAIRZ &)

(@)

(%)
s - ()

(xxi) 20234128318 » A&
BErvENMREBEEHRAEE
BEXESF HERINEELEZ
B BT EE (vii) BTt FE o B AR R
% A 7]1182,000/% 7t (2022
£ : 96,000/ 7T) - # M
(ix)Fr it & 15 R & BT B R A
444,328,0007% 7T (20224 :
152,414,000% 7t) & 5t M 5
()BT it FE A B — R K B B
‘A A]55,000/4 7T (20224 :
1,806,000/ JT) ° a% & & J)
MR B RARERE
AT o

(xxi) M20234F12F31H » K& H
7 FE 5 3IE B 48 R M AR (xi)
FIT it & 1+ B AR 42 IR A R K9 =%
HRBERCEBRERSEE
5,423,000/ 7T (20224 :
7,750,000 7T ) °

(xxii) M20234F12H31H » K& EH
RO FE 15 3% 78 B 3 Bt BT s (xii) AT
MEABEBEFRFEERMGFLA
£ £ X IE31,000 7T (2022
£ : 10,025,000 TT) ° & &
REEHF FERBEHEA
IS EBHRER B X -

(odiv) AN 5% (B B9 8 UK 5ROB B 38 B
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38.

39.

Related party transactions (continued)

(@  (continued)

Majority of the bank borrowings and deposits of the Group
were entered into with state-owned banks. In addition, the
Group enters into transactions with state-owned enterprises
that relate to the Group’s normal business activities, including
but not limited to brokerage services, corporate finance
business, asset management business, loan and financing
business and investment holding and market making business.
These transactions are entered into in the ordinary course of
business at an arm’s length and under the normal commercial
terms and conditions as to those that would have been
entered into with non-state-owned enterprises, which were
not considered as individually significant in accordance with
HKAS 24.

The related party transactions in respect of items (i) to (ix) and
(xi) to(xiii) also constitute continuing connected transactions to
be disclosed in the annual report as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

(b)  Details of the remuneration of the key management personnel
of the Group are disclosed in note 34 to the financial
statements.

Financial risk management

The Group’s activities mainly expose to such financial risks as
credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management framework focuses on the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and monitoring of these risks which are an inevitable
consequence of being in business. The Group’s aim is therefore
to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and
minimise any potential adverse effect on the Group’s financial
performance.

The Group’s risk management policies are approved by the
Board and are designed to identify and analyse these risks, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor the risks and
adherence to limits by means of reliable and up-to-date information.
The Board provides written principles for overall risk management.
The Group regularly reviews its risk management policies to reflect
any change in the market and clients.
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39. Financial risk management (continued)

The main financial risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The
policies for managing each of these risks are summarised below:

Credit risk

Credit exposures arise principally from loans and advances to
customers, accounts receivable, debt securities, bank balances and
client trust bank balances which are included in the Group’s asset
portfolio.

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Board delegates to the management committees the duties to
monitor the credit risk of the Group. Members of the management
committees include, inter alia, the CEO, the chief financial officer,
the CRO, responsible officers and the head of related control
departments. The management committees are mainly responsible
for the development of financing business and approval of major
credit exposure and the risk management committee to provide
independent supervision of all credit risk metrics and limits.

The risk management department and business department are
responsible for approval, monitoring and review of the Group’s
credit risk of financing clients. It is also responsible for making
settlement calls when the trades of financing clients exceed
their respective limits. Failure to meet margin calls may result
in liquidation of the client’s position. The credit limit and margin
limit for each client and the lending ratio of securities acceptable
as collateral prepared by business department and approved by
risk management department, the significant transaction will be
approved by the management committees.

Loans and advances to customers including IPO loans for
subscription of new shares are normally settled within 1 week from
the drawdown date. Forced liquidation action would be taken if
the customers fail to settle their shortfall within a specific period of
tolerance after the IPO allotment result is announced.

For debt securities, external rating such as Standard & Poor’s
and Moody’s ratings or their equivalents are used by the risk
management department for managing credit risk exposures as
supplemented by the Group’s own credit assessment.
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39. Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies (continued)

The Group’s bank balances are deposited in respectable and
large commercial banks. For the client trust bank balances which
are held in segregated accounts, they are deposited in authorised
financial institutions in Hong Kong. The credit risk of bank balances
and client trust bank balances is considered insignificant.

Accounts receivable from clients represent receivables from clients
arising from dealing in securities, which normally had a delivery—
against payment settlement term of 1 to 3 days. The Group allows
credit up to the settlement dates of the respective securities
transactions (normally from T+1 to T+3 days). All applications for
credit limits must be reviewed by the credit manager and approved
by risk management department or the management committees.
The risk management department and business department
determines whether a forced liquidation action is to be taken
against clients with overdue balances on a case-by-case basis. The
management committees regularly reviews the overdue balances.

The Group only accepts margin deposits in the form of cash for
futures, options and leveraged foreign exchange dealing and
broking. No unauthorised transaction is allowed to be executed
if the current position of the customer exceeds its trading limit.
The margin deposit placed and the aggregate of the required
margin deposits of each futures, options and leveraged foreign
exchange contract are timely monitored by both the dealers and
the risk management department. Margin calls will be executed
by the on-site duty staff for futures, options and leveraged foreign
exchange brokerage business if there is a deficit with the margin
deposit. Forced liquidation of the customer’s position will be
executed if the customer fails to meet the margin calls.

Management considers that the credit risk of the Group resulting
from securities, futures, options and leveraged foreign exchange
brokerage business as well as margin and other loan financing is
properly managed within the defined internal control framework.

Accounts receivable from brokers and dealers are placed with large
financial institutions which are governed by regulators. The credit
risk of accounts receivable from brokers and dealers is considered
insignificant.
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39. Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies (continued)

Ageing of accounts receivable from corporate clients and
investment funds arising from corporate finance, asset management
and investment holding and market making businesses is closely
monitored. There were no significant defaults in the past.

The credit risk of accounts receivable from the Stock Exchange and
other clearing houses is considered to be minimal.

ECL allowance and provisioning policies

The Group’s policy requires the review of individual outstanding
amounts at least monthly or more regularly depending on individual
circumstances or market condition.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 9, where the ECL allowance
requirements under HKFRS 9 are based on an ECL model. The
Group applies simplified approach to measure ECL on accounts
receivable from corporate clients, investment funds and others;
and general approach to measure ECL on loans and advances to
customers, time deposits and other financial assets accounted
for at amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive
income as well as loan commitments. Under the simplified
approach, the Group measures the ECL allowance at an amount
equal to lifetime ECL. Under the general approach, financial assets
migrate through the following three stages based on the change in
credit risk since initial recognition: Stage 1: 12-months ECL, Stage
2: Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired and Stage 3: Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired.
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39. Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the risk of default has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the
Group’s historical experience and expert credit risk assessment,
including forward-looking information. The loan and advances use
the number of DPD and LTV to determine significant increase in
credit risk. For non-standard financing, internally derived credit
ratings have been identified as representing the best available
determinant of credit risk. Credit risk is deemed to have increased
significantly if the credit rating has significantly deteriorated at
the reporting date relative to the credit rating at the date of initial
recognition.

Calculation of ECL

The ECL are assessed by the Group on semi-annual basis. Based
on DPD, LTV and internally derived credit ratings, loans and
advances to customers are classified into 3 stages.

Under stage 1 is calculated on collective basis. For the year ended
31 December 2022, the probabilities of price changes of various
scenarios are calculated based on the observed historical price
movements of the underlying collateral stocks. For the year ended
31 December 2023, the 12-month ECL was measured based on
loss rate approach.

The ECL of each scenario is then calculated in accordance with the
respective loan exposure. When the loans are classified under stage
2 and stage 3, the lifetime ECL is calculated.

As at 31 December 2023, the average loss rate for 12-month ECL,
Lifetime ECL not credit-impaired and lifetime ECL credit-impaired
was 0.02%, 3.84% and 99.95% respectively.

As at 31 December 2022, the average loss rate for 12-month
ECL and lifetime ECL credit-impaired was 0.05% and 92.19%
respectively.
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39. Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Calculation of ECL (continued)

If there is material decrease in collateral value and the full recovery
of the loan is in doubt, the retail and non-standard loan will be
classified into stage 3. For the loans classified as stage 3, the
Group may further calculate the ECL based on probability-weighted
scenarios to measure the ECL. Each scenario is associated with
different exposure at default and probability.

Incorporation of forward-looking information

When estimating the ECL on loan and advances to customers,
the Group has incorporated forward-looking economic information
through the use of industry trend and experienced credit judgement
to reflect the qualitative factors, and through the use of multiple
probability-weighted scenarios by the stock market analysis.

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or
other credit enhancements

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that the
counterparties fail to perform their obligations as at the end of the
reporting period, in relation to each class of financial assets, is the
carrying amount of those assets as indicated in the statement of
financial position.

These amounts represent the worst case scenario of credit risk
exposure to the Group at 31 December 2023 and 2022, without
taking account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements
attached.

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
exposure
(@) Bank balances and client trust bank balances

The counterparties of all client trust bank balances and the
majority of cash and bank balances are located in Hong Kong.
As the Group’s bank balances and client trust bank balances
are deposited with a number of financially sound financial
institutions, in the opinion of the Group, the concentration risk
of the Group’s bank balances and client trust bank balances
is insignificant.
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39. Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
exposure (continued)

(o)

Loans and advances to customers and accounts
receivable from clients

The counterparties of the majority of loans and advances to
customers (including margin loans, IPO loans and other loan
financing) and accounts receivable from clients are individuals
who are mainly located in China. The business department
and risk management department daily prepares an analysis
of key financing client and futures, options and leveraged
foreign exchange client exposure for review to avoid excessive
concentration of risk. The Group manages its concentration
risk by diversified clients and collateral portfolio and various
concentration limit.

Accounts receivable from brokers, dealers as well as
clearing houses and others

The Group also has accounts receivable from clearing houses,
brokers and dealers from its securities, futures, options and
leveraged foreign exchange brokerage business as well as
other receivables from asset management, corporate finance
and investment holding and market making businesses.
Responsible officers manage the concentration of risk by
monitoring their respective exposures on a timely basis.

Securities borrowing and lending

In the normal course of brokerage business, the Group may enter
into securities borrowing and lending arrangements with customers
and financial institutions. The Group is not subject to significant
price risks under the securities borrowing and lending arrangement.
The cash collateral received and cash collateral placed are included
in the accounts payable and accounts receivable from brokers and
dealers, respectively. The Group is principally liable for repaying the
borrowed securities in case of any default by the customers.
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39. Financial risk management (continued) 39.

Credit risk (continued)

Securities borrowing and lending (continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group outstanding securities
borrowed/lent to customers and financial institutions and their
corresponding cash collateral paid/received are as follows:

BEHREREKR | 2023, 243
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@A

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Equity securities borrowed from financial B & Bi# 1 & A IR EE 5
institutions 141,839 722,245
Equity securities pledged by margin RED %}5 AiE L REmERE
customers for stock lending [i% 1 & 3,375 3,374
145,214 725,619
Cash collateral placed with financial FlREEmEENIIRSER D
institutions 148,033 725,668
Equity securities lent to customers Mm%~ &R R EE 2,394 35,562
Cash collateral received from customers B & F WHLH IR & K @ 6,025 42 254
Market risk ™35 & B

The Group takes on exposure to market risk, which is the risk
that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks mainly
arise from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity
products, all of which are exposed to general and specific market
movements and changes in the level of volatility of market rates or
prices such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity
prices.

The financial instruments held by the Group mainly exposed
it to interest rate risk and price risk. The market risk mainly
includes cash flow interest rate risk and price risk. The Group has
established policies and procedures for monitoring and controlling
the market risk arising from these financial instruments.
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39. Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s loans and advances to
customers, accounts receivable, financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income, accounts payable to clients,
bank borrowings, debt securities in issue, receivable from reverse
repurchase agreements, obligations under repurchase agreements,
client trust bank balances and cash and bank balances. Debt
investments usually bear a fixed rate interest and they are managed
through the strategy of trading them within a short period of time.

Interest on cash at banks will fluctuate at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Bank borrowings and margin loans
receivable at variable rates exposed the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. Other financial assets and liabilities which are mainly
carried at amortised cost are either non-interest-bearing or fixed
interest-bearing with short term maturities within one year, of which
the interest rate risk is also considered to be minimal. The Group
mitigates its interest rate risk by monitoring market interest rate
movements and revising the interest rates offered to its customers
on an ongoing basis in order to limit potential adverse effects of
interest rate movements on net interest income. The Group regularly
calculates the impact on profit or loss of a possible interest rate
shift on its portfolio of bank borrowings, margin loans receivable,
debt securities investment and interest-bearing bank deposits.

The following table illustrates the potential impact, of a parallel
upward or downward shift of 100 basis points in interest rate
curves with all other variables held constant on the Group’s net
profit for the next twelve months from the reporting date, based on
the Group’s positions of interest-earning assets, interest-bearing
liabilities and listed debt securities investments at year end.
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39. Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis

BEREZEK | 2023F 3 245
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Increase/(decrease)
in profit before tax

BRBLAT SR 0, (R 4)

2023 2022

20234 20224

HK$’000 HK$'000

Interest rate increase 100 basis points FIZE EAH100E 2 FE T BT
Interest-earning assets and interest-bearing £ B EE Nt EEE

liabilities (22,618) 41,141

Debt securities investment BEEFEE (53,206) (15,506)

Net Amount SRR (75,824) 25,635

The estimated 1% increase in interest rate represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the next annual reporting period.
The sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative because the year-end
exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

For the securities, financial product and derivative financial
instruments held by the Group are structured as equity derivative
products in issue for sales to customers and for hedging purpose.
They are not subject to the sensitivity analysis as the risk has been
either transferred to customers or properly hedged and mitigated
accordingly.

For the value of money market fund, unlisted bonds and unlisted
equities held by the Group are not sensitive to the movement of
interest rate or equity index, they are not subject to the sensitivity
analysis.
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39. Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk from equity
derivative instruments and fund investments held by the Group
which are classified in the statement of financial position as
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
Price risk is the risk of changes in fair value of financial instruments
from fluctuations, whether such a change in price is caused by
factors specific to the individual instrument or factors affecting all
instruments traded in the markets. The Group mitigates its price
risk by performing detailed due diligence analysis of investments
and dedicated professionals are assigned to oversee and monitor
the performance of investments.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
assumption that the price of all the direct investment of listed equity
instruments and funds move according to the historical correlation
with the Hong Kong Hang Seng Index and other relevant equity
indices. The analysis is based on the assumption that the equity
index had changed by 10% with all other variable held constant, it
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in equity index.
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2023 2022

202345 20224

HK$’000 HK$’000

Changes in relevant index HBEHES THET T 7T
Increase 10% EFA10% 34,975 42,177
Decrease 10% TBE10% (34,975) (42,177)

The sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative because the year-end
exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

For the securities, financial product and derivative financial
instruments held by the Group are structured as equity derivative
products in issue for sales to customers and for hedging purpose.
They are not subject to the sensitivity analysis as the risk has been
either transferred to customers or properly hedged and mitigated
accordingly.

For the value of money market fund, unlisted bonds and unlisted
equities held by the Group are not sensitive to the movement of
interest rate or equity index, they are not subject to the sensitivity
analysis.
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39. Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Price risk (continued)

Besides, the asset quality of the margin clients’ margin collateral
will deteriorate when the market comes down drastically, scenario
analysis and stress testing are regularly performed on an individual
client basis.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movements in foreign
currency exchange rates will affect the Group’s financial results and
its cash flows.

The Group’s foreign exchange risk principally arises from its
leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking business as well as
the Group’s transactions which are denominated in currencies other
than the Hong Kong dollars.

For the leveraged foreign exchange brokerage business, the Group
hedges the majority of the client positions through back-to-back
transactions with external counterparties. The Group adopts
stringent control over its positions to minimize its exposure to
foreign exchange risk.

The Group’s principal operations are transacted and recorded in
Hong Kong dollars, US$ and RMB. The Group is not exposed to
material foreign exchange risk because HK$ is pegged with USS$.
The Group also conducts appropriate hedging activities when it is
exposed to material exchange risk in RMB. Other foreign currency
exposure is relatively minimal to its total assets and liabilities.
The foreign exchange risk is daily managed and monitored by the
treasury and finance department.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient
cash, the availability of funding from an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market
positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying business, the
treasury department maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining
available committed credit facilities from the banks.

Sources of liquidity are daily reviewed by treasury department
to ensure the availability of sufficient liquid funds to meet all
obligations.
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39. Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity
reserve (comprising undrawn borrowing facilities) and cash and cash
equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows in strict compliance
with statutory requirements. This is achieved by monitoring the
liquidity position of the individual companies within the Group on a
daily basis to ensure the availability of sufficient liquid funds to meet
all obligations and compliance with the statutory requirements such
as the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources)
Rules.

The following tables summarise the maturity profile of the Group’s
financial liabilities, based on the contractual and undiscounted cash

flows:

As at 31 December 2023

. cMmAMRERE »)

REBELREM &)

EREREENESREERASE
EHREBE S G (RIERIRIE
HRE) RECRELEB/BYNE
FHEA UBRBETETER A
ENHEN AEMEEFHEN
ETARNARIHES RN - AR
EHREARRNABESBIME
EA UHAABETER (WS
BELREE (HBER) B -

BREGOMKRUERRSTE  TK
BAAEESRBENZHIBFR

M2023F12H31H

Uptoi 1t03 3to 1to
month months 12 months 5 years Total
-@BAR —-Z=fA =Z+=f@A —Z1F @t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET TAT TR TR
Liabilities =L
Accounts payable & 7008 18,048,359 - - - 18,048,359
Bank borrowings RITER 7,244,585 2,164,736 614,499 - 10,023,820
Lease liabilities HEAE 2,820 5,640 10,312 3,821 22,593
Debt securities in issue BRTEEES 30,050,634 1,219,724 232,499 14,394,114 45,896,971
Financial liabilities at fair value BATEFAER
through profit or loss EA =N 2,432,272 - - - 2,432,272
Obligations under repurchase & iR &R
agreement 5,212,771 6,917,427 661,613 1,641,468 14,433,279
62,991,441 10,307,527 1,518,923 16,039,403 90,857,294
Off-balance sheet items EERERINMER
Underwriting obligations e - - - - -
Capital commitments BRI 11,614 - - - 11,614
11,614 - - - 11,614
Derivative cash flows TERSRE
Derivative financial instruments RBBEERNTE
settled on a gross basis SEMIA
Total inflows BRA 8,573,529 12,527,206 7,341,224 11,942,259 40,384,218
Total outflows #in (8,594,306) (12,528,843)  (7,356,756) (12,450,973) (40,930,878)
(20,777) (1,637) (15,532)  (508,714)  (546,660)
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39. Financial risk management (continued) 30. ERAKRERE @
Liquidity risk (continued) RBELER 2
As at 31 December 2022 20226128310
Up to 110 3to 1to
1 month 3 months 12 months 5 years Total
—f@AR —EZ=@EA =ET=f@A —ERE @t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
T TAT TR TR TAT

Liabilities &
Accounts payable AN 16,726,328 - - - 16,726,328
Bank borrowings RITEK 9,348,509 - - - 9,348,509
Lease liabilities MERE 2,544 5,089 22,912 17,042 47,587
Debt securities in issue BETEBES 28,194,697 31,188 570,055 12,904,613 41,700,553
Financial liabilities at fair value BRAFEFAERR
through profit or loss cHEE 2,108,386 - - - 2,108,386
Obligations under repurchase |15 i 0 228
agreements 3,593,576 1,668,924 206,379 2,440,092 7,908,971
59,974,040 1,705,201 799,346 15,361,747 77,840,334
Off-balance sheet items EEBBRINER
Underwriting obligations T 3 A 1,755,020 - - - 1,755,020
Capital commitments BARALE 9,798 - - - 9,798
1,764,818 = = = 1,764,818
Derivative cash flows TERERE
Derivative financial instruments RBBEEENTE
settled on a gross basis SRTA
Total inflows ‘RN 7,926,637 6,629,834 2,522,329 6,726,676 23,805,476
Total outflows B (7,936,407)  (6,533,584)  (2,484,067)  (6,714,671) (23,668,729)

(9,770) 96,250 38,262 12,005 136,747
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39. Financial risk management (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

At the end of the reporting period, the fair values of the Group’s
financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value were not
materially different from their carrying amount due to their short
term nature.

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Group’s valuation process

The fair values of financial assets in Level 1 and Level 2 are
measured by reference to quoted market prices and brokers’
quotes, respectively. The Group engaged independent professional
valuers to perform the valuation of financial instruments in Level 3
for financial reporting purposes. These valuation reports are sent to
the finance department and the Audit Committee for discussion at
least twice per annum, which is in line with the Group’s reporting
dates.

At each financial year end, the finance department reviews all
significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments used to
measure the fair values of financial instruments in Level 3. Changes
in fair values of financial assets in Levels 2 and 3 are analysed at
each reporting date.
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39. Financial risk management (continued) 30. TR A EE 2
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities EMEEREENAFE
(continued) (%)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) BAFHEGTEMLHTAE)
Fair value hierarchy NEEFR
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy ATEERTRXEARNEFRESF T
of the Group’s financial instruments: BEWATFEFEER:
Assets measured at fair value: EAFEFENEE
As at 31 December 2023 #2023%12831H

Fair value measurement using

RAATRENATENE

Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable unobservables
active Markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BB EPNE| BAEL
hiERE Bx2y Bx2y
(E14R) (%E24R) (%3) @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TER TAR TAR
Non-current ERE
Financial assets held for trading and #H{EEERIREL BB E
investments
- Unlisted equity securities —JFEmRAE S - - 1,825,052 1,825,052
Financial products SREM 470,712 7,962,967 6,387,217 14,820,896
Derivative financial instruments TS RmIE - 323,154 - 323,154
470,712 8,286,121 8,212,269 16,969,102
Current E
Financial assets held for trading and #{EE & k&K &L
investments BE
- Unlisted fixed income securities ~ —3F L& & Wz & 5 - 3,402 - 3,402
— Unlisted convertible securities —JE E AT RE S - - 205,920 205,920
- Listed equity securities — ERAES 1,325,364 - - 1,325,364
- Listed debt securities -t hERES - 4,276,860 - 4,276,860
- Unlisted debt securities —F L EBRES - 4,339,712 748,646 5,088,358
Financial assets at fair value through & A FEzt ABZEN S &l
profit or loss BE
- Listed fund investments —FTEEKE 5,912,798 - - 5,912,798
- Unlisted fund investments —FIMEERE - 378,958 347,661 726,619
- Other financial instruments ~HEemTAE - 159,439 - 159,439
- Financial products - SHEM 5,770,907 27,060,165 883,169 33,714,241
Financial assets at fair value through 1272 F{Ezt A £ it 2 FEH
other comprehensive income nREREE
- Listed equity securities — PR AE A 76,481 - - 76,481
- Listed debt securities ~ kKRS - 370,123 - 370,123
Derivative financial instruments MTHEERIE - 1,612,106 - 1,612,106
13,085,550 38,200,765 2,185396 53,471,711

13,556,262 46,486,886 10,397,665 70,440,813




252 Guotai Junan International | Annual Report 2023

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 5 ¥R 3R B &

31 December 2023
2023%F12A31H

39. Financial risk management (continued) 30. ERAKRERE @
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities tREEREBNAFRE
(continued) (%)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) BAFHEGTEMLHTAE)
Fair value hierarchy N EFZER
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy NEEEF TREHEAERES R T
of the Group’s financial instruments: ERNATFEAEER:
Assets measured at fair value: EAFEFENEE
As at 31 December 2022 M2022F12H31H

Fair value measurement using

FRATEENAFEME

Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AR EyNG| BAEE
miswE BR2Y BR2Y
(FB1R) (F28) (F34) @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAEL FTAEL FHBL BT
Non-current ERE
Financial assets held for trading FEEERRESRH
and investments BE
- Unlisted equity securities —EEMRAES - - 1,769,013 1,769,013
Financial products EHEM 97,575 8,097,726 5,481,563 13,676,864
Derivative financial instruments TEEmIA - 577,055 - 577,055
97,575 8,674,781 7,250,576 16,022,932
Current &
Financial assets held for trading and #${EE & RIRE K& &
investments BE
- Unlisted fixed income securities ~ — 3 £ BT W& H - 4,037,833 = 4,037,833
- Unlisted convertible securities — LM RRES - - 196,640 196,640
- Listed equity securities — FRAES 649,885 = = 649,885
- Listed fixed income securities ~ — FMEEREEH - 1,938,626 - 1,938,626
— Unlisted fixed income securities  —3F - & W 7% 5 = 603,389 1,304,539 1,907,928
- Unlisted fund investments —FIMEERE - 535,257 400,137 935,394
- Other financial instruments - HemIA - - - -
Financial products SREM 1,779,440 28,564,964 1,917,410 32,261,814
Financial assets at fair value through & A FEzH A H 42 EUR
other comprehensive income HNSRHEE
- Listed equity securities —FEMEBES 82,304 = = 82,304
Derivative financial instruments TEEBMTA = 1,527,458 - 1,527,458
2,511,629 37,207,527 3818726 43,537,882

2,609,204 45,882,308 11,069,302 59,560,814
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39. Financial risk management (continued) 3. cREREE»)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities tMEERAEENAFE
(continued) (%)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) BAFHEGTEMLHTAE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NYEBEEL &)
Liabilities measured at fair value: BAFESENAE
As at 31 December 2023 M2023F12H31H

Fair value measurement using

FAATEENAFETE

Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable unobservables
active Markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
g EpNG| BEREZE
hiERE Bx2y Bx2y
(E14%) (%B24%) (%34%) @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT TER TAR TAR
Non-current Ei )
Debt securities in issue designated 18 &k A FE ABEH
at fair value through profit and loss B %47 &% &% - 4,489,336 6,701,941 11,191,277
Derivative financial instruments TEELRIE - 297,192 - 297,192
- 4,786,528 6,701,941 11,488,469
Current &
Debt securities in issue designated  #EE R A FET ABRA
at fair value through profit and loss 2 %17 &% & % - 27,809,903 808,785 28,618,688
Financial liabilities held for trading ~ H{EEBMNEREE
- Listed equity securities —ETRAES 148,747 - - 148,747
- Listed debt securities —FmEBES - 506,494 - 506,494
- Unlisted debt securities —FEmERES - - - -
— Unlisted fixed income securities  — 3k E T E E W& % - 1,600 - 1,600
Financial liabilities designated at fair #§E & A FET ABEA)
value through profit or loss tRAR
- Financial products - &REM - 1,593,032 - 1,593,032
— Other financial instruments —Hith 2@ TH - - - -
- Third-party interest in —RAREESH
consolidated investment funds F= R - 182,399 - 182,399
Derivative financial instruments fTEERMIE - 1,396,383 - 1,396,383
148,747 31,489,811 808,785 32,447,343

148,747 36,276,339 7,510,726 43,935,812
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39. Financial risk management (continued) 39. &miE 2 E E @)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities tMEERAEENAFE
(continued) (%)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) BAFHEGTEMLHTAE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NYEBEEL &)
As at 31 December 2022 202212831 H

Fair value measurement using

FRRANTEENAYERE

Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
g EYNG| BAEL
miHRE BR2Y BR2Y
(B18%) (552/R) (5534R) Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAEL FAEL FAEL AT
Non-current ERE
Debt securities in issue designated 8 R A FE ABEM
at fair value through profit and loss B 217 &% &% - 4,147,684 5,482,187 9,629,871
Derivative financial instruments fTESMIA - 231,686 - 231,686
- 4,379,370 5,482,187 9,861,557
Current &
Debt securities in issue designated 18 & A FE ABEE
at fair value through profit and loss 2 %17 &% & % - 22,766,659 2,168,103 24,934,762
Financial liabilities held for trading ~ H{FEEMNSRAE
- Listed equity securities - MR AES 359,900 - - 359,900
- Listed debt securities - L EBES - 367,634 = 367,634
- Unlisted debt securities —EEmERES - 12 - 12
Financial liabilities designated at fair 57 & A FEFT AB &L
value through profit or loss SHAR
- Financial products —SREMR - 1,205,621 - 1,205,621
- Other financial instruments ~EmemTE - 1,423 - 1,423
- Third-party interest in ~GEREEEM
consolidated investment funds E=FEE - 173,796 - 173,796
Derivative financial instruments fTESMIA - 1,297,531 - 1,297,531
359,900 25,812,676 2,168,103 28,340,679

359,900 30,192,046 7,660,290 38,202,236
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39. Financial risk management (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
(continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

(@)

Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active
markets are based on quoted market prices at the end of
the reporting period. A market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, or broker and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market prices used for financial assets and
financial liabilities held by the Group are the current bid price
and the current ask price.

Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair values of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market (for example, over-the-counter) are
determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs used in the valuation for
financial instruments are observable, the financial instruments
are included in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs are not based on
observable market data, the financial instrument is included in
Level 3.
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39. Financial risk management (continued) 39. &miE 2 E E @)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities ctRHEEREEBNAFE
(continued) (%)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) R FEGTENTH LA (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEEZER (E)
(c) Financial instruments in Level 3 (c) FE3hemTE
The following table presents the changes in Level 3 financial T &R £ 7% #H £2023F k2022
instruments for the years ended 31 December 2023 and F12B831H ILEE » B35 5
2022. MIANES -
Level 3 financial assets EIMEMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZFE2023F12H31HILEE

Unlisted Unlisted Unlisted Unlisted

equity fixed income fund  convertible Financial
securities  securities investments  securities products
(note 20) (note 20) (note 20) (note 20) (note 20) Total

¥Lm ¥Lm ¥Lm *Lm
Ra®s BehA®s HERE TERRES  SRER
(MaE20)  (WH&E20)  (W&E20)  (BvaE20)  (F¥&E20) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TEL TERL

At 1 January 2023 20231 /1R 1,769,013 1,304,539 400,137 196,640 7,398,973 11,069,302
Purchases BE - - - - - -
Disposal HE - (47,610) - - (61,020)  (108,630)
Transfer from level 2 (note 1) e E2REA (HizH1) - 83,167 - - 155,940 239,107
Net (loss)/gain recognised in ~ IMEZHERH (B18) /
profit or loss baFE 56,039 (591,450) (52,476) 9,280 (223,507)  (802,114)
At 31 December 2023 1202312431 A 1825052 748,646 347,661 205920 7,270,386 10,397,665
Note 1: The valuations of unlisted fixed income securities and unlisted YiEEd : ELrTBEEKAZER
fund investments were previously determined by observable ELTESLEENGE
broker quotes or market price of the reference securities. As of 31 S BB B A B AR 40 3R
December 2023, the valuations were determined by unobservable B REELENTES
inputs such as the credit assessment of the issuer and value of F o & 20234512 A31
collateral held. AR EABTANR
BB R P RE R S

BEETUBEEBAH
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39. Financial risk management (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
(continued)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)
(c) Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued)

Level 3 financial assets

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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TRMEEREENAFE

(%)

HAFEFEHEBTAE)

NFEEH &)

() HIMESEMTA (&)
HIREMEE

B E2022F12A31BLFE

Unlisted  Unlisted fixed Unlisted
equity income Unlisted fund ~ convertible Financial
securities securities  investments securities products
(note 20) (note 20) (note 20) (note 20) (note 20) Total
kLT kLT kLT LT
REEs EEhAZs  £2RE WHARES  oRER
(Ftite0)  (Wisto0)  (Wst20)  (M¥&E20)  (HvEEe0) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAT TAT THET TET TET
At 1 January 2022 1202261418 1,828,797 1,586,506 390,098 223,427 6,067,252 10,091,080
Purchases BE - - - - - -
Disposal HE - (365,531) - - - (365,531)
Transfer to level 1 BAZ1R - - - - - -
Transfer from level 2(note 1) #EE2REA (Hi3H1) - 608,166 116,955 - - 725,121
Net gain recognised in profit or 1A B ZHEA RN F 4
loss (64,784) (524,602) (106,916) (26,787) 1,331,721 618,632
At 31 December 2022 120226124318 1760013 1304539 400,137 196640 7,398,973 11,069,302
Note 1: The valuations of unlisted fixed income securities and unlisted MEEEq : FELETEERABAER
fund investments were previously determined by observable ErHESKEENGE
broker quotes or market price of the reference securities. As of 31 e BB B A B R 4R 1R
December 2022, the valuations were determined by unobservable BRREELENTEES
inputs such as the credit assessment of the issuer and value of F o & F2022412 A 31

collateral held.

H  HERETANE
BERREAERRS
BESFETABESEHAHK
RETE °
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39. Financial risk management (continued)

. cMmAMRERE »)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities tREEREENAFE

(continued) (%)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) R FEGTENTH LA (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NFEEERE)
(c) Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued) (c) ZFE3hemIT HE (&)
Level 3 financial liabilities BI3RmLEER
For the year ended 31 December 2023 B ZE2023F12A31HILEE

Debt

securities

in issue

ERTEEES

HK$’000

FHET

At 1 January 2023 7202341 A1H 7,650,290
Issuance AT -
Transfer from level 2 EER==F 123,567
Redemption on maturity 7 EI HA B FE B (61,645)
Net loss recognised in profit or loss RERERNEIEFHE (201,486)
At 31 December 2023 720234124318 7,510,726

Note 1: The valuations of unlisted fixed income securities and unlisted BfzEq -
fund investments were previously determined by observable
broker quotes or market price of the reference securities. As of 31
December 2023, the valuations were determined by unobservable
inputs such as the credit assessment of the issuer and value of
collateral held.

FEMETERZEESR K
FEMESKRENGHE
S A B AT B R A 42 A R
BRBREBLNHIEE
B E o B £2023F12
B318 - & E TR &%
TANGEETGE R
KAREERSETIER
BABURET o

Level 3 financial liabilities
For the year ended 31 December 2022

FIREeWMEE
HZE2022512831H L FE

Debt
securities
in issue
(note 27)
B 1T
(M 5E27)
HK$'000
& T

At 1 January 2022
Issuance
Redemption on maturity

Net gain recognised in profit or loss

202241 F1H

BT

7 B B 85 i ]
RIEEERN U AFEE

6,348,523
926,775
(956,685)
1,331,677

At 31 December 2022

MR20229F12H31H

7,650,290
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39. Financial risk management (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

(continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

(©

Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the
valuation of financial instruments as at 31 December 2023

and 2022:

31 December 2023
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. cMmAMRERE »)

TREEREENATE
(&)
R FEGTENTH LA (&)
N EEL (&)
(c) F3e@MTITE#E)
TX A& T AER2023F &
2022F12AB1HEENE K
EAER2HHE

2023%F12H31H

Significant Sensitivity of the
Valuation technique  unobservable input Average fair value to the input
EER i EXELEESY T AFEHZENERE
Unlisted convertible Market Approach Pricing multiples of market 10.41 10% increase or decrease in
securities comparable companies used the underlying stock price,
to determine the estimated the fair value would be
equity value of the Project increased by HK$22 million
Company: or decreased by HK$22
- Price to earnings multiple million, respectively.
I FT AR EE 5 %A ARETER RAMRER HBERE EFASEEI0%  AF
BN ELRARNE B/ RIEIN22E EH T
BEE: WA22RERT
—hAX
Unlisted fixed income  Income approach Collateral value N/A N/A
securities
FEMEERAZEE WAE BHRREE TER  TER
Unlisted fund Net asset value N/A N/A N/A
investments
FImEERE BERE A iE R rER  TER
Unlisted equity Market approach Pricing multiples, discount N/A The higher the pricing multiples,
securities rate for lack of marketability, the higher the fair value.
volatility The higher the discount rate,
the lower the fair value.
The higher the volatility, the
higher the fair value.
I ETIRARE % %% EEEY - B msnEtaat TEA TEREYEE ATEES -
BE - RiE BEEYR A TFAEBE -
KiEHS A TEER -
Financial products Net asset value N/A N/A N/A
THEM BERE i rER  TER
Debt securities in issue  Net asset value N/A N/A N/A
BETREE S BEFE iR TER  TER
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39. Financial risk management (continued) 30. ERAKRERE @

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
(continued)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)
(c) Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued)

31 December 2022

THEERRENAFTE

(#)

BAFEFENT TR (&)

NFEEH &)

() HIMESEMTA (&)
2022%12H31H

Significant Sensitivity of the
Valuation technique unobservable input Average fair value to the input
HERM EABEERZ T ATEH2IENHERE
Unlisted convertible Market Approach Pricing multiples of market 10.85 10% increase or decrease in
securities comparable companies used the underlying stock price,

to determine the estimated
equity value of the Project

Company:
— Price to earnings multiple
I ET AR RREE 5 %% FREEER AR fht RIER
EH TS AL RA AN E
BiEH
—HRE
Unlisted fixed income  Income approach Collateral value
securities
FETETHAZSE BAE HEHmER
Unlisted fund Net asset value N/A
investments
FrmESRE BERE i
Unlisted equity Market approach Pricing multiples, discount
securities rate for lack of marketability,
volatility
I EHRAE 5 iRy EEEH - B msnELaih
BE . RE
Financial products Net asset value N/A
SRESD BEFE TEHA
Debt securities in issue  Net asset value N/A

BERTEBES BEEFE TER

the fair value would be
increased by HK$20 million
or decreased by HK$20
million, respectively.

BERE L HEEI0%  AF
B IE M20E BB T3k
MAO20BEAT -

N/A N/A
TER TR

N/A N/A
TER AR

N/A The higher the pricing multiples,

the higher the fair value.

The higher the discount rate,
the lower the fair value.

The higher the volatility, the
higher the fair value.

TER TEREES ATESES-
AREHE ATEBE-
REHES  ATELS -

NA  NA
TER  TER

NA  NA
TER  TER
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39. Financial risk management (continued)

Capital management

The Group’s objectives for managing capital, which represent a
broader concept than the “equity” on the face of the statement of
financial position, are:

° to comply with the capital requirements under the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules for its
subsidiaries which are licensed corporations;

° to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

° to support the Group’s stability and growth; and

° to maintain a strong capital base to support the development
of its business.

The liquid capital is monitored daily by each individual licensed
subsidiary’s management based on the Securities and Futures
(Financial Resources) Rules. The required information is filed
with the SFC on a timely basis. The SFC requires each licensed
corporation to maintain a level of required liquid capital which is
the higher of the floor requirement ranging from HK$0.1 million to
HK$15 million and 5% of the aggregate of its adjusted liabilities
and clients’ margin. All licensed corporations within the Group
complied with their required liquid capital during the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022.

A subsidiary of the Company is a member of the Hong Kong
Confederation of Insurance Brokers and is required to maintain
a minimum net asset value of HK$0.1 million at all times. Two
subsidiaries of the Company are registered with the Monetary
Authority of Singapore and are required to maintain a minimum
base capital requirement of SG$250,000 and SG$1,000,000 at all
times, respectively.

The capital of the Group mainly comprises its total equity.
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EXEHE
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s WFEREMEAER  UXF
HEBHER -
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BE(FMBRER) RASREZER
B VWIEBAZEESREMTE
Ko BEERTE  SHEBEEEAR
BHERBERNKEANTO0I1EE
BITEISEBBTHNREERKE
CRAEAEREFPRESLTRS5%
MEFHNRSE - RELE2023F Kk
2022F12H31B L FE - A&EEE
THEFELAELNHFEMEREE
BIKFHE °
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B RAEMBRED A FRE
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40. Offsetting financial assets and financial 40. RS MMEEHEESRE
liabilities &
The Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the NEE B R EA S E 0] #1787 3K
Continuous Net Settlement money obligations receivable and HEEBSEENEFE FEW (F
trade payables with HKSCC and it intends to settle on a net basis EFETUW) EWERER 5 ENK
as accounts receivable from or accounts payable to the Stock I8 - R IR R RE E A E A E Wk pE
Exchange. The net amount of Continues Net Settlement money NEBRXAERREE BRBEER
obligations receivable or payable with HKSCC and the guarantee & 428 S wE <7 U E U BR Y FE N BR BY R
fund placed in HKSCC do not meet the criteria for offsetting in the BETERREAEENREES
financial statements and the Group does not intend to settle the TRERUBHRRAEEHAZLE
balances on a net basis. REBTNRIZFHEEELEET RGBS
Gross Net
amount of amounts
recognised of
Gross financial financial Related
amount of (assets)/ liabilities  amounts not
recognised liabilities reflected in  set off in the
financial  offset in the the statement
assets/ financial financial of financial
(liabilities) statements statements position Net
REBEK

BRR  HEHEEER RAMERR HARME
SREE/ SR(EE)/ E2IMER  RRREH

(BB 48 BELE SEFE NEELE 28
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TAR TER FhER TAR TAR
As at 31 December 2023 12023%12A318
Financial assets StREE
Accounts receivable arising from brokerage 4847 £ el B
~ the Stock Exchange and other clearing  — B RFTREMEEFT
houses 3,992,580 (2,857,801) 1,134,779 - 1,134,779
Loans and advances to Customers BTEPHERRBH 5,761,594 - 5,761,594 (5,759,086) 2,508
Financial liabilities ERAE
Accounts payable arising from brokerage 4847 £ E I B
~ the Stock Exchange and other clearing  — B RFT R A& E R
houses (3176,382) 2,857,801 (318,581) - (318,581)
As at 31 December 2022 120224124318
Financial assets SREE
Accounts receivable arising from brokerage 442 ¥ e 58
— the Stock Exchange and other clearing ~ — B P K Efth & B fy
houses 2,797,898 (1,697,553) 1,200,345 - 1,200,345
Loans and advances to Customers BYEFNERRBH 6,391,369 - 6,391,369 (6,378,810) 12,559

Financial liabilities SRAR
Accounts payable arising from brokerage ~ AX4Z £ FEf B
— the Stock Exchange and other clearing ~ — B P J E fth & B fp
houses (2,886,168) 1,507,553  (1,288,615) - (1,288615)
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40. Offsetting financial assets and financial 40. K EEe MMEEHES M E
liabilities (continued) &
The tables below reconcile the “net amount of financial assets/ TRE EXFTE R [R5 ER
(liabilities) presented in the statement of financial position”, as set SRV ERMEE(AE) FE|H
out above, to the amounts presented in the statement of financial BIEIANARERNCREETHERR -
position.
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Net amount of accounts receivable arising | X Ffift K $5 18 &L 40 £ 15 8
from brokerage after offsetting as stated WK IE 5 8
above
- the Stock Exchange and other clearing  — Bt TR Efth 45 & PR
houses 1,134,779 1,200,345
Accounts receivable other than the Stock B 32 By K2 E b 45 & Aft LA SNEY FE U
Exchange and other clearing houses A 7,325,921 4,473,147
Less: Impairment B ORE (69,225) (32,106)
Accounts receivables in the statement of  BA A S 2% I i Uk 70 0B
financial position 8,391,475 5,641,386

Net amount of accounts payable arising from = 3 Ffr it # 8 78 48 40 2 75 e
brokerage after offsetting as stated above 1~ 7K B %58

- the Stock Exchange and other clearing  — B FT R E b &5 & Fr
houses 318,581 1,288,615
Accounts payables other than the Stock Bk 22 T Je EL A0 45 BT A ONRY FE A
Exchange and other clearing houses I8 17,729,778 15,437,713
Accounts payables in the statement of B 75 AR L 2% 9 JE S 3B
financial position 18,048,359 16,726,328
The “net amounts of financial assets/(liabilities) reflected in the EFYFESN R ERR RIS S
financial statements”, as set out above, is included in “accounts mEE/ (AR FHEISBERE
receivable and accounts payable arising from brokerage — the B 7% 3} 3% Bif sE18 2241 [ 4R 42 % 75
Stock Exchange and other clearing houses” in notes 18 and 24 to FEWHRELEMNTRB-BTEREE

the financial statements, respectively. &S E T o
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41. Statement of financial position of the
Company

Information about the statement of financial position of the

1. 2R B) B # Ak R &

BREARRBIRHERAROTHAMNR

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: EHERIT -
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH& T FHETT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries A B A A 21,862,665 21,619,552
Fixed assets EBE 989 3,360
Deferred tax assets BEEHAEE 1648 1,056
21,865,202 21,623,968
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and FENFRIE - Ze Xk
other receivables H b fE U FR I8 18,925 5,804
Amount due from subsidiaries JE U BfY /B A R ZRIB 14,386,786 13,013,014
Cash and cash equivalents e kReEEY 55,459 42,646
_Total currentassets RBREMA® 14,461,170 13,061,464
Current liabilities REBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE (877) (3,454)
Accrued liabilities EEtBE (64,473) (25,664)
Debt securities in issue BERTEBES (4,110,743) (1,647,175)
— At amortised cost — IR SR AR (2,534,065) (524,840)
- Designated at fair value through profit or —3EE R A FEF AEZR
loss (1,576,678) (1,122,335)
— Bank loans —RITER (9,449,391) (8,221,725)
— Amount due to a subsidiary — N — KM B A FFRIR (3,194,774) (4,987,750)
Tax payable FEAS IR (3,166) (7,426)
_Total current liabilites nBAfe® 00 (16,823,424)  (14,893,194)
_Net current liabilites rBRERE (2,362,254)  (1,831,730)
Non-current liabilities kFRBEMB
Debt securities in issue BERTEBES (3,225,006) (3,295,759)
— At amortised cost — JR SR AR (3,144,937) (3,138,860)
- Designated at fair value through profit or —38F R A FE AEBZR
loss (80,069) (156,899)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (3,225,006)  (3,295,759)
Net assets EEFE 16,277,942 16,496,479
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41. Statement of financial position of the 41. X AT BERRE @)
Company (continued)
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FHET T
Equity Rz
Share capital fig 4 10,902,195 10,902,195
Currency translation reserve BEmE S - 187
Share option reserve B AR 19,432 26,132
Retained profits =88 Al 5,356,315 5,567,965
Total equity AR 16,277,942 16,496,479
Dr. YIM Fung Ms. QI Haiying
EgE T PERL L
Director Director

EF EFE
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41. Statement of financial position of the
Company (continued)

41.

AR DT B AR R )

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: NEIEEBRENT :
Currency
translation ~ Share option Retained

reserve reserve profits Total

ERRERE ERERE RE R @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000

Thn TAT TAT TAT

At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 12021124318 k202241 A1R 187 27,429 5,393,974 5,421,590

Total comprehensive income for the year FRZERESE - - 707,424 707,424

Recognition of equity-settled share-based RUAEREE AR BERA R

payments - 47 - 417
Transfer of share option reserve upon BERELAmEZERERE

the forfeiture of share options - (1,714) 1,714 -

Share repurchase ki EE - - (57,109) (57,109)

Final dividend paid for 2021 X 20215 K EK 8 - - (95,878) (95,878)

Interim and special dividend paid for 2022 T {42022 8 R 45 Bl AR B - - (382,160) (382,160)

At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 12022412431 B k202351 A18 187 26,132 5,567,965 5,594,284

Total comprehensive income for the year FRAZENRRERE - - (27,459) (27,459)

Disposal of a subsidiary HE-HKEAR (187) - 187 -

Recognition of equity-settled share-based payments A MIERF EMRA AR - - - -
Transfer of share option reserve upon BREXAMEZERERE

the forfeiture of share options - (6,700 6,700 -

Final special dividend for 2022 (note 10) 2022 REFRIR S (FH3E10) - - (95,539) (95,539)

Interim dividend for 2023 (note 10) 2023 B8R 8 (Pif7E10) - - (95,539) (95,539)

- 19,432 5,356,315 5,375,747
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42. Possible impact of amendments, new

standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2023

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of new or amended standards, which are
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2023 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
developments include the following which may be relevant to the
Group.

Effective for

accounting periods

beginning on or after

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial 1 January 2024
statements: Classification of liabilities as current or

non-current (2020 amendments”)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements: Non-current liabilities with covenants
(2022 amendments”)

1 January 2024

Amendments to HKFRS 16, Leases: Lease liability in a sale
and leaseback

1 January 2024

Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows and
HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures : Supplier
finance arrangements

1 January 2024

Amendments to HKAS 21, The effects of changes in
foreign exchange rates: Lack of exchangeability

1 January 2025

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

o)
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AFMBERE

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the

Group for the last five financial years is set out below:

RESULTS

AEEEERAFHNENREREERR

EHMEEHINAT

Ty

=]
For the year ended 31 December
BE12B31ALEE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
2023% 2022F 20216 2020 20195
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL AL THL T T
Revenue and other income WAREA K& 3,230,094 2327603 3,964,944 4,940,344 4,196,413
Profit before tax BRHALER 191,416 26,657 1,287,646 1,814,679 1,005,443
Profit for the year FERRA 206,105 83042  1,108273 1,567,772 902,559

Profit attributable to ordinary equity ARAERRER
holders of the Company ity 201,261 80,381 1,004,743 1,562,587 895,303

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEE
As at 31 December
M2A318

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
20235 2022 20216 2020 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TBT THT THT THT
Loans and advances to customers LTEPHERREH 5761594 6391369 15,854,687 15,604,244 11,715,902
Financial assets at fair value RATEFENEREE 19,970,416 11,517,623 23,253,517 381,507,050 20,881,154
Financial products HER 48,535,137 45,938,678 31,599,309 39,512,089 38,110,044
Receivable from reverse repurchase agreements [ [i] 1B 138 JE W58 739,579 586,845 4,443,729 3,022,800 2247913
Derivative financial instruments fTEsBIA 1,935,260 2,104,513 619230 1,261,354 155,652
Cash and cash equivalents ReLBReEEY 7,407,815 7,756,580 5277874 5508779 7,150,847
Client trust bank balances REEZRIEH 13,750,018 13,347,021 17,804,841 18,707,026 11,181,982
Other current assets ARgEE 8,681,685 6,053,134 6,711,577 593609 4,421,056
Other non-current assets EtERESEE 753,649 759,323 723,329 661,303 873,607
Total assets BERE 107,535,153 94,455,086 106,288,093 121,720,741 96,738,157
Interest bearing borrowing SRR (9,939,421)  (9,349,007)  (5,375,208)  (9,739,397)  (11,249,881)
Debt securities in issue BETESES (45,763,712)  (41,488,268)  (45,491,783)  (47,919,872)  (33,499,582)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss AT E:F ABRMEHAR  (2482,272)  (2,108,386)  (8,772,805)  (6,666,260)  (6,810,580)
Obligations under repurchase agreements B HZREE (14,027,595)  (7,695,073)  (9,255,723)  (17,396,163)  (18,199,226)
Derivative financial instruments fTEemIA (1,693,575)  (1,529,217) (532,961) (862,429) (149,851)
Other liabilities A EE (18,716,580)  (17,348,939)  (21,422,679)  (23,897,453)  (15,417,250)
Non-controlling interests FEfR R (122,525) (129,497) (129,578) (121,048) (115,869)
Shareholders' fund &S 14,839,473 14,806,699 15307361 15,118,119 11,295,924




Glossary
i
A 52

In this report, unless the context requires otherwise, the
following expressions have the following meanings:

AGM e the annual general meeting of the Company
Amendment Ordinance e the Employment and
Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement)
(Amendment) Ordinance 2022

Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing
Ordinance e the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-
Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Chapter 615 of the Laws

of Hong Kong)

Articles of Association e the articles of association of the
Company

Board e the board of directors of the Company
CEOQO e the chief executive officer of the Company
CFO e the chief financial officer of the Group

CG Code e the Corporate Governance Code set out in
Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules

Chairman e the chairman of the Board

CO e the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong)

Company or Guotai Junan International e Guotai Junan
International Holdings Limited, incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability, whose shares are listed on the Main

Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1788.HK)

Company Secretary ® the company secretary of the
Company

CRO e the chief risk officer of the Group
Director(s) e the director(s) of the Company
DPD e days past due

ECL e expected credit loss

EGM e the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
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ESG e environmental, social and governance
Executive Director(s) e the executive Director(s)

Greater Bay Area ® Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area

Group e the Company together with its subsidiaries from
time to time

GSN Programme e guaranteed structured note
programme

GTJA Financial e Guotai Junan Financial Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability, a wholly-owned subsidiary of GTJA, and
a controlling shareholder of the Company

GTJA Group e GTJA and its subsidiaries from time to
time (but excluding the Group)

GTJA or parent company ® Guotai Junan Securities Co.,
Ltd., a joint stock limited company incorporated in the
PRC with limited liability, whose A-shares are listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601211.SH)
and H-shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 2611.HK), and the holding
company of GTJA Financial

GTJA Vietnam e Guotai Junan Securities (Vietnam) Corp., a
company incorporated in Vietnam, the shares of which are
listed on the Hanoi Stock Exchange (stock code: IVS.HN),

a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

HK or Hong Kong ® The Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region of the PRC

HKAS(s) ® Hong Kong Accounting Standard(s)

HKICPA ¢ Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants

HKICPA Code® HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants

HKFRS(s) ® Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard(s)
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HKSA(s) ® Hong Kong Standard(s) on Auditing

HKSCC e Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company
Limited

HKUST e the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology

HK$ e Hong Kong Dollars, the lawful currency of Hong
Kong

Independent Non-executive Director(s) ® the independent
non-executive Director(s)

IPO(s) e initial public offering(s)
IR team e investor relations team of the Company

ISDA e International Swaps and Derivatives Association,
Inc.

Listing Rules e the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange

LSP e |ong service payment
LTV e loan-to-collateral value

Macao e The Special Administrative Region of Macao of
the PRC

Mainland China e the PRC, for the purpose of this report,
does not include Hong Kong, Macao and Taiwan

Master Agreement e a master agreement entered into
between the Company and GTJA on 2 December 2020

Model Code e the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers sets out in
Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules

MOP e Macanese Pataca, the lawful currency of Macao

MPF e mandatory provident fund

MPF Scheme ¢ MPF scheme
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MTN Programme e medium term note programme

New Master Agreement e a master agreement entered
into between the Company and GTJA on 3 November
2023

Non-executive Director(s) ® non-executive Director(s)
Pillar Two Income Taxes e tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted to implement the Pillar Two
model rules published by the Organisation for Economic
Co-operation and Development

PRC or China e The People’s Republic of China

RMB e Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

SFO e the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

Share(s) ® ordinary share(s) of the Company
Shareholder(s) ® shareholder(s) of the Company

Share Option Scheme e The share option scheme of the
Company adopted on 19 June 2010 and expired on 19
June 2020

SinoHytech e Beijing SinoHytec Co., Ltd.

SPPI e solely payments of principal and interest

Stock Exchange e The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

US e United States of America

US$ e United States Dollars, the lawful currency of the
us

VND e Vietnamese Dong, the lawful currency of Vietnam
YOY e year on year

% e per cent
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